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This Introductory Document is dated 31%* August 2021

The shares as referred in this Introductory Document are to be listed on the ‘Empower Board’ under
Alternate Market Segment of the Colombo Stock Exchange. Upon Listing, the Company will be bound by
the Continuing Listing Requirements applicable for the Empower Board, incorporated under relevant
sections of the CSE Listing Rules.

Therefore, prospective investors who would trade in these shares after listing are advised to read and
understand the manner in which such Rules will be applicable, or consult a professional party for advice
prior to trading in these shares in the Secondary Market. Furthermore, if you are in doubt with regard to
the contents of this document or if you require further clarification or advice, then you should consult
your Stockbroker, Lawyer or any other Professional Advisor.

In accordance with the requirements of the CSE listing Rules on entities seeking a listing on the
Empower Board to obtain the services of a Sponsor approved by the CSE, Atarah Capital Partners (Pvt)
Limited will act as the Sponsor for a period not less than the release of the second Annual Report of the
Entity after listing.

The Colombo Stock Exchange (“CSE”) has taken reasonable care to ensure full and fair disclosure of the
information in this Introductory Document. However, the CSE assumes no responsibility for the accuracy
of the statements made, opinions expressed, or reports included in the Introductory Document.
Moreover, the CSE does not regulate the pricing of the shares, which is decided solely by the Company.

The delivery of this Introductory Document shall not under any circumstance constitute a representation
or create any implication or suggestion that there has been no material change in the affairs of the
Company since the date of this Introductory Document. If there is a material change, such material
change will be disclosed to the market via an announcement.

The Parties to the Introduction have verified the contents of this Introductory Document, that are relevant
to each party based on their fields of expertise and confirm that such disclosures are adequately made in
the Introductory Document.
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Registration of the Introductory Document

A copy of this Introductory Document has been delivered to the Registrar General of Companies in Sri Lanka
for registration in accordance with the provisions contained in the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

The following documents were also attached to the copy of the Introductory Document delivered to the
Registrar General of Companies.

e The written consent of the Financial Advisor & Manager to the Introduction and Sponsor
The Financial Advisor & Manager to the Introduction and Sponsor have given and have not withdrawn
their written consent for the inclusion of their name as Financial Advisor & Manager to the
Introduction and Sponsor, and for the inclusion of their statements/declarations in the form in which
they are included in the Introductory Document, before the delivery of a copy of the Introductory
Document for registration.

e The written consent of the Company Secretary
The Company Secretary has given and have not withdrawn their written consent for the inclusion of
their name as Company Secretary in the Introductory Document, before the delivery of a copy of the
Introductory Document for registration.

e The written consent of the Auditors to the Company
The Auditors to the Company have given and have not withdrawn their written consent for the
inclusion of their name as Auditors to the Company, and for the inclusion of their reports/statements
in the form and context in which they are included in the Introductory Document, before the delivery
of a copy of the Introductory Document for registration.

e The written consent of the Lawyers to the Company and Introduction
The Lawyers to the Company and Introduction have given and have not before the delivery of a copy
of the Introductory Document for registration withdrawn their written consent for the inclusion of
their name as Lawyers to the Introduction in the Introductory Document, before the delivery of a copy
of the Introductory Document for registration.

A declaration made by each of the Directors of the Company in terms of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007,
confirming that each of them have read the provisions of the Companies Act and the CSE Listing Rules relating
to the issue of the Introductory Document and that those provisions have been complied with.

Registration of the Introductory Document in Jurisdictions Outside of Sri Lanka

This Introductory Document has not been registered with any authority outside of Sri Lanka. Non-resident
investors may be affected by the laws of the jurisdiction of their residence. Such investors are responsible to
comply with the laws relevant to the country of residence and the laws of Sri Lanka when investing in the
shares after listing.
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Responsibility for the content of this Introductory Document

This Introductory Document has been prepared from information provided by the Board of Directors of EM L
Consultants Limited (hereinafter referred to as “EML”, or “the Company”) and its Directors and/or from
publicly available sources. The Company and its Directors having made all reasonable inquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained herein is true and correct in all material
respects and that there are no other material facts, the omission of which would make any statement herein
misleading.

Where representations regarding the future performance of the Company have been given in this
Introductory Document, such representations have been made after a due and careful enquiry of the
information available to the Company and making assumptions that are considered to be reasonable at the
present point in time in their best judgment.

The Company accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Introductory Document. While the
Company has taken reasonable care to ensure full and fair disclosure of information, prospective investors
who would trade in these shares upon listing are advised to carefully read this Introductory Document and
rely on their own examination and assessment of the Company, including the risks involved prior to making
any investment decision.

Representations

No person is authorized to give any information or make any representation not contained in this Introductory
Document and if given or made, any such information or representation must not be relied upon as having
been authorized by the Company.

Forward Looking Statements

Any statements included in this Introductory Document that are not statements of historical fact constitute
“Forward Looking Statements”. These can be identified by the use of forward looking terms such as “expect”,
“anticipate”, “intend”, “may”, “plan to”, “believe”, “could” and other similar terms or variations of such terms.
However, these words are not the exclusive means of identifying Forward Looking Statements. As such, all
statements pertaining to expected financial position, business strategy, plans and prospects of the Company

are classified as Forward Looking Statements.

Such Forward Looking Statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors including
but not limited to regulatory changes in the sectors in which the Company operates and its ability to respond
to them, the Company’s ability to successfully adapt to technological changes, exposure to market risks,
general economic and fiscal policies of Sri Lanka, inflationary pressures, the performance of financial markets
both globally and locally, changes in domestic and foreign laws, regulation of taxes and changes in
competition in the industry; and further uncertainties that may or may not be in the control of the Company.

Such factors may cause actual results, performance and achievements to materially differ from any future
results; and changes to performance or achievements expressed or implied by Forward Looking Statements
contained herein. Forward Looking Statements are also based on numerous assumptions regarding the
Company’s present and future business strategies and the environment in which the Company will operate in
the future.

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction iii



Given the risks and uncertainties that may cause the Company’s actual future results, performance or
achievements to materially differ from that expected, expressed or implied by Forward Looking Statements in
this Introductory Document, investors are advised not to place sole reliance on such statements.

Investment Considerations

It is important that this Introductory Document is read carefully prior to making an investment decision. For
information concerning certain risk factors which should be considered by prospective investors, refer to
“Investment Considerations and Associated Risk Factors” in Section 10 of this Introductory Document.

Presentation of Currency Information and Other Numerical Data

The financial statements of the Company and currency values of economic data or industry data in a local
context will be expressed in Sri Lanka Rupees. References in the Introductory Document to “LKR”, “Rupees”,
and “Rs.” are references to the lawful currency of Sri Lanka. Reference to “USD” is with reference to United
States Dollars, the official currency of the United States of America.

Certain numerical figures in the Introductory Document have been subject to rounding adjustments;
accordingly, numerical figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the
figures that precede them.

Presentation of Macroeconomic and Industry Data

Economic and industry data used throughout this Introductory Document are derived from the Central Bank of
Sri Lanka and various other industry data sources, which the Company/ Financial Advisor & Manager to the
Introduction and Sponsor believe to be reliable, however the accuracy and completeness of that information
is not guaranteed. Similarly, industry surveys and other publications, whilst believed to be reliable, have not
been independently verified and neither the Company nor the Managers to the Introduction make any
representation as to the accuracy of such information.
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1.0 THE INTRODUCTION AT A GLANCE

Company

E M L Consultants Limited

Number of Ordinary Voting Shares
to be listed

Ninety Million Nine Hundred Thousand (90,900,000)

Reference Price

LKR 2.00 per share

CSE Listing

To be listed on the Empower Board of the CSE, subject to compliance
with the CSE Listing Rules and SEC Directives (as applicable)
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2.0 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Company

E M L Consultants Limited

Registered Office

6/10, Rajamahavihara Road, Pita Kotte, Sri Lanka
Tel: +94 11 5535880

Fax: +94 11 5535877

Web: www.emlconsultants.com

Date, Place and Authority of
Incorporation

Incorporated as a Private Limited Liability company on 10" March
1993 under the name of Environment and Management Lanka
(Private) Limited, under the Companies Act No. 17 of 1982. Name of
the Company has been changed to E M L Consultants (Private)
Limited on 23" April 2007.

The Company was re-registered under Companies Act No. 07 of
2007 on 14" January 2008. The Company has changed its status to a
Limited Liability Company on 9% June 2021 in terms of Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007.

Incorporated in Colombo

Company Registration Number

PB 00240481

Board of Directors

Mr. Thilak Hewawasam - Chairman, Non-Executive, Non-
Independent Director

Mr. K. A. K. Jayatilake — Managing Director, Executive Director
Mr. H. N. J. Chandrasekera — Non Executive Independent Director
Mr. K.P.P.H. Mihiripenna - Non-Executive Independent Director

Company Secretary and Registrars

Business Intelligence (Pvt) Limited

No 8, Tickell Road, Colombo 8.

Tel —0094 11 2015913 (Dir), 2015900 (Gen)
Fax—0094 11 201596

Company Lawyer

Kularatne & Pieris Associates — Attorneys at Law and Notaries Public
No 4/2, D. J. Wijesiriwardana Road,
Mount Lavinia

Tel: 077 7759297

Auditors to the Company

MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co., Chartered Accountants
No. 6, Balahenamulla Lane, Kirulapona
Colombo 06

Tel: 011 2815655
Fax: 011 2199819
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3.0 RELEVANT PARTIES TO THE INTRODUCTION

Financial Advisor and Manager to the Introduction
and Sponsor

Atarah Capital Partners (Private) Limited

Principal place of business:
#656, 6™ floor, Jana Jaya City
Rajagiriya

Tel/ Fax: 094 11 2877775
Web: www.atarahcapital.com

Lawyers to the Introduction

Kularatne & Pieris Associates — Attorneys at Law
and Notaries Public

No 4/2, D. J. Wijesiriwardana Road,

Mount Lavinia

Tel: 077 7759297
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4.0 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

“ADB”

“Articles of Association”
“Auditors and Reporting
Accountants to the Company”
“AWPLR”

lanIl

“CAGR”

“CBSL”

IICDSII

IICEAII
“Companies Act”
llcSE”

”DCF”
“Directors”

“EML” or “the Company”
”EPS"

”FDI”

IIFY"

llGDPII

“GICS”

“GoSL”

“Introductory Document”

lll RD"
“JBIC”
“Listing Rules”

“LKR”, “Rs.”, “Rupees”

“Local Time”

“Market Day”

lan"

“Ordinary Voting Shares”, “Issued
and Paid up Ordinary Shares”,
“Existing Ordinary Voting Shares”

“p/ BV”

IIP/E"

“ROA”

“ROE”

“Shares”

“SEC”

“SLFRS”, “LKAS”
agL”

Asian Development Bank

Articles of Association of E M L Consultants Limited
MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Company - Partners,
Accountants

Last quoted Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate published by
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Billion

Compound Annual Growth Rate

Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Central Depository Systems (Private) Limited

Central Environmental Authority

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007

Colombo Stock Exchange

Discounted Cash Flow

The Directors for the time being of the Company, unless
otherwise stated

E M L Consultants Limited

Earnings Per Share

Foreign Direct Investments

Financial Year

Gross Domestic Product

Global Industry Classification Standards

Government of Sri Lanka

This Introductory Document dated 31" August 2021 issued by the
Company

Inland Revenue Department

Japan Bank of International Cooperation

Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange in effect from time
to time

Sri Lankan Rupees

Sri Lanka Time

Any day on which the CSE is open for trading

Million

Ordinary shares of the Company, with the right to one vote on a
poll at a meeting of the Company on any resolution, the right to
an equal share in dividends paid by the Company and the right to
an equal share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the
Company in liquidation

Price to Book Value Ratio

Price Earnings Ratio

Return on Assets

Return on Equity

Ordinary Voting Shares

Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards

Sri Lanka

Chartered
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“SLIDA”
IISM E"
“Reference Price”

“The Board”, “The Board of
Directors”

llTTMII

llUKII

“UN HABITAT”

“UNOPS”

“USAID”

llUSDII

llVATII

llWHTlI

Sri Lanka Institute of Development Administration

Small and Medium Enterprise

The price at which the Ordinary Voting Shares will be listed on the
CSE

The Board of Directors of E M L Consultants Limited

Trailing Twelve Months

United Kingdom

United Nations Human Settlements Programme
United Nations Office for Project Services

United States Agency for International Development
United States Dollars

Value Added Tax

Withholding Tax
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5.0 DETAILS OF THE INTRODUCTION

5.1 Listing

An Application has been made to the CSE for permission for a listing of Ninety Million Nine Hundred Thousand
(90,900,000) Ordinary Voting Shares, being the entirety of the issued and paid up Ordinary Shares represented
in the Stated Capital of the Company. Approval in-principle has been granted by the CSE for a listing of such
number of Shares on the Empower Board in the Alternate Market segment of the CSE. However, the CSE
reserves the right to withdraw such approval, in the circumstances set out in Rule 2.3 of the Listing Rules of
the CSE.

The Company does not require the approval of the existing shareholders for the listing of the Ordinary Voting
Shares.

5.2 Nature of the Shares to be Listed

The Ordinary Voting Shares in issue rank equal and pari passu to each other in all respects and each Share shall
confer on the holder the right to one vote on a poll at a meeting of the Company on any resolution, the right
to an equal share in any dividend that may be paid by the Company and the right to an equal share in the
distribution of the surplus assets of the Company in any liquidation.

5.3 Objectives of the Listing

The Company envisages a listing for its Ordinary Voting Shares with the following objectives.

1. Enhance the governance structure of the Company by complying with the Corporate Governance
requirements and continuing listing obligations of the Colombo Stock Exchange. It is aimed to build a
transparent corporate profile where stakeholders would be able to always assess the operational and
financial performances of the Company.

2. Provide liquidity for the shares through an active secondary market where an exit mechanism is made
available to existing shareholders in a future date.

5.4 Basis for the Reference Price
The Reference Price for the purpose of listing on the CSE is LKR 2.00 per share.

The Reference Price of LKR 2.00 has been decided by the Company in consultation with the Manager to the
Introduction. The Research Report prepared by the Manager to the Introduction justifying the Reference Price
is enclosed in Annexure 3 of this Introductory Document. The NAV per share for the financial year ended 31
December 2020 (Audited) is LKR 1.12 and the reference price is 1.79 times the NAV. Summary of the valuation
results are disclosed below.

e e e e e o e
Discounted Cashflow Basis 2.03- 2.24 (1.4%) - (10.7%)

Net Asset Value 1.16 72.4%

Adjusted Net Asset Value* 1.76 13.6%
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*Adjusted net assets value is derived based on the fair value of assets adjusted for the fair value gain of the
Land and Building, which was determined by a Chartered Valuer on 8" February 2021.

The Reference Price is with a discount of 6.1% to the value per share derived based on DCF method (i.e. LKR
2.13 per share), which is the primary valuation method as detailed in the Research Report. Aforesaid discount
is recommended to maintain the fair value of a share within the equity value range arrived as explained above,
and it would be an attractive starting price for secondary market trading upon listing.

The investors should read the following summary, along with the risk factors included under Section 10 of this

Introductory Document, and the details of the Company and its financial statements included in this
Introductory Document.

5.4.1 Quantitative Factors

The following quantitative aspects were also taken into consideration when arriving at the Reference Price;

Earnings per Share (EPS) and Return on Equity (ROE)

For the Period Ended Basic EPS (LKR) Diluted EPS ROE (%) P/E (times)**
(LKR) *
315 December 2019 — Audited (0.01) (0.01) N/A N/A
31 December 2020 — Audited 0.10 0.10 8.7% 20
Interim financial statements 0.03 0.03 3% 66.67
(unaudited) for the period ended
31°* May 2021 (not annualized)

*The Company does not have any convertible securities in issue as at the date of this Introductory Document.
** P/E is based on Reference Price of LKR 2.00 per share

Formulas used in the calculations are as follows:

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted Average number of shares outstanding during the year/period

Earnigs per share =

Net profit after tax
Net Assets as at the end of the year / period

Return on Equity (%) =

Price/ Earnings Ratio (P/E) in relation to the Reference Price of LKR 2.00
a) Based on audited financial statements of financial year ended 31° December 2020, and based on EPS
of LKR 0.10 is 20 times
b) Based on average EPS of LKR 0.045 for the last 2 financial years, the P/E ratio is 44.4 times
c) ‘Commercial & Professional Services’ Industry Sector P/E 11.23*
d) The P/E range of the industry composite* is as given below;

Name of the Company P/E (x)
Highest Gestetner of Ceylon PLC 17.87
Lowest Printcare PLC 5.52
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*The P/E is calculated excluding the Trade Suspended companies in the Commercial & Professional Services
Sector, and based on TTM earnings as per published interim financials. Market prices as per CSE Daily report as
of 31° July 2021.

Net Assets Value (NAV) and Price to Book Value (P/BV)

The P/BV in relation to the Reference Price of LKR 2.00:

a) Based on the NAV per share for the financial year ended 31t December 2020 (Audited) of LKR 1.12,
the P/BV is 1.79 times.
b) Based on the NAV per share for the interim period ended 31° May 2021 (unaudited) of LKR 1.16, the
P/BV is 1.72 times.
c) Reference Price — LKR 2.00
d) The P/BV range of the industry composite* is given below;
Name of the Company P/ BV (x)
Highest Printcare PLC 1.10
Lowest Gestetner of Ceylon PLC 0.74

* The P/BV is calculated excluding the Trade Suspended companies in the Commercial & Professional Services
Sector, and based on Net assets values as per latest published interim financials. Market prices as per CSE Daily
report as of 31° July 2021.

Peer Entity accounting ratios

Given the nature of the operations of the Company (i.e. Specialized consultancy services), there are no
comparable listed entities in the industry sector that the Company is likely to be classified in the CSE (i.e. the
Commercial & Professional Services Sector as per GICS).

5.4.2 Qualitative Factors

Following qualitative factors were considered when determining the Reference Price:

a)

b)

d)

Long-standing business track record of the Company - operating for a period of 27 years in the
industry has made EML a key player in the space of consultancy, and a well-known brand amongst
government intuitions, private sector institutions and donor agencies.

Industry experience demonstrated by the top management and external consultants are key factors
for long-term success and sustainability of the Company. Their skills and experience is vital to secure
new businesses, as well as successful completion of the projects undertaken.

It is expected that the focus on infrastructure development at national level will continue, which is
bound to create new business opportunities for the Company. Steady level of investments by the
government as well as the private sector towards key sectors such as road and rail system
development, energy, construction could work favorably for EML, where there will be a demand for
related professional consultation services.

Positive economic sentiments in the long run despite the COVID-19 pandemic would support the
Company’s operations where EML’s business is quite sensitive to the macro-economic environment.
Forecasted GDP growth and increase in capital expenditure for economic and social development are
important factors for EML’s success. Donor agencies may also recommence work in Sri Lanka with new
projects where social development is considered, especially with the gradual recovery of Western
countries.
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5.5 Inspection of Documents

The Introductory Document and the Articles of Association of the Company will be hosted in the Company’s
website (www.emlconsultants.com) and the Colombo Stock Exchange’s web site (www.cse.lk) for a period of
not less than seven (7) Market Days prior to the submission of the Declaration referred to in Appendix 2D of
the CSE Listing Rules, and not less than fourteen (14) Market Days from the date of submission of such
Declaration. In terms of Rule 2.5 (d) of the CSE Listing Rules, the Company will make available the Soft Copies
of the Introductory Document to the members and trading members of the CSE within twenty (20) Market
Days of receiving approval from the CSE.

The Research Report prepared by the Manager to the Introduction will be hosted on the Company’s website
(www.emlconsultants.com) and the Colombo Stock Exchange’s web site (www.cse.lk) for a period of 2 months
commencing from the date of granting approval in principle for the listing of shares of the Entity by the
Colombo Stock Exchange.

5.6 Declaration to the CSE and Secondary Market Trading

Subject to making available the Introductory Document as stipulated in paragraph 1 of Section 5.5 above, the
Company will submit to the CSE a “Declaration” on the Market Day immediately following the day on which
the Introductory Document is made available to the members and trading members of the CSE. As per the CSE
Listing Rules, Trading of the Ordinary Shares in the secondary market will commence on or before the third
(3) Market Day from the receipt of the Declaration by the CSE.
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6.0 THE COMPANY

6.1 Overview

E M L Consultants Limited was incorporated in year 1993 to provide technical and management consultancy
services to the private and public sector in Sri Lanka and across the globe. Initial scope of services was focused
on environmental and natural resources management. Within a brief period of time, EML emerged as a
leading consultancy services provider in many diverse industries and fields, and successfully expanded to cover
a broad spectrum of areas such as community and livelihood development, SMEs, feasibility and
environmental assessments, climate change, biodiversity and eco systems, socioeconomic surveys,
institutional development, conceptual and detailed designs, heritage and culture, infrastructure projects
related to renewable energy, water supply, waste disposal, roads, transport and coastal management.

EML’s business model is such that the required technical expertise is obtained from outside consultants
depending on project specifications. The Company involves in many categories of projects where resource
requirements vary from one to another, making it more cost effective to obtain resources on need basis. At
present, the Company has employed a minimum number of specialists as a measure of cost management and
retains third-party consultants from its partner firms identified in Section 6.2 below.

6.2 Corporate Structure

The Company does not have an identifiable parent entity and entirety of the shares are held by 5 individual
shareholders as depicted in Section 6.6 of this Introductory Document. Furthermore, the company does not
hold any subsidiary, associate or joint venture companies.

EML works closely with a few partner companies to obtain the technical assistance or retain professionals as
and when such resources are required. These organizations are listed below;

e Development Concepts (Pvt.) Ltd
Specialized in Financial management, Strategic & Business Planning, Performance Management &
Improvement, Financial Restructuring, Enterprise Development, Developing business proposals,
Conducting project feasibility studies, Micro finance and Carbon Finance.

e International Institute of Development Training (Pvt.) Ltd
Service scope includes Development Training, Research and Consultancy, Socio-economic Research,
training and consultancies on Project Cycle Management, Enterprise Development, Governance,
Organizational Development, Personal Productivity and Environmental Sustainability

e Sustainable Engineering Concepts (Pvt) Limited
Involves in projects relating to Environment & Natural Resources Management, Tourism Development,
Irrigation & Water Resources Management, Regional & Urban Planning and Infrastructure
Development, Industrial & Municipal Waste Management etc. Also provides consultancies in the areas
of Vocational Training and Skills Development, Governance and Capacity Building, and Micro-finance
and Livelihoods Development.
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e Sustainability Agenda (Pvt.) Ltd
Provides service in relation to Developing environmental and social management systems,
Sustainability and Environmental reporting, Biodiversity impact assessment and Social Impact
Assessments, Conceptualizing and developing CSR initiatives, Advising on biodiversity business -
markets and opportunities.

e Green Win Holdings Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.
Specialized in Project Consulting, Designing and Planning, Infrastructure Development, Information
Technology related services, Power and energy related activities and Telecommunication sector
projects.

Such strategic alliances were developed over a period of time to ensure that EML will have readily available
resources as and when required. There are no permanent written contracts/ agreements between EML and
these entities where services are retained and transactions take place on mutual understanding built over the
years. Types of resources and extent is dependent on the project specifications, hence rates for the services
are agreed considering the nature and extent of involvement by each party.

With strong and long-term relationships with these organizations, EML has been able to retain high quality
resources as and when required for the projects undertaken in a cost-effective manner.

Mr. K.A.K. Jayatilake, Managing Director of EML is also a Director of International Institute of Development
Training (Pvt) Ltd, Sustainable Engineering Concepts (Pvt) Limited and Sustainability Agenda (Pvt) Ltd. Please
refer Section 7.3 of this Introductory Document for the shareholding details of the said director. Mr. K.A.K.
Jayatilake is also a shareholder of Development Concepts (Pvt) Limited and holds 33.33% of shares.

Apart from Mr. Jayatilake, none of the other directors of EML are directors/ shareholders of these companies
and have no conflict of interest.

6.3 Business Operations

As a technical and management consultancy services provider, EML currently serves both public and private
sector institutions, as well as international donor agencies by providing a wide array of services on fee-based
assignments. Most of the projects are secured through a competitive bidding process based on specific
requirements of project owners.

Services provided by EML can be identified in the following main segments:
e Environment and Natural Resources Management (ENR)
e Capacity Building and Human Resources Development (CBH) Programs
e Urban and Industrial Engineering (UIE) Service

e Special Project Management

Environment and Natural Resources Management

One of the key business verticals of the Company is Environmental Impact Assessments (EIA’s) and Initial
Environmental Examinations (IEE’s) for Development Projects. In any development project, environmental
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impact is assessed prior to granting approvals from authorities such as Central Environment Authority (CEA),
where EML provides its services as an independent party.

Capacity Building and Human Resources Development (CBH) Programs

Aiming at social development as well as development of human resources, EML provides its professional
services by offering different programs to clients that include training, capacity building, organizational
restructuring, policy making and planning etc. These solutions are developed by EML itself and executed by
deploying required resources to meet the expectations of various institutions that seek such services.

Urban and Industrial Engineering (UIE) Service

EML offers end-to-end consultancy services in relation to infrastructure development or other projects by
undertaking planning activities (EIA, project feasibility studies), Conceptual & Detail design, implementation,
monitoring and evaluation. Also, such services include waste minimization and waste/wastewater
management consultancies.

Special Projects Management

EML is also capable of providing services on special projects such as Water and Sanitary Projects, Integrated
Waste Management, Institutional Development and Governance. Scope of such services may include ElAs,
feasibility studies, detailed design monitoring etc. where different expert services are deployed using internal
and external resources.

More details on the business activities of the Company are given in Section 2.2 of the Research Report which
forms integral part of this Introductory Document (Annexure 3).

6.3.1 Key Projects Completed by EML

Environment and Natural Resources Management

Impact Monitoring of the Sri Lanka
Conservation and Sustainable use
of Medicinal Plants Project -

Strategic Environmental

Master Plan for Cochi
aster Fan for tochin Assessment of the Cauvery

Fisheries Harbor Kerala, India

Basin . .
Socioeconomic Survey
Trincomalee Master Plan JBIC Study on Promoting Clean
Integrated Urban Development Developmgnt Mechanlsm Survey of Bio-diversity & Wetland
Plan [CDM] in Sri Lanka

Issues & Option for their

sustainable management in Kala

Environmental Monitoring of -
Oya Basin

Mpanga River Hydro-Project
at Kamwenge, Uganda

Anchorage Facilities at
Kalametiya Lagoon

Study on the Determination of the Solid Waste
Quantification & Composition Analysis - Local
Authorities of Hikkaduwa

Integrating Cleaner Production into Industrial
Development

Research on Climate Change — Solar Radiation Solid Waste Management (SWM) - Ampara
Potential District
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Water Supply and Sanitation

Greater Colombo Wastewater Management
Project- Design Supervision and Management
Consultant

Deduru Oya Water Supply Project — Feasibility
Study

Greater Matale Water Supply Project —Feasibility
Study

Ratmalana — Moratuwa/Ja Ela — Ekala Sewerage

d Waste Water Project
Lippekelle Water Supply Project an aste YWater Frojec

Urban Infrastructure Development

Rehabilitation of Minor

L Preparation of Detailed Formulation a sustainable
Irrigation Schemes Under Re-
. . development plan for Horana development plan for Arugam Bay
Awakening Project in
. L Growth Centre area
Batticaloa District
National Irrigation Local Government
Rehabilitation Project Enhancement Sector Project Urban Transport System
Aftercare Program (LGESP) Development Project for Colombo
Preparation of a Physical Plan Local Government Metropolitan Regi.on and Suburbs -
for the Coastal Areas of Enhancement Sector Project- Person Trip Survey
Eastern Province Sri Jayewardenepura

Feasibility Studies for the Development of Three
Fisheries Harbours in Gurunagar — Jaffna District,

Silawathura — Mannar District, and Gandara —
Matara District Conflict Affected Region Emergency Project -

Rehabilitation of National Roads

Feasibility Study on Upgrading of Proposed
Infrastructure Facility at Dodanduwa Fishery
Harbour Basin

Capacity Building & Livelihood Development

Rural Finance Sector The Sri Lanka- German Small Infrastructure Development
Development Project and Medium Enterprises Investment Program for Tourism in
(SME) Development Program Himachal Pradesh -India

Water Supply and Sanitation

Socio-economic Survey in Northern and Eastern Southern Province Rural Economic Advancement
Provinces Project (SPREAP) Socio-Economic Survey
Socio-economic Survey Baseline Socio-Economic Study on Quantification of Economic and Social
Surveys - Plantation Reform Project-2 Benefits contributed by the TVET Sector
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6.4 Financial information
(A) Performance Snapshot of Last 5 Financial Years

The nature of the business model explained in the proceeding sections of this Introductory Document
regularly results in fluctuations in revenues and financial performances of the Company. When considered
the past 5 financial years (i.e. 2016 to 2020), the top line is a mixed bag of results however a CAGR of c. 8%
is recorded during this period. Varying gross profit margins reported were c. 33% on average during the
period under review and this is based on the extent of resources deployed for projects. In terms of
profitability, it is observed that fluctuations in overhead costs, finance cost and contribution from other
income categories had significant influence on the net results where profits were recorded in 2016, 2018
and 2020 financial years whilst FY 2017 and 2019 recording losses.

(B) Financial Position

Being a professional services provider, EML’s business highly depends on human resources required for
professional services and therefore it is not an assets driven company. This position is well reflected in
the balance sheet of the Company where total assets are amounting to LKR 194 Mn and total equity is
LKR 102 Mn as at 31st December 2020 (audited). Apart from the investment in land and building,
majority of the assets are represented by current assets in the form of receivables and liquid assets such
as bank deposits and cash.

When considered the capital structure, debt to equity ratio at the end of FY 2020 is 26:74 where debt
comprises of loans, leases and bank overdrafts. Accordingly, EML is a moderately geared company and in
the long run further reduction of debt levels is expected. As a tenured company, a substantial change to
the financial position is not expected during the foreseeable future, unless significant changes are made
to the business model depending on the operating environment.

A detailed analysis of historical financial performances of the Company can be refereed in Section 2.3 of the
Research Report, which forms integral part of this Introductory Document (Annexure 3).

(C) Summary of Financial Results

2020 (A) ‘ 2019 (B) 2018 (C) Variance A—-B * Variance B — C**
LKR LKR LKR LKR % LKR %
Revenue 133,740,943 126,070,595 159,671,737 7,670,348 6.1% (33,601,142) -21.0%
Direct Cost (102,776,025) | (89,014,336) | (115,592,607) | (13,761,689) 15.5% 26,578,271 | -23.0%
Gross Profit 30,964,918 37,056,259 44,079,130 (6,091,341) -16.4% (7,022,871) -15.9%
Profit / (Loss)
for the year 8,825,936 (920,186) 7,434,441 9,746,122 | 1,059.1% (8,354,627) | -112.4%

* Key highlights in FY 2020 as compared to FY 2019 are drop in gross margin due to increase in Direct costs
(cost of sales) and substantial net profit increase. Depending on the nature and extent of resources and
expertise required to fulfill project scope, direct costs vary and margins that can be secured also vary from
project to project.

Despite the drop in gross margin, other income contributed to the net profits, which is largely attributable to
gains from disposal of motor vehicles which is a one-off gain. In addition, reduction in overhead costs in FY
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2020 (by 21%) due to closure of office premises as a result of country’s lockdown with COVID-19 pandemic
contributed to maintain a better net margin.

** FY 2018 saw the highest revenue during last 5 years where EML managed to secure few high value projects
compared to other years, leading to generating higher revenue together with the revenues of certain projects
continued from the previous year. Despite new projects with high values were secured in FY 2019, certain
projects extended to FY 2020 where only a portion of revenues were accrued in FY 2019. Therefore, a drop in
revenues is observed as compared to FY 2018, leading to a significant drop in direct costs and gross profit.
Unlike in FY 2018 and 2020, there was no major other income components in FY 2019, where a marginal net
loss has been recorded in FY 2019.

As discussed above, other income components namely gain from disposal of motor vehicles and foreign
exchange gain contributed to the profits of FY 2020, also leading to a notable increase in net assets value as at
31°t December 2020. Out of these two components, assets disposal gain is a non-recurrent income. On the
other hand, foreign exchange gains are linked to the projects invoiced in foreign currencies, therefore, a
regular element that appear under other income category. However, the same could be an exchange loss at
times depending on foreign currency fluctuations, as such could have a negative impact on profits and net
asset value in such a scenario.

(D) Other financial information

Amounts due to directors as disclosed under Note 18 of the Audited financial statements of 31 December
2020 is relating to sums payable to Managing Director for the consultancy services he provided in various
projects in the past. There is an increase in this balance in FY 2020 due to amounts charged in that year in
relation to the services obtained. These amounts are paid depending on the availability of cash inflows.

Amounts due from shareholders (LKR 567,792) mentioned under Note 12 of the Audited financial statements
of 31 December 2020 is carried forward from FY 2012, and the Company has informed the relevant
shareholders on the same. EML is in the process of tracing the past records to identify the nature of the
transactions and confirm this balance in order to recover the same.

Compared to financial year 2019, Staff salaries were reduced in FY 2020 with the measures taken by the
Company to curtail salaries to certain extent, aiming at effective cost management during the pandemic
period.

(E) Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 31 May 2021
Please refer Annexure 2 of the Introductory Document for the interim financial statements of 31 May 2021.

As reflected in the interim accounts, Revenue for the current interim period ended 315 May 2021 has dropped
by 7% compared to the comparative interim period since the value of completed/ part completed projects is
low during the first 5 months period of 2021. The revenues are dependent on the projects undertaken at
different times, hence revenue fluctuations are natural in different financial periods.

The reduction of net profits by 68% during the current interim period is caused by the low gross profits driven
by higher project related direct costs and mainly with a 62% increase in administrative expenses due to
increase in staff costs, retainer consultants’ fees and overheads. During the same period of last year, staff and
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overhead costs were low due to closure of the office during the months of March, April and May in view of the
first wave of COVID — 19 pandemic.

(F) Preparation of audited financial statements post listing

The Company will continue to prepare audited financial statements as per SLFRS for SMEs in 2021 and will
commence to prepare audited financial statements as per full SLFRS from the financial year 2022.

6.5 Industry Overview

Technical and management consultancy services sector is largely dependent on the opportunities available in
its market space, mainly driven by the public and private sector demand for such services. Socio-economic
development activities, commercial development activities, infrastructure development and institutional
specific projects executed by the public/ private sector and international donor agencies are the target
business opportunities for the service providers. Therefore, such companies are not capable of creating
markets on their own and business volumes are largely dependent on macro-economic conditions including
political and economic factors.

6.5.1 Macro Economic Environment

Economic Growth

A growing economy is a signal of active involvement by both government and private sectors in economic
activities that encompass infrastructure development, commercial development and socio-economic
development. Such activities are key factors for business growth of professional services providers of EML’s
caliber. Recent challenges due to the spread of COVID-19 caused a negative GDP growth for Sri Lanka in 2020;
however, expected to rebound as the time progresses with better prospects for key sectors.

Government Policies

The GoSL has made certain crucial policy decisions during 2020, in terms of lowering the interest rates,
encourage domestic manufacturing and restricting non-essential imports etc. Such initiatives were aimed to
increase capital availability, manage exchange rates and to support local entrepreneurs, which would induce
faster economic development. Focus on local manufacturing and industrialization means that EML and other
similar companies would have an on-going project pipeline to provide services in segments such as EIA, project
management etc.

Simultaneously, infrastructure development projects also energized with more allocation of funds as the
government emphasized the importance of such initiatives to support efficient and fast development. In such
activities, it is regularly observed that state institutions seek the services of professionals to conduct feasibility
studies, environment impact assessment, and project management etc. creating new avenues for such
services. Promotion of FDIs is also a major strategy that always assisted Sri Lanka as a country for a very long
time, which assisted setting up new businesses and creating employment opportunities.

Key Sectors
Agriculture, power and energy, manufacturing and tourism sectors are pivotal in driving towards sustainable

development with the involvement of state and the private sector. More and more investments into these
sectors also require expertise to successfully launch and complete these projects, which will eventually create
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more demand for technical consultancy firms. In addition, the construction sector is booming with substantial
investments towards large real estate development projects especially by the private sector. The Colombo
Port City project remains an untouched market segment for local consultants, however once development
activities commence, it is hopeful that Sri Lankan specialists would be able to gain access by extending their
professional services.

A comprehensive Industry analysis covering the operating environment and business opportunities for EML is
provided under Section 3.0 of the Research Report prepared by the Manager to the Introduction (Annexure 3).

6.6 Shareholding details of the Company

As at the date of this Introductory Document, following parties are the shareholders of EML.

Name of the shareholders Number of shares Percentage

Mr. K.A.K. Jayatilake 67,300,738 74.04%
Mr. Dinal Gitanjan Wijemanne 14,725,406 16.19%
Mr. Tulsidas Mahendran Waloopillai 7,362,744 8.10%
Mr.Thilak Hewawasam 944,445 1.04%
Mr. P. C. Fernando 566,667 0.63%
Total 90,900,000 100.0%

Full particulars of the Capital structure are provided under Section 8.0 of this Introductory Document.

6.7 Human Resource

As at the date of this Introductory Document, EML has 22 permanent employees. Other specialist consultants
for projects are retained based on the requirements and they do not fall under the purview of EML
employees.

As at the date of this Introductory Document, there are no labour unions in the Company and no agreements
have been entered into between any labour unions and the Company.

6.8 Taxation

The Company is liable for income tax at the rate of 14% on taxable profits, which is the corporate income tax
rate applicable for SME’s. There are no tax concessions enjoyed by the Company at present, however, in the
event a listing is obtained in the CSE prior to 31st December 2021, EML would avail for a 50% reduction in the
income tax payable for the year of assessment commencing from 1st April 2021 in accordance with the
provisions of Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act, No.10 of 2021.

The Company has made all tax payments in the past in line with applicable tax regulations, however there are
certain pending tax matters which are currently in discussion with the IRD. These are primarily relating to
mismatch of payment periods as per IRD records and tax returns filed by the Company and late payment of
taxes. Total amount of the penalty calculated by IRD is approximately LKR 2.5 Mn where approximately 80% of
this amount is on payment period mismatches as explained above.
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The Company has already provided relevant clarifications to the IRD, and appeals have been made where
necessary. The matters are currently pending with tax authorities and outcome is unknown as at the date of
the Introductory Document. Considering the nature of these items, the Company is of the view that it is
unlikely that there would be a material impact on the Company’s financial statements due to the above.

6.9 Future Strategies of the Company and Assumptions on which such strategies are based

upon

a)

b)

Improvements to current level of operations

The Company has identified the importance of securing more businesses in order to maintain a better
profitability. The company secures projects through a competitive bidding process as such it is
important to continuously explore opportunities in the operating space. Further, relationship building
with government and private sector institutions is an added advantage where EML can position itself
better when it comes to winning projects. In order to execute these business development activities,
the Company is planning to recruit an experienced individual within this year, so that more focus can
be given for the identified activities.

It is assumed that the macro-economic conditions will continue to improve, enabling expected
improvements in the business operations to materialize in the future. GDP growth, government
policies towards infrastructure developments and interest from donor agencies for socio-economic
development projects are key factors that Company envisages to improve in the long-run, which
opens more business opportunities for EML.

Explore new feasibility of expanding business opportunities outside Sri Lanka

The Company in its long-term plans, will explore opportunities to expand beyond borders and provide
specialized consultancy services. As a long-established brand in Sri Lanka with a strong track record of
successfully completing over 300 projects, EML believes that they will have a better chance of securing
businesses especially in South Asian region. In addition, international relationships and exposure of
the senior management team is a key factor EML can capitalize when promoting business overseas.

EML believes that the management will be able to secure projects through the relationships of the top
management team in a targeted country. It is expected that relevant funds for such activities can be
generated internally and human resources including consultants would be available to deploy for the
projects.

Potential investors are advised to read Section 10 of this Introductory Document to understand the risks
that would impact above strategies.
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7.0 CORPORATE STRUCTURE

7.1 Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of experienced and professional individuals where there are
1 Executive Director, 1 Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 2 Non-Executive Independent Directors.
The Board is responsible to oversee the business affairs of the Company and provides leadership via
formulating business strategies.

Name Nature of the Directorship
Mr. Thilak Hewawasam Chairman, Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director
Mr. K. A. K. Jayatilake Managing Director, Executive Director
Mr. H.N. J. Chandrasekera Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. K.P.P.H. Mihiripenna Non-Executive Independent Director

7.2 Profiles of the Board of Directors

Mr. Thilak Hewawasam — Chairman - Non Executive Non-Independent Director
213-3/18, Park APT, Park Road, Colombo 5

A Regional Development Planner by profession, Mr. Hewawasam has a wealth of experience serving in both
public sector and private sector institutions. His service in the state sector includes the tenure as Chairman,
Central Environmental Authority, which is the apex body responsible for formulation and implementation of
environmental regulations.

He has also been involved in different national level projects and held key positions such as National Project
Director for Water Supply & Sanitation Project (CWSSP), 1992- 1997 Ministry of Housing - Sri Lanka, Director -
Clean Settlement Program (CSP) funded by World Bank, Project Director — ADB funded Rural Water Supply
Pilot Project in the District of Monaragala and Coordinator- Greater Colombo Urban Community Sanitation
Program (1994-1996). From 2006-2010, he was the Senior Water and Sanitation Advisor for the USAID Asia
(Eco-Asia) Program. His international experience includes involvement in community development projects
launched by USAD and World Bank in many countries in the South Asian Region, West Asia and Central Africa.

Mr. Hewawasam holds a MSc (Econ) in Regional Dev. Planning from University of Wales, Post Graduate in
Sociology — Land Settlement & Development from University of Colombo, Post Graduate Certificate in Public
Administration, SLIDA and BA(Sp) 2nd Class (Hons) in Geography from University of Ceylon, Peradeniya. He
also a Member of Sri Lanka Administrative Service (SLAS) and Member of Institute of Environmental
Professionals, Sri Lanka.

Mr. K. A. Jayatilake - Managing Director - Executive Director
78/2, Old Nawala Road, Nawala, Rajagiriya

Formerly in the Sri Lanka Administrative Service (SLAS), Mr. Avanthi Jayatilake is one of the top most
professionals in the sphere of Environment Management. He started his career as a SLAS Officer in 1979 and
served in many important positions in government agencies including Ministry of Planning, CEA and Ministry
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of Environment. In 1991 he was employed by the United States Agency for International Development
(USAID), as the Program Specialist and was later appointed as the Mission Environmental Officer to look after
the environmental aspects of all projects supported by the USAID.

In addition, he has also served as Special Advisor to the US Ambassador on environmental related matters. Mr.
Jayatilake has served as the Team Leader for large number of Environmental Impact Assessment Reports and
served as the Environmental Specialist for several major projects designed and implemented in other
countries as well. Previously, Mr. Jayatilake has also served as a Director/ Chairman on the Board of Property
Development PLC, a company quoted on the Colombo Stock Exchange.

He holds a MSc. in Environmental Management from the University of Tasmania — Australia.

Mr. H. N. J. Chandrasekera — Non-Executive Independent Director
354, Biyagama Road, Gonawala, Kelaniya

Mr. Jayaraja Chandrasekera is a senior banking professional who has held Senior Corporate Management
positions in one of Sri Lanka’s leading private commercial banks Hatton National Bank PLC, with a career
spanning over 35 years. He has handled Banking and Bancassurance related responsibilities during his long
tenure in the Financial Services Industry. He has also served in the Boards of National Savings Bank and Pan
Asia Banking Corporation PLC since 2015 to 2020.

He holds an MBA from the University of Sunderland UK, and a Postgraduate Diploma in Strategic
Management. He is also a member of The Association of Professional Bankers, Sri Lanka and has undergone
extensive training in banking, leadership, and management both locally and at prestigious overseas
institutions such as Mount Eliza Business Faculty, Melbourne University- Australia, National University of
Singapore, Lloyds Bank TSB- UK, Development Bank of Philippines and Association for Overseas Technical
Scholarship - Japan.

Mr. K.P.P.H. Mihiripenna — Non-Executive Independent Director
No 159/4, Pamunuwila, Gonewala (WP), Sri Lanka

Mr. Mihiripenna is a well-experienced finance professional with a long track record in the fields of accounting
and finance, holding key positions in several companies in Sri Lanka. He also possesses ample experience in
corporate management as a member of Boards of different entities, both in private and state sector.

Staring his career at Ernst & Young back in 1985, Mr. Mihiripenna has moved to hold key positions, including
Finance Controller and Vice President - Finance in private and public listed companies. These companies
include Muller & Phipps Ceylon PLC, Ceylon Beverage Holdings PLC (formerly Ceylon Brewery), Yashoda Group
of companies and Ruhunu Cement Company Limited.

Mr. Mihiripenna is currently a senior partner of Keerthi Mihiripenna & Co., a firm of Chartered Accountants.
He currently serves as the Chairman/Managing Director of Harvest Business Consultants (Pvt) Limited and
AMW Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Limited and also the Chairman of Berkly Associate (Pvt) Limited. Previously, he
held the positions of Deputy Chairman and Chairman of Milco (Pvt) Limited from February 2015 to May 2018
and also from February 2019 to January 2020. Further, he has been in the Management Board of Samurdhi
Bank for a brief period of 6 months in year 2018.
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Mr. Mihiripenna is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, Institute of
Certified Management Accountants of Sri Lanka and Association of Accounting Technicians of Sri Lanka. He
also holds a B.Com (Special) Degree from the University of Sri Jayawardhanapura. He has been an Associate
member from the inception (2005) of Sri Lanka Institute of Directors.

7.3 Other directorships held by the members of the Board

Name Other Directorships held
Mr. Thilak Hewawasam N/A
Mr. K. A. K. Jayatilake* International Institute of Development Training (Pvt.)
Ltd

Sustainable Engineering Concepts (Pvt.) Ltd
Sustainability Agenda (Pvt.) Ltd

Mr. H.N. J. Chandrasekera N/A

Mr. K.P.P.H. Mihiripenna Harvest Business Consultants (Pvt) Limited
AMW Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Limited
Berkly Associate (Pvt) Limited.

* Mr. K. A. K. Jayatilake’s shareholding in the companies identified herein are as follows:

e International Institute of Development Training (Pvt.) Ltd — 50%
e Sustainable Engineering Concepts (Pvt.) Ltd — 50%
e Sustainability Agenda (Pvt.) Ltd — 50%

7.4 Directors’ interest in shares

Other than the Directors identified below, none of the other directors directly or indirectly hold shares in the
Company as at the date of this Introductory Document:

Name of the shareholders Number of shares
Mr.K. A. K. Jayatilake 67,300,738
Mr.Thilak Hewawasam 944,445

7.5 Sale or Purchase of Shares by the Directors

Apart from the share transfer mentioned under Section 8.3 of this Introductory Document, there were no
sales or purchases of shares made by the Directors of the Company during the last 12 months prior to the date
of this Introductory Document.

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction 21



7.6 Corporate Governance Practices

The Company as a part of its transformation to a public company has identified the importance of good
corporate governance practices that would enhance corporate transparency by having a robust system of
internal controls, procedures and financial reporting.

At present, the Company has two Non-Executive Independent Directors on the Board. Names of the
Independent members of the Board are as follows:

Mr. H. N. J. Chandrasekera
Mr. K. P. P. H. Mihiripenna

The Board has appointed the above two Independent Directors to the following committees, that supports
maintaining a healthy governance structure and best practices:

1. Audit Committee
2. Remuneration Committee
3. Related Party Transactions Review Committee

7.6.1 Audit Committee

Audit Committee comprises of two non-executive independent directors where they are empowered to
oversee the financial reporting processes, internal controls, internal audit, whistle blowing activities, and
assess the independence and performance of external auditors:

Names of the Committee members are as follows:

Mr. K. P. P. H. Mihiripenna - Chairman
Mr. H. N. J. Chandrasekera

Functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

a) Overseeing of the preparation, presentation and adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements of
a Listed Entity, in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

b) Overseeing of the Entity’s compliance with financial reporting requirements, information
requirements of the Companies Act and other relevant financial reporting related regulations and
requirements.

c) Overseeing the processes to ensure that the Entity’s internal controls and risk management are
adequate to meet the requirements of the Sri Lanka Auditing Standards.

d) Assessment of the independence and performance of the Entity’s external auditors.

e) To make recommendations to the board pertaining to appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors.

7.6.2 Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company is established to assist the Board relating to determination of
the remuneration (cash and non-cash benefits) payable to the executive and non- executive directors of the
Company. The Committee comprises of 2 Non-executive Independent Directors.
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Names of the Committee members are as follows:

Mr. H. N. J. Chandrasekera - Chairman
Mr. K. P. P. H. Mihiripenna

The remuneration policy of the Company is to maintain a balance between providing a suitable compensation
to the employees and their performance for the best interest of the Company and the shareholders. The
remuneration packages recommended by the Board will be reviewed by the members of the Remuneration
Committee to provide required guidance when required.

7.6.3 Related Party Transactions Review Committee

The scope of the committee is to provide independent review and oversight of related party transactions to
ensure such transactions are executed in a transparent manner whilst being compliant with applicable
regulations upon listing.

The committee comprises of non-Executive independent directors as follows:

Mr. K. P. P. H. Mihiripenna - Chairman
Mr. H. N. J. Chandrasekera

7.7 Corporate Management Team

7.7.1 Management Team

The leadership team of the Company is responsible to ensure that the affairs of EML are carried out in a
manner that would achieve the desired objectives for the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Mr. K.A.K. Jayatilake — Managing Director
Please refer Section 7.2 of this Introductory Document for Managing Director’s profile.
Mr. A Rajaratnam - General Manger - Projects

Mr. A Rajaratnam has 30 years’ experience in Environmental Sector. He has a track record of 10 years in EML
Consultants Ltd, in various positions in Project Management and Consulting. Prior to joining EML, he had
worked for Central Environmental Authority for 15 years in various capacities in the Pollution Control Division.
He also served as a Project Management Specialist/ Deputy Project Director in the North East Coastal
Community Development Project in the Eastern Province, implemented by the Ministry of Nation Building
which was funded by the Asian Development Bank.

Mr. Rajaratnam is a Charted Environmentalist and holing a Master’s degree in Environmental Science from
University of Colombo. He has also attended several international and local trainings. He also participated in
several technical committees during his tenure at CEA.

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction 23



Mr. Piyal Ganepola — Advisor/ Consultant

Mr. Piyal Ganepola is a vastly experienced professional with a proven track record in the fields of Project
Management, Institutional Management, Urban Engineering- Infrastructure, Housing, Resettlement, Green
Technology, Disaster Management and Quality Management. During his career that extends over 40 years,
Mr. Ganepola has served as a consultant and advisor in many government institutions as well as in
international agencies operating in Sri Lanka. His major involvements include positions held as Advisor -
Engineering & Infrastructure - UN Habitat, Senior Technical Advisor - Applied Research Unit of UNOPS,
Consultant on Urban Infrastructure - Ministry of Megapolis and Western Development and General Manager -
National Housing Development Authority.

Mr. Ganepola holds a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from University of Peradeniya and Post Graduate
Diploma in Engineering from University of Moratuwa. He is also a Civil Engineer and a Fellow of Institution of
Engineers — Sri Lanka. He also has extensive training in areas such as Urban Infrastructure Planning,
International Construction Management, and Housing Policy from leading universities around the World.

Dr. Magdon Jayasooriya - Senior Consultant

Dr. Magdon Jayasooriya brings enormous wealth of experience and expertise to EML through his 35 years long
career in the state sector and private sector. He is one of the most senior experts in the sector of Ecology
and has contributed a great deal towards government efforts in sustainable development through a great
number of consultancies, a great extent of researches and through experience gained in working with
multi-national teams. His last position under the government service has been the Director, Plant Genetic
Resources Centre, Department of Agriculture (January 1996 - March 1998). His specializations extend across
the fields of Plant Systematics, Plant Ecology, Biodiversity Conservation and Plant Resources & Agro
biodiversity.

Dr. Jayasooriya holds a Ph.D. in Plant Systematics from City University of New York — USA, M.Phil. in Plant
Ecology & Plant Systematics from University of Peradeniya and a B.Sc. (Special) degree in Botany (Special
subject) Chemistry (Subsidiary subject) from University of Colombo.

Dr. S.M. F. Marikar — Senior Consultant

Dr. Marikar is a leading specialist in Sri Lanka in the statistical design and conduct of surveys and processing of
quantitative data and qualitative information. He counts over 20 years of experience in government
departments as the Director Planning and is well conversant with the functioning mechanism of the state
sector.

During his career, he has spearheaded design and conduct of over twenty socio-economic surveys including
design of questionnaires, implementation, monitoring and evaluation. He also has served as the Senior
Consultant in the Study on Impact Assessment of the rural community resulting from the development of a
major infrastructure project in Southern Sri Lanka. He has been the ‘Senior Project Economist’ for the ADB
funded mission ‘Sri Lanka Agricultural Rehabilitation Project, which was aimed at the assessment of the
achievement of social and economic objectives via agriculture development.

Dr. Marikar is a Ph. D holder in Natural Resource Economics from Colorado State University — USA and has a
Master’s degree in Agricultural Economics from Stanford University, California — USA. He also holds a B.Sc.
Agriculture (Second Upper) degree from University of Ceylon.
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Dr. S. Manitha Weerasuriya — Senior Consultant

Dr. Weerasuriya has extensive experience in project management and governance related training and
capacity building projects conducted through the USAID funded TALG and GUGSA programs since 2004. He is
the Managing Director of the International Institute of Development Training, IIDT, CEO of Nikini Automation
Systems (Pvt) Ltd (Sri Lanka). He was Lecturer at the City University of New York and served as the Assistant
Soil Chemist at the Rubber Research Institute of Sri Lanka.

Dr. Weerasuriya obtained his Ph.D. in Environmental Biology and Master of Philosophy Degrees in Biology
from the City University of New York. He has also obtained his masters in Botany and BSC in Agriculture from
the University of Peradeniya, Sri Lanka. He has received several Awards, Fellowships and Grants during the
academic career.

Mr. K H Muthukuda Arachchi

Mr. Muthukuda Arachchi is a veteran in Environmental and Natural Resources Management fields, having
served in government Institutions including Central Environmental Authority and National Water Supply &
Drainage Board in his career expanding over 30 years. He has held senior positions at different departments in
CEA including Director and Deputy Director positions. He has also served in different committees and Boards
of Ministries including Ministry of Industry & Commerce and Ministry of Local Government and Provincial
Council.

He has undergone foreign training relating to various aspects of Environmental Management in many Asian
Countries as well as in Europe.

Mr. Muthukuda Arachchi holds a Bachelor of Science (BSc.) - Biological Science Degree from the University of
Sri Jayewardenepura and a Master of Science (MSc.) Degree in Forestry and Environment from the University
of Sri Jayewardenepura.

7.7.2 Statement by the Managing Director

The Managing Director of the Company is or was not involved in any of the following events:
a) A petition under any bankruptcy laws filed against such person or any partnership in which he was a
partner or any corporation of which he was an executive officer;
b) Convicted for fraud, misappropriation or breach of trust or any other similar offence which the CSE
considers a disqualification.
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8.0 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

8.1 Stated Capital

The Stated Capital of the Company comprises of only Ordinary Voting Shares and details are as below:

Description 31-May-2021 31-Dec-2020 31-Dec-2019 31-Dec-2018
Number of Shares 90,900,000 90,900,000 90,900,000 90,900,000
Stated Capital (LKR) 90,900,000 90,900,000 90,900,000 90,900,000

There are no changes to the number of shares and Stated Capital subsequent to 31 May 2021 hence stands
unchanged as of the date of this Introductory Document.

Holders of the Ordinary shares of the Company have the right to one vote on a poll at a meeting of the
Company on any resolution, the right to an equal share in dividends paid by the Company and the right to an

equal share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the Company in liquidation.

There were no shares redeemed or re-purchased or there have been no reduction of stated capital taken
place during the 2 year period immediately preceding the date of the Introductory Document

Furthermore, there were no Ordinary Voting Shares or other class of securities subscribed or sold privately, in
conjunction with the public issue/ listing of Securities.

Please refer Section 6.6 of this Introductory Document for the details of existing shareholders of the Company.

8.2 Details of share issues during the period of 2 years prior to the date of Introductory
Document

There were no allotments of shares during the 2 year period preceding the date of the Introductory
Document.

8.3 Details of share transfers carried out during the period of past 2 years prior to the date of
the Initial Listing Application

Following share transfers have taken place during the past two years immediately preceding the date of the
initial listing application.

Date Transferor Transferee Number of shares

15% July 2020 Mr. H. N. J. Chandrasekera Mr. K. A. K. Jayatilake 67,300,738

Above share transfer was made at a consideration of LKR 0.01 per share.

Total number of shares transferred by Mr. Chandrasekera includes 67,111,850 shares directly held and
188,888 shares held “on behalf of employees” as a part of an Employee Share Ownership scheme previously
existed where subsequent to aforementioned transfer, 67,300,738 shares are directly held by Mr. Jayatilake
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(including aforementioned 188,888 shares) as the absolute and beneficiary shareholder. Those shares
previously held “on behalf of employees” have been identified in the audited financial statements (AFS) of
2018 and 2019 (note 14) as shares held by “Employees”. However, EML confirms that the shares were not
directly held by the employees, hence the term “Employees” used in the AFS should read as “Shares held on
behalf of employees”.

Please refer Section 8.4 of this Introductory Document for details of locked-in shares.

8.4 Details of shares locked-in

In term of Rule 2.1.1 (f) of the CSE Listing Rules, Shares referred as ‘locked-in’ in the below table will not be
available for secondary market trading on the CSE upon listing, and until the lock-in period is completed.

Shares ‘Locked-in’ and not ‘Locked-in’

No. of Shares as a

Category of The Months after which o ercentage of Total
Shareholders Locked-in Shares the Shares will be ) 2 . .
L. . . Shares Number of Shares in
(Pre-Listing) Available for Trading

Issue (Pre-Listing)

Shares held by non-public
. shareholders prior to the 6 months from the date
Non-Public L L 944,445 1.04%
date of Initial listing of listing

application - Locked-in

Shares acquired by way of a

o 12 months from the date
transfer within the 12
. . of transfer or 6 months
. months period prior to the L 74.04%
Non-Public L from the date of listing 67,300,738
date of the Initial Listing . )
o . whichever is longer
Application - Locked-in

Public Not Locked — in - 22,654,817 24.92%

Total 90,900,000 100.00%
The Company hereby confirms that the information furnished herewith shall remain unchanged until the

Date of Listing.

For the purpose of determination of the locked-in period for shares as per Rule 2.1.1 (f) of the CSE Listing
Rules, Non-public and Public shareholders have been identified according to the definition provided under
Section 2.1.1 of the CSE Listing Rules.

It should be noted that there is no minimum public holding requirement applicable for the Company since a
listing is sought on the Empower Board of the CSE.

No change to the current shareholding will take place from the date of Initial Listing Application to the date of
listing.
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8.5 Free transferability of shares

Upon the Ordinary Shares being listed on the CSE, such Shares shall be freely transferable except for those
Shares mentioned in Section 8.4 of this Introductory Document which will be locked-in as detailed therein.

8.6 Other Securities

The Company has not issued any convertible debt securities or any other class of shares or securities other
than the Ordinary Voting shares in issue as stated in this Introductory Document.

8.7 Takeover Offers

There have been no takeover offers by third parties in respect of the Company’s shares during the past two
years and no takeover offers have been made by the Company in respect of shares of third parties.
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9.0 OTHER INFORMATION

9.1 Degree of Dependence on Customers or Suppliers

The Company is not dependent on any specific Customer or Supplier in relation to business operations.

9.2 Dividend Policy

During the past 5 financial years, no dividend payments were made by the Company.

The Company may, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and the Companies Act No. 07 of
2007, make dividend payments to its shareholders by distribution of profits made from time to time. The
extent of the dividend distributions would depend on the level of profits, future capital requirements and

availability of liquid funds etc. Ordinary Voting shareholders of EML rank equal and pari-passu in respect of
dividend distributions.

9.3 Details of debt, loan capital and borrowings

a) As of the date of this Introductory Document, EML has not issued any debt securities or convertible
securities.

b) Details of the loans and other borrowings of the Company as of 31°" May 2021 (unaudited) are as follows:

Lender/ Party Amount Borrowed/ Outstanding Terms of the loan
Facility Limit (LKR) amount (LKR)
Hatton National Bank PLC 4,200,000 1,100,000 42 months at an interest

(HNB) — Property Loan*
National Development Bank

rate of AWPLR+3% p.a.

18 months at an interest

PLC (NDB) — Loan under 5,500,000 4,888,888 0
COVID-19 facility scheme* rate of 4% p.a.
Bank Overdraft (O/D) — HNB O/D limit of LKR 20.440.543 Revolving facility at an
and NDB ** 16,000,000 S interest rate of 7.1% p.a.
Total 26,429,431

* Land and building situated at No. 6/10, Rajamahavihara Road, Pita Kotte is pledged as the primary mortgage
for the loan obtained by the Company (Net book value of the property is LKR 48.5 Mn as at 31/12/2020 -
audited).

** 0/D facilities have been obtained against the Fixed deposits with respective banks.

Other than the above, there are no mortgages or charges on Company’s assets for these borrowings, or in
other forms as at the date of this Introductory Document.
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c) Details of Leasing, lease purchase and hire purchase commitments as at 31°* May 2021 (unaudited).

Lessor Amount Borrowed/ Outstanding amount Terms of the loan
Facility Limit (LKR) (LKR)

National Development 5 years at an interest rate
Bank PLC 3,500,000 3,092,698 of 12.25% p.a.
National Development 5 years at an interest rate
Bank PLC 3,000,000 2,643,980 of 10.5% p.a.
National Development 5 years at an interest rate
Bank PLC 6,300,000 6,130,360 of 9.25% p.a.

Total 11,867,938

Apart from the above, there are no any other liabilities under acceptance (other than normal trading bills) or
acceptance credits as at the date of this Introductory Document.

d) As at the date of this Introductory Document, the Company has not provided guarantees to any party.

9.4 Litigation, Disputes and Contingent Liabilities

A case has been filed at the Anuradhapura Labour Tribunal against EML by a consultant that was retained on
fee basis for a specific project, however claiming for EPF/ETF (Case No 27/Anu/2546/2020). The case is only
partly heard and pending for further hearing where the dates have not been fixed yet. In the event the case is
decided against the Company, the estimated maximum possible liability would be LKR 3,300,000/- which has
not been provided in the financial statements as of the date since the case is pending.

Apart from the above, as at the date of this Introductory Document, there are no
a) legal, arbitration or mediation proceedings which may have or have had in the recent past significant
effects on the Company’s financial position.
b) contingent liabilities that would affect current and future profits of the Company.

Apart from the above, an amount of LKR 691,540/~ corresponding to year 2019, which is mentioned under
Note 17 of the Audited financial statements of 2020 is a provision made in year 2007 in view of a Labour
Tribunal case on non-payment of EPF/ETF. The case was filed against EML by the Assistant Commissioner of
Labour — Anuradhapura, based on a complaint lodged by certain consultants who provided services in specific
projects. The provision has been made according to a computation of the officials of the Labour department.
The case was decided against the Company and an appeal has been made by the Company in year 2006. The
case is pending at the Court of Appeal as of date. Since the full provision has been made, the impact is already
reflected in the financial statements.

Please also refer section 6.8 of this Introductory Document for details on tax penalties imposed by the IRD on
pending tax matters as mentioned therein. Apart from the above, no other penalties imposed by regulatory
and state authorities on the Company.
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10.0 INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS AND ASSOCIATED RISK FACTORS

Risk Factors

Prospective investors who wish to buy shares in the secondary market should pay particular attention to the
fact that the Company and its business activities are subject to a number of risk factors which may be within or
outside the control of the Company.

These risk factors may be considered material to investors in making an informed judgment on the Company.
If any of the considerations and uncertainties given below develops into actual events, the Company’s
business, financial conditions or results of operations and prospects could be adversely affected. However,
given the importance of the industry in which the Company operates and due to strategic initiatives employed
by the Company, the business operations of the Company are expected to become sustainable in the
foreseeable future.

Risks Related to the Industry

Stable flow of market opportunities is not guaranteed — Service providers in the technical and management
consultancy services industry depends on projects undertaken by State and Private Sector organizations.
Therefore, the market is not stable and changes in the macro-economic environment plays a key role in
rapidly changing the market dimensions. Accordingly, revenue flows of the company will depend on the extent
of development projects available in the market. Furthermore, most of the projects are usually secured
through a competitive bidding process hence all players operating in the market compete for available
projects. Therefore, success rates are varying depending on each party’s ability to place a competitive bid, in
addition to managing costs and returns to a satisfactory level.

Risks Related to Business Operations of the Company

Variability in project timelines — There could be instances where project timelines vary due to delays of
project owners and other parties involved in a project. As the Company is only a single party to such projects,
any delays caused by other parties are beyond the control of the company. Due to such variations of timelines,
completion of project milestones assigned to EML also may vary hence revenue flows are subject to delays.
Having a portfolio of different projects at a given time will assist the Company to mitigate these risks and
manage cash flows effectively.

Involvement of third-party consultants The Company’s business model is as such, relevant experts are
engaged depending on project specifications, where having full time consultants on permanent basis creates
additional financial burden on the company. Project specifications are also varying from project to project;
therefore having relevant experts in the permanent staff is not viable. However, the captioned model may
result in resource constraints at times, as there is a dependency on third parties for services. EML is in
possession of partner entities that are capable of providing relevant services on projects, and long standing
business relationships maintained with such partners mitigates aforesaid risks.

Macroeconomic risks

Changes in the political environment — One of the main revenue sources for the Company is projects secured
in Government funded development activities. Therefore, continuity in development projects undertaken by
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the government is a key factor for revenue generation. In the event capital expenditure is reduced for
infrastructure, economic and social development activities, the Company’s business would be negatively
impacted. Accordingly, the government’s policy towards funding of such projects is important as far as EML'’s
business is concerned.

Contraction in economies — Slow-down in economic development has an impact on the launch of new
projects, both from the State sector and Private sector due to limitation in capital availability and related risks.
Furthermore, in a situation of a global economic recession, it could also have a negative impact on donor
projects funded by regional and international agencies. Such a situation could lead to a drop in the number of
projects undertaken by the Company, thereby reduce revenue flows.

Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on world economy

COVID 19 outbreak has caused a significant impact on world economies where regular economic activities
have been hampered throughout year 2020. Even in Sri Lanka, the GDP has recorded a negative growth of
3.6% in year 2020 (Source: CBSL Annual Report-2020). However, the government has continued its
development projects with best possible efforts amidst certain interruptions due to lockdowns. Furthermore,
private sector projects and donor funded projects may also go through a challenging period in terms of
executions due to capital constraints and movement restrictions etc.

However, in year 2020, the Company’s revenue has improved by 6% compared to that of 2019, showcasing a
low impact from COVID-19 pandemic. Faster the country combats the virus and recovers from its present
situation; EML could capitalize on new projects in order to sustain its business growth. Successful vaccination
against COVID- 19 is a key driver of socio — economic revival, where state and private sector would be able to
focus on development projects.

Risks Related to the Shares and Secondary Market Trading

Non-existence of prior market for the Shares - Prior to listing, there has been no public market for the
Company’s Shares. There can be no assurance that an active trading market for the Shares will develop or if
developed, will be sustained, or that the market price of the Shares shall not decline below the Reference
Price. The Reference Price is the price at which the shares will be listed on the CSE and may not be indicative
of the market price for the Company’s Shares after listing. In addition, once trading commences for the shares,
market prices are subject to fluctuations depending on a company’s financial performances, macro-economic
factors and investors’ perception on long term business sustainability of the company.

SME sector company investment considerations - It is a general perception that the risks are greater for a
relatively smaller size business as compared to a company with a significant capital investment, asset base and
a market presence etc. As such, potential for success for a company classified as a SME is evaluated taking into
consideration of quantitative factors such as capital/ assets base, market share etc. and the qualitative factors
such as strengths of the management, business development strategy, Corporate Governance structures etc.
Therefore, potential investors are advised to make an appropriate assessment of these factors and associated
risks when making an investment decision.

Where EML is concerned, the long-standing track record and strong presence in the market are indications of
stability and potential for long term sustainability of its business. In addition, the vastly experienced
management team is a key strength that will enable continuing efforts to secure new projects whilst delivering
the best quality service, therefore will assist them to sustain business operations in the long run.
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11.0 STATUTORY DECLARATIONS

Statutory Declaration by the Directors
31°t August 2021

We, the undersigned, who are named in the Introductory Document as Directors of E M L Consultants Limited,
hereby declare and confirm that we have read the provisions of the CSE Listing Rules and of the Companies
Act No. 07 of 2007 and any amendments to it relating to the issue of this Introductory Document, and that
those provisions have been complied with.

This Introductory Document has been seen and approved by us and we collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and confirm that after making all reasonable enquiries
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission of which would make any
statement herein misleading or inaccurate. Where representations regarding the future performance of EML
have been given in the Introductory Document, such representations have been made after due and careful
enquiry of the information available to EML and making assumptions that are considered to be reasonable at
the present point in time by our best judgement.

Name Signature
Mr. Thilak Hewawasam Sgd.
Mr. K. A. K. Jayatilake Sgd.
Mr. H,N, J. Chandrasekera Sgd.
Mr. K.P.P.H. Mihiripenna Sgd.
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ANNEXURE 1

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PAST 3
FINANCIAL YEARS
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Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31t December 2020
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EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMIBER 2020
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H 4 } J Mo,6, Balahenarnulla Lane,
mgi kKal rupasingne & co. / Kirulapone. Colombo 6, St Lanks
ABTRREE ALCOOMIANTS ~ — Telephone - +84 11 2815655, 5768667, 5768607

" Fax:+94 11 2199819 Web : www.mglkalrupco.com
Emall : kalrupca@mgikalrupco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EML CONSULTANTS (FRIVATE) LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of EML Consullants (Private) Limited, which
cormprise the Statemient of Financial Position asat 31 December 2020, and the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Reselve and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary nfsig:ciiﬁ_cant accounting policies.

n our ppinien, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial pesition of
the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance for the year then ended in
accordance with Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities
wneler thuse standards are fudther deseribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audlt of the Financial
Statements segtion of our report. We are independent pf the Company in accordance with the gthical
requlreinents of the Codeé of Frhics tssued by OA Sii Lanka that are selevant 16 our audit of the financial
dtatements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
CIsr o piriam,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Stalements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Sri Lanka Financlal Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities and for such internal contral
as management determings is necessary te enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
malerial misstatement, whether due to frawd or grror,

I preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a golitg concern, disclosivg, as applicable, miatters related (o going voncern and using the
zaing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or s no reallstic alternative but o do so.

Those charged with governance are wsp{:mlhfe for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

(Cond......)
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Mo 6, Balahenamulla Lane,

mg: Kal rupasinghe & co., Cirapone, Colombo, 51 Lanka
Telephone : +04 11 2815655, 5768667, S768607

i Fax: 490711 2199819 Web: www metkalrupta.com
Emall : kalrupeo@maikaliupra.com

S TERIL ACLIDATANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT (CONTD......)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financinl Statements

Our objictivies are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
frea from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
meludes our opinion, Reasonable assurance 15-a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted m accordance with SLAWSs will always detact a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatempents can arise [rom fraud or error and are considered  material if, individually or in the
aggrogate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users @ken on the
basis of these financial statements,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. D7 of 2007, we have obtained all the infermation
and explamations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper

accounting records have been kept by the Cun‘lpﬂ%—)
Vg (ot Ao S

MG1 KAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Colombo
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MG EAL Rupasinghe é Co, Paged
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2020 20119
MNute Rs Rs
Reyonue 3 133,740 043 126001, 555
[t Cost (12,776,025} (49,014,330}
Gross profil 30,904,018 37.056,239
Chhes incenie " T1LE50412 294,118
Admministrativie expiises (33,619,247 (A7 80y 411
Cperating profit / (loss) 9,146,063 (541,034
Elnaniee ingdimin 22344952 2.??3_,58;
Flranee costs (1,892,402) (2,391, 142}
Finance income / (casts) - net 5 32,550 (117,557}
Prufit{ (Loss) before tax 4,534,633 (638,391)
Izeuirie tax B (7L L6 (21, 357)
Profit / (Loss) tor the vear H.H25,936 1920, 156)
Other Comprehensive Inggme
Surplits from petiving benefit obligation 16 PHLRST 485,145
Prefermd Tax effect on detuarial luss on defined Benelits plar (110,724) 167,22
Total comprehensive ingome ¢ tlass) for the year 4,506,094 (502,963}
Eamings / {loss) per share - basic (Rs) 7 0.10 10.01)

Theaccounting palicics and notes on poages 3 40 |7 form an integrnd parr of these finpneial statements:

Calombo

irad umie 2021
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MGIKAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartored Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 315T DECEMBER

Assels

Non-current assots

Property, plantand equipment - Freehold
Property, plant and equipmént -Leasebald
Total Non-current assels

Current assels

Trade dnd Chhier Regsivables
Ieome Tas Refund

Shar - Tesm Investmients
Amount dide rrom Rislated Party
Cashi and cash vgpatvalents
Total current assels

Tatal assels

Lquity and liabilities
Capital and reserves

Stated capitai

Ketained earnings

Total Sharcholder's funds
Non-current liabilities
Borrwings

Detinedd benefit obligations
Dretipred e tox Fiobilities
Tuatal Non-curfent liabilities
Current liabilities
Bormowings

Trade and ather payables
Amount duc b Related Party
Total chrrent liabilities
Tatal labilitles

Total equity and Habilities

Naotes

10{a)
10'(1)

14

15

s

18

Pige 2

2020 2019

Rs Rs
51,192,283 54,017,756

10,720,082 -

61,915,965 54,017,756
36,253,314 29458053
1,696,330 1,698,330
42742307 38,774,514
20,184 59 20,190,944
31,235,214 27,005,841
132,135,991 117222762
194,052,956 171,240,518
0900000 3,100,000
1101451 1.595 089
102,001,451 92,495,352
70,0000 3,020,125
i Brn T e 368 550
22% 70 1,415,352
13,175,655 9,004,037
19504410 17,388,830
47,067,320 34,537,270
12,404,000 12,713,940
78,975,820 69,741,099
93,051,475 78,745,136
194,052,956 171,240,518

I'he accountng policis and nates un pages 5 o 17 form zn el et of thiss [inancial statemits,

The Financial Statements are In complinnce with (he sequicenients of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007,

\ vl

Clttef Fluaneial Onficer

T Soacc of [Hedctom s responsible (G B peedaraton ond prissentition of these Finmiclal Stal@mints

Approved ang signed for and ot behalf of Uhe Boar,

Columba

Hmodn - Al

Direvtor
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe 8 Co Page 3
Chartered Accountants
EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN LOUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T DECEMBER
Stated Retained
capital earnings Total
Rs. Rs. s,
Halance as at 31 December 2018 40,900,000 2,098,345 92,998,345
Ttitl couniprehensive loss fir the vear (502 963) (502 Bad)
Balanee as al 31 Décember 2019 G0,900,000 1,595,382 92,495,352
Total commprishenstve tnoome for- the yoear 0,506, (4% 9,506, Hu0
Balance as ai 31 December 2020 SOLA00.000 11,100,481 102,007,451
The aceounting policies and notes an pages 3 ko 17 form an integral part-of these financial statements,
ZOPASIN,
Colombo ',f' s NN
23 June 2021 (3
|_'fs"
AN
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Accountanfs

EMIL CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST DECEMBER
MNoie

Cash generaled from / (used in) vperations

Proers e (loss) biafors lax

Ad justments fur

Draprecation

lierest incoms

Gain on Dhsposal of Motor Vehicle

Irserest exponse

Lo Frateeriest o Finunee Lisase

Ciramity "rnwisipn

Bad Dbls Wikien off / Reversal of Impairmient on Debitors

Writlen off trade payables

Operating Peofit Beforo Working Capital Changes

Changes in working capital:

- {Imerease) | Decrease in Trade and Other Receivable

- [Incrensa) [ ecrmace in Amuounts Do Froo, Belated Party
Inerease | (Decreased in Trnde and Ofher Paynbles
nervas / (Becrease) o Armounts Due To Relired Povty

‘Cash genemted from /| lused in) gperatinns

[t paic

Tncome Tes ¢ WHT Paid

Net generated fram/ (used ind operaling activitics

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchace of praperty, plart apd dquipwn

Interest recoivad

investment [ uplitt in short borm investiment

Netcash tused indf generated [rom investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Movemient in' borfowing
Nel eash generaled from / tused in) financing activities

Net Increase / {Pecreasel in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash hauivalents at the Tind of the Year 13

Colomba
25 June 2021

Page 4
2020 2019
Rs Rs
9,538,633 (BER,541]
43794976 3,730,551
{2.234,052) (2.273,585)
(015,000
345,467 545,512
102,584 25114
1,006,234 1LA00,503
- 35710484
- (658,2499)
1,923,302 5,355,089
B 154913 (B12:413)
6,354 {364,110
7,430,041 {11,667 365)
(309, 900) 6,906, 478
38094, 461 (582,323)
43467) {395,917
A {110,624)
3599414 [1.28H.863)
(134,000 {30, 294)
22349572 2,273,505
(3,967,593} (HU8.342)
(1.B61,941) 1068949
6,194 455 {1,000, 500)
6,194,455 (1,002,600
7,881,924 (1,222,714)
U TORT 10,928,725
17,587 9349 9,706,111
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MGIKAL Rypasinghe & Co. Page 5
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSUL TANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

General information
The EML Consultants (Privaty) Limived Is o limited Liability Company tncorparatsd on 10th March 1993 and

demniciled tn Sri Lanka. The Registered Office and Principal Mace of business of the Compuny 1< situated as No:
B0, Rajarnaha Vilors Lane, Rujassaha Vikers Risad 'ita Keatte.

The Company s etgaged i the =srore of offerlag consullaney services i the chvezones of Engineering
Enwviramment: Natural | Scienees Soclil Suenees, Techinicd]l Bolences, Technlea), Floancal pnd Mirmaganiont
Services ele, W orgardzations withln and oubsivle S Lanka.

These financial staterments have been approved for ssue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2021

Summary of significant accounting policies
The first sol of financial stotements prepored m accordance with the "SLFES for Small and Mediumsized Entitiss'
Issued by ther nstituce of Chartired Accountonts of Sei Lortka, The principal accounting pollcies applied in the
preparaten of these fnancial staements are set oul below. These pelicies have been conststently applled 1w all
Hie years presented, unless otherwise stahed,

21 Basis of preparation

Thu tinancial stotements of EML Consultunts (Private) Limited Imve lreen prepared in aceordance sith the ‘Sr
Lenka Financinl Reporting Standards far Small and Mediumesized Entities' (SLFRS for SMEs), They kave been
preparal under the histeriesl cist convenivan, os atodifld by the fir valuation 9f financial assews subsequently
b anerfized costwherever applicable which ars initally recognized at fair value

The prispiratinn oF finaneial stemiensts in conformity with the SLERS for SMEs requites the use of certain entica]
areounting estimatos. [t olso roquires: management o exercise It judgmen: 10 the priocess of applying ths
meounting policles: Avegsinvoliving o higher degres of judgmont oF complexity, or qeers whipa assumptions and
datlmations are signlficant to the fnanelal statements. -

22 Forelgn currency branslation

fay — Fuactionel wnd presedtation currency

Tterms included in the financial statements are measured using the currency. of the priracy economic
amvirgnmeit in which the entity aperntes (the fuctiongl elirsney’), The fnoneial statenients ure pregenibed in
"Srl Lonlea Rupees”, which iy considered thee Company's functivnal and presentation TUTTETICY,

thh Trissiitions aud bildiices

Foreten carrency transactions are ransiazed ot the fonetidnal curreney using the exclinnge rates prevailing al
thie dintes of the trapsactions. Pordign evchange galns apil losses nesultng from the settlement of such transactions

and frony the ranslation at yedtand exchange rates of monetary fssets apd habilities demominated in foreign
CLTFEREIeS, ar riscagneeid in prufit or loss

graign exchange gains and lnsses are presented in profit or loss within finam ineame/ (costs) - mets

:E CHARTERED
e | ACCOUNTANTS | oy

o ‘a
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Ca. Page v
Chattered Accoiintants

EML CONSULTANTS (IPRIVATE) LIMITET
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. Suinnary of significant accounting policies (Contd)
23 Properly, plant and equipment

Propetty, plant uad equipriont is stated ab histirical cost loss accumulated deprecistion and 2ny accumulated
impairment losses,

tal  Meassrenment

Historical eostincludes expenditure that is directly attributabls w Bringing the asset to the location frd condltian
riceessary for it o be cupable of Gperating in the manner Intended by management.

The subsequentt costs are included in the assel's corpving dmoumt or recognized a3 a sspamte agsel, s
bpprdpriaw, anly swhen il s probable hal fuiire ecotiomic benefits associated willh the fem wil fow o the
Cimipary and the e o (e eem aan be meassent wehably The careping amount of the replaced prarts are
derporgmized. Al repaies and ietendinie e chargad L e stment 6f comprehensive income lring the
finaniial perlod i which they ane Inciirsad,

) Depreciation
Landl s rot depreciated as t = deemeid to havie an indullnite e
Depreciation on pther assets js charged so as to allocate the cost af pssens less iheir residual valtes over tieir

ssumuted userul lives using thie straighl e method conmigneing frivn thig month in which the asset [s ayailable
file use. On disposal of assels depreciation |s ealoulatid exclusive of the month in which disposn] fakes place.

The estimuted Lselul lives rnge of property, plant and equipment i as follows:

Betldings 20 yeairs
ompites Eqaiprent 3 yuars
Fumiture and (itings A years
Chice Equipment 4 yars
Mator vehicles 3 ydars

Tht assets” residual valoes, useful Ties and deproctaon methads are evlewedd, and ddjusted prospectively i
appragriate, i there k= an indleation af # significant chonge sincs the last reparting dage.

Ay asset’s caseying amount is written dovwn immediately to it recoverabile amount it the carrving amount i<
greater than ity estimated recovernblie imount.

Gairs and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the procesds with the carrying amount and are
recognized within other gains / (lbases) - not, in the statemeit of r.um'[:qruhl-n'six‘i"lncrm'e_._
A NPASS
QE=lg
i
=i

X[ CHARTERRAT |o=
--l;-'-c':ﬂu”fﬁ“ (] 0

3 Iy

- i
b r;),' ) ,I\,r\_.'l-'
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MOGTRAL Rupasinghbe & Co, Page 7
Chartered Accountants

EMI CONSULTANTS {PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. Summary 0f significant accounting palicive (Contd)

24 Impatrment of non-financial assets other than invenlorivs

Assels that are subject to deprociation or ameortization are ossessed ek reporling dite to desrmine whether
thuere s any indicaton that the agsets are impaired. Whete Dk (e ariy Indicotioh Halan asset may ke impaleed,
the carrving value of the asset (or easi-generating unit to which thie asset hias bean dllocated) |s tested for
impainrient. A lrn].mlm'mnt loss s pecognized Qor the ammmt by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds jis
recoverable amount: The recoverable amopunt is the higher 0F sn asset’s (nr CGU s fir value ise costs to sell tnd
valuwin e For the pyrposes of assesing impaimment asscls dro groupisd o the Wivsst LWovels for which thers
are separarely dentifiable casb Tows (OGS Nan-taancil] assuts uther than g;‘uniwllf thist suffesm! an
Imprairifient ace pebiewed (o0 possibde reveis o the L e af o) repHrting date,

25 lnventories

Inventarss am comprising of jobs at work in progross Al each repornng date, nventories i dssessed for
impairment. If inventoey 15 impanred, e caerying ameoant is reduced b its solling price less costs Wi complets
amed sl the imasirment foss 15 seognezoed Irmmisllotely In profll or liss

26 Fioancial assets - loans and receivables

261 Clossificatiog

Loans and receivibiles ave non-derivalive lnancial ossels with foid e déteriminable payvments that are ool
quictest in an aetive miarket. They are cluded in curnanit séscts, except for malurities graater than 12 months after
this el OF thee reporting period, Thise are classified as nen‘current assets. the Company’s [oans and receivablis
comppriae Fade and other secelvablis and cost and casl equivalent i the <tatement of financial position [Nozss
2fvand 2.4y,

262 Redugad o soned measurenien!
L ares mecolvabilfes ar dniteally mcaminod ar tair value anl subsequentiv carred. acamestized cost CEHg b
ehentive interest mel hod,

27 bmpairment of financial assels - assils saied at amortized cost

The Company assesses at the end of ach reporing perod whether there 14 aljéctive svidencs et a Hnancal
nsserar group of financal assets is impaitsl. A financial aséol oe § group of financial ass2ts 5 impatnxd and
tnjralrment losses ore incured nly I there §5 Glisetive euldenie ullirtpairmEnt as & result of one ar mone evenis
that seeurred afler te inftal recognition of the asset {0 "loss event'j wnd thar lossevent (or events) has an impact
an the estimated future ensh fiows of the financial wsset or group of fimacial sseets that can be rellnblv-estimated

Evidence wf Impuirment may (nclude indications that the debtors or o group of debras s ENPRRENTINE
sgnifioant Hnancial diffieulty, default or delinguency in interest or principal payments, e probability that they
wiil eoner bankruptey or other financial reorganization, and whate obsrvable dots lidicafe thi thore 8 o
fmeasurable dcresss in theestimatid futune canly Tows, such ac chingus i arrears or reconomie comditions that
ciiprelnns wilh Hefaults 9.'*5;1‘,

/'—“\'s.

5[’ CHARTERS I'F
LCOLNTANT'S)
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MG KAL Rupasinghe & Co, Page §
Cliartered Accountants

EME CONSULTANTS (PRIVATEI LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Contd)

27 Impairment of financial assets - assels carried at pmortized cost (Contd)

For luars and recelvables categbey, (e amount of the loss |s measured as fhe différece betwien the asset's
currying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding futare credit lasses that have
not been incurred) discountesd ar the financnl asset's ongmal effective inierest rabe. The carrying amaunt of Qe
asset s roducad and the amauinl of the lids 1= recognteed 1o hie skitemnent of comprehensive inceme 1o loan or
held-w maturity invesiminnt bas o varalike interest mte the discount rate for messsiting any impalrment 1oss is
the Current effective interest rate dutermnined undie i confract. A8 o pracieal expedient, 1 Comipany may
s dmphleient on i Dasis ofF on fnserumient's fie valoe uging on obssrvable market prico

35 Trade receivables

Trade trcelvables are reoognized initially ab the transagtion price, They are subsequently mepsured atamortzed
cost using the effective interest-method. less pravision: for impairment. A proviston for Impalrment of trade
receivables le establiched when there Is ubjective evidence tha) ihe Compang will not be able (o colleet all
amunts due according to the odginal terms of reaivibles,

29 Cashand cash equivalents

Forhe purposes of the cash How stawment, cash and eask equivalents:comprise cashi In hand, deposits hald ay
cilll weith banks, riet of bank averdrifts, Bank overdrafis are shown within borroswings in current liahilities on the
statement of financial posttion:

210 Stated capital

The ordinary stares are clasaiflod s oxudiy

211 Trade payables

Trade payables are recogmized initially at the transaction price-and subsequontly méasared st amortized ciigt
ising he ebachve interest method.

212 Borrowings

Borrowings are inftially recogoleed ot the fransection pride including transavtion costs, These are subsequently
stated at amortized cast,

213  Bomowing cosis

All burriwing costs gre recogiized as an expense in statement of comprehensive inceme In the peritd in which
thisy are incurred, =

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction



MG KAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page 4
Chartered Accountants

ML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant aceounting policies (Contd)

214 Provisions

Provisions are recogaized whan the Company has a present legal or construative obligations s n tesult of past
ovants, it s probabie that an outflow of resolrces embodying economic benetits will bi requined to selle the
abligatipi and 4 rellable estimate of the amotnt of the abligation cin be made,

Whizre there are 8 number ot simildr dbligations, the Ukelihood that an outflow will be riquired insetilement 1s
eletermined by considering the elass of obligations as o whole, A prndlsion s secognized even if the likeljhood ot
an o flow with respect fo-any woe e included in the same class of obligation may be smiall.

The provisions are measured df te present value of expencditures sxpected to be required tn setthe the nbligation,

215 Fmplovee benefit obligations

fab  Dwfhied benefit plans - Gratudity

Deetinied: benedt plan dalines an dmbdnt of benedi that an emploves wlll peeeive an retirement, wsually
dependent gn one or mote faotors such as years of service and ompersation, The defined benefit plan comprises
the gratuity provided under the Act, No 12 of 1983,

The ligbility recognized in the statement of francial position in respece of defined benelit plan is the prisent
vislue il thie defired bengflt obligarlan af the dateof Hie stalement of finincial pheition togethir with adjostments
lar unrecognized past-service costs. The dafined benefls obllgation s caleulated armually psing the formoda
methud The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determingd by discounting the estimated futhre
cash sutlinws using appropriale interest rales.

Past-spryice costs are reengnized immediately in statement of enmprehensive income, unloss the changes (o the
detined bosefit plan ane conditional on the employess rematning in service for i spectfied pariod of Hme {the
vesting period). [o thiscase, the fastservice costeane wintorbasd on o straightlive basis over the vesting perliod,
Ackuadial gains and lusses arsing from pxpenence adinsients and changes 0 dciuarial assumptions bre
revdgnlae] dnmediane VL e st L ab com reehonsivi fagoime

The agsumptinns bagsed on svhych the resclis of the octuanal valuation was determined, ore peleded o Note 17
to b Natasicial Slatemer s

bl Defined contribmiion plans i
All [ocal employeis of the Company are members af the Emplovess' Provident Fund and Employses' Trost Fund,
lo which thetr smplover contributes 1206 and 3% respoctively of such Smiploveis’ bisic or consalidated wigi or
salary, cost of Living and all other allowances, Tlie wntribulions gre recognized as empliyee benefit expense
when they are dug, If contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess by recognized a4
ar nssel f’;\‘;?&ﬁl‘c}

.‘-.'.'r CHASFELD |
= RECOURTANTS
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MGT KAL Rupasinghe & Co. Pago 10
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSLLUANTS (FRIVATE! LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

2 Summary af significant accounting policies (Contd)
216 Curmentand defersed ineome tax

The tux expense for the period comprizes current and deferred tax, Tax s neognized in profit or loss, except that
a chatge ptributable to an ilem of income or expense recognized ks other comprehensive idcoime s ali
recagnized directly in other eompiahiensivie income

The provision for current income tax is based o the eloments of income nd expienditure a5 repoitad in (he
fancial staterments and computed in accordance with the provision uf the Inlamd Revenue Act, No.10 of 2006,

Diaterrad inome tax is provided n full, dsing B lHebllite method, on w@inporary differences artsing batwiisn the
10n Biysi f assete and Hobiliies g thile careylig amounts in the financial sstements. Deterred incame ax is
detterinineyd vsing tav rates (and laws) Hae have been onacted vestbstane v enactead B the aporting dati and
awe gxpectad o apply whien the selatit dolitnod Tncime bk dssits is nealized Gr the' Usfecred nedmu tax bl
L= suttlid,

Deterred income tax dssels are recognized to the extent that it is probable thal future wapble profit will be
avallible sgainst whicl the temparary differetices can be ulilized,

217 Revenue recognition

e Renderiag of Sevvices

levenuie comprises th fnir value of the copsideration received or moelvabile for the services rendered |6 the
ardinary coursie of the Company's activities, Revenue iz shown et of all applicable raxes and levias raturns,
regates and discoun s

by dnterest fucome

Interest incdemie b recognized using e sffechive intemst method,

218 Fapenditure

The expitpouis are necogn ized iy an acerual bisis. All expenses incurred (0 the ordinary cours of business and o

maintiining property plans and squipment st of elliciency s charged agalnst Invoire in arriving it the
reguiite far theyear,

For the purpose of presenlation of the statement of comprehensive income information, expense by function
mutheid is used to classify expenses:

219 Dividend distribution

Dividend dlstribution b the compuny's shareholders fs resngnized as a lability in the Company's finanein]
statements in the penad in which, the dividends are approved by the company's shareholders.

2.1  Comparatives

wear.

P
©f esantznEn
d-{. ACCOUNTANTE
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Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITEL

SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020 2019
Rs R
3 Revenue
R o Cabbultaney Serdicts 133,740,953 126,070,585
133,740,942 126,070,545
4 Other income
At Ingame 25,000
Gain om Uispesal of Mokisr Viehicle SO15000 .
Creditor Weltlen Bk - 6342490
Exchunge (Loss) /[ Gain 2810412 {364,151}
11,850,412 293118
5  Finance income and costs
I!":'um_m-. HrCemes
Tteeest Tt 3334958 2373585
2,234,952 2,273,365
Py custs
Tttt o horrow as [1789,418) {2,303.028)
L Tntetest dn Flnanoe Loses L0298 (2H.114)
|1.892_402) 12,361,143)
Finance income { (costy) - net 342,550 (117.557)
i Incoone Tax
Statemeni of Profil / loss
Currerit Tax Fxpimse . -
[Peferred Toax Han07 241,385
Tax chame reperted in Tncome Statem énl 12697 251,545
Statement of othier comprehensive income
Dufeérvied Tax etfect on actuuriol gain/|less) on dufined Bnelits it LT 67 920
Tax charge directly to other comprehensive ineoms 110,724 67,920

Pl wpplicabile tng eate ot preofit ioas 14%

6T [lae pay g e Comnpany's (lussy 7 profit befine thx diflers fromy (e (hooretical amount thst would arise wsing the basic (ax
b applizhle i pridivg o the Camppany o8 ol

thoss) | profil belore tax 4,535,033 (638,391)
Adds Expondsiurs Msallowed Under S 26 BA0ATE 4294025
Lasis: Alloveable Espenses inchiding Blsinoss | osses set-oll [6,255,155) (1,361.849)
Lads : Investment oome VL 24% A5y [L275,585)
Profil from Trade or Business = t

Adels Interes| Income / Investment Tnopm 11,240,952 3.977,545
Less s Deduction under Section 32 (Noh taxalble pait & allowiehle Tosses set-alfl (17,249,852} {2.373.585)
Taxable Invome . =

Thx Experse an Profil from (he Bustnes =
Tax Expuonse on the Inleres) Fregme
Total Incme Tax Expense

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction



MG RAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page 12
Chartered Accountanhi

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 Eamings !{Lozs) per share

Rzric wrrings / (loss) per shuo i5 ciloulated by dividing thee prafil ) (o) sitsbstable W sty bolders of the Comprny by
the weighted average number of arding ry dyires i ksue durihg the yeaf:

2030 2079
Prywide {ltes ] atrributahle fo equity boldes of e Company 4,504,099 (ETEERE T
Weighted average number of oedinary Shsres (o issie (NDte 15) .90, 000 Y]
Basic Earnings 7 [l oss) per share (Hel o SN U]
8 Trade and uther receivables
Trade pisocivablis 34,305,824 1739572
U1 Provisian for Impaisien| {1 879973) (1,875,973
2425851 15,318,751
Projéer work-insprog ross . -
Mabitizmtitin advances for projecls - 10,194,958
Croposit and prepayments 471250 374,063
Cither rovenvables [See Mot (o) below)] 3386218 3174261
36,281,319 29,456,033

fa] Other receivalblis mainly consist of Interes Reccivable of Re, 407,631/ 2019 - Re. 76273341, Ramboll KCHT mceivable
fis: S42.068/- (2019 - Re, 642,069)+) and ESC Recoverable Re 1562785/~ L2019~ Rs, 1,447, 77455,

9 Ineome Tax Refund

Eialievoss ae Ll bsginminig OF e visnr 1,685,290 1,567 702
| s ¢
Ancome tax provisim fyr the yea
1,658,330 L387.702
Adlid
With Huolding Tix = 11628

Batance al the end of the year 1,698,330

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction



MEGT AL Rupusinghe & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FME CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

104a) Property, plant and equipment « Freehnold

Pitgae 13

Balance as at Additions Disposals Balance a5 af
0101 2020 Adjugtments  during the vear  during [he year 31122020
Rs TR Its. Rs. Rs.
At Cost [ Valuation
Land VB I TR 00000
Bnfitgzs 45, BAR W20 - 458089209
Land & Building s proversinat H.138113 - e 4,134,113
Mutor Vohiiclos 14,568 360 - - 4,505 424 10,064,932
Officy Eguipmente 1,937,509 - 15,000 . 1,952 479
Computer Equipments 171,710,684 - 112,000 - 11830404
Finmitune & Filllhgs Ad4106,837 . - 3.416,8357
Tatal 100,072,332 4 13400 4,908,928 853,257.404
Disposals
Balance as al Chamge for the  Adjustment Halanes a5 at
(i1.01.2020 Ad|ustmpents year during the year  3112.2021)
Hsa Iis. Rs LLER Rs.
Depreciation
fuildings [4. 235,458 (WEERTT 15332357
Latnd de Building lmprovenieng Tie 150 1,417 848 - 208,00
Mutor Vildclos |4 D51 Ha - 4,905,528 10059037
Ol Egulprnis 1844018 e.T8Y = 1,490 Bpa
Computer Eyuipments L2l e 326,339 - 11,538,016
Furnbture & Fitlings 3,044 514 131,103 - 175,917
Tatal 46,054,576 = 2,950,473 4,908,928 44,105,121
Net Book Valae of Assets (4t Cost)  3017.756 51,192,283
L0 Propery, planl and equipment -Leasshold
Dispusaly/Adju
Balance us at Additions Transfer to stments during  Balance as al
1,01.2019 duripg the year  freehold assets the yent 31122019
Ris. R, Hs, Hs. R
ArCost/ Valuabipm
Minton Withicies 710267 13347, 144 702671 12347, 16
Total TADLAETG 123748 = 702,670 12.347,146
Balanceasal Charge fur the Transfer lo Dispasals / Balance as ul
01012020 vear (reehold assets: Adjustment F1.12.2020
Its. s Rs. Hs. Hs.
Depreciation
Mt Vehldlas 702626 1620454 - 702670 1,620,446
Tatal 7,102,676 1,620,464

Net Book Value of Assets (Al Cost)

10,726,652
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MGI KAL Hupasinghe & Ca, Plage 14
Chartered Accountants

FAMI CONSULTANTS (FRIVATE LIMITED

SIGNIFICN | ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO'THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020 2009
Its: Rs:
11 Short - Term Investments
Irviestenents i Fised Doposlts in Forelpn Currency L7450 IETTR6
42, 74E307 ATT9,614
12 Amount due from Related Party
Amounts D from Relsted Companies 41 19,61 R e R 3
Amaounts Chae from Directors and Shaveholders. 24 0] 567,792 567,742
20,154,591 20,190,944
13 Cashand eagh equiivalenis
Fuvoirable Cash & Cash Equivalont Balimoes
Fareign Saving Avcountz 13145213 9.927 058
Foeal Saring Accounls 15,103 {uy 16,974,510
Loocal Liyreni Acctunts LI T o, 280
PetryCash Ui, s L3000
Total Favourable Cash e Cash Equivalent 31,235,244 27005801
Usipropicralile Cash & Coshe Egrivalént ﬂ(‘&_‘IIJ_'I'EI-'S_
Loval Curmmt A ccounts 13,637,305 173855830
Total Unfavourable Cash & Cash Equivalent 13,637,305 17,389,530
Fotal Casli and Cinh EguliiTent for the Purpose of Statenitt of Cagh Plows 17.587.939 9, 708,4111
14 Stated capital 2020 209

Db Y year shaveholding shopeaf e congpamy has D ohieged anil B cleint skirdoldess bagithernil i i et Bsfidinggs
came s follouts

Mamme of the Sharsholdir Nunlrey of Sharys Value (Rs.) Value (Hs.)
AR Tavartinke 700,738 67300738 67,300,738
Thelak Mewawnsam e 944445 G4
P Burndid i Sl b St T Sl oy
DG Wileminye 725 Al 14725406 14,725,406
TAT Warlgopiilp Tan2 T4 TAnLTI 7363744
80,900.000 90,500, 14 1,904,000
ff};"q' s'r"l'r\\
e 3%

'::__,_,.- \'."‘
i AMUETILE W
1 Seoosmarsley

A

o\
8\
Dl el

L= E
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MG RAL Rupasinghe & Co. Prge 15
Chartéred Aceountants
TML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ANTY NOTES TO THE FINANUIAL STATEMENTS
2020 2019
Rs. He
15 Borrowings
Now' Corrent {due more than one vear)
Tenm lodne F, 100, 000 3,020,125
7,100,000 3020125
Ciment (due within one year)
[z Crond jtos 5H07, 105 =
Bank Qverdrait 13,637 306 17,389,830
19,504 410 17,389,530
Tutal Borrowings 26,604.410 20,409,455

* The property Toan taken from HND has been reschidilod on (86 Octiber 2018, when It was tofal capital vulstanding
amimnt uf Rs 42 Milllon. As per the reschedoled teoms and conditiong, the oan termes Ras besn exteidad (it of 42
mstaliemimts from ihe date nf reschod i lnd ) and accordingly monthly capitil eepavemient is braught dowm o Re, 10000000,

16 Defined benefit obligations
toenentaf Runniing fesdtine abigetion for,

Catuity 3730472 4,568,550
Stitedipett oF conn P rditomsme He e

Cirituty §15.347 515,360
The muvemen! h the defined benefit obiligaton over e vear s as mnolloves
ALl lpnuary 4. 5pH,530 LOEE, 190
Carrent seevios cosl 730,419 498,33
Tipheriesl comst 856,115 502,18
Supplis [ (Deficit] from setining benett obligaiion for the vear (7400, BRF) (485, 143§
Henwtits paad L4 EaT0es)
AL 3] December 3,736,872 4,565,550
Thutamuunta recognlzed b the statemens OF enmprehensive incmie bte as follaws:
Current servive oost Faly 408,321
frabuest goach E6,115 BOZ TR
Surplis ! (Eeliit] trom retiring bemetil oldligation for e year (790,887 (485, 1451

815347 515,360

The pemeipal Bsstmptionn wsed i e bl o swere os ol loss
Dscount rate 12,k 12 1y
pxpeied rate of falume salory incrensas 1000, e
Relicement Age o years BS years

In addition to the nbave, demugraphic asssnrpions sudh s tumoves of employees and el
thie crimputation.

Fhe pranision fire defined benefit obligntions s nepeiemully fonded

ent oye were considered for
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MGLEAL Rupasinghe & Co, Puge 16
Chanereil Acsourtants )

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE LIMITEDR
SIGNTFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020 2my
Hs. Rs.
17 Trade and other payables

Trade poyables 36,144,341 25439581
Othur Payables. 2H0.000 2820000
Acorid ixpenses |ee Nate (a) bl £.525,743 4,159,845
Consnlbaniy Foe Pavabls - 2,145 o
Profuct Mubilizhtion Advances Recelved LR R Epiad 3043213
VAT Payable 461,020 18979326
NBT Payabile 194 (94

A7,067 320 39,637,279

(g Accried Espunsge mainly consit of Salury peyable Re 2788 190- (019 - ks 1438,856,~), MDY Commission payanle By 0, -
(2009 - L, SeSFFand Lalmiaromse EPF/ETE Ra, 39,7380 (2014 - s, 691,5300),

18 Amount Dueto Related Party:

Amutint due (o Relatod comspany 2410 o 70, 740) 1065474
Armniribe diie o Dirdctdes and Sharehildess 24 (iv} 2,613,330 2 05w,730
12484, 080 12,713 860

19 Contingent lisbilities
Fhwre were no Jegal actions against the company as ar the Batance sheot dite
Vst swiers oo aaterial contingint labilltie exlstivg ag at the stifement of franaal position date.
2 Commitments
Capital commitments
There Were nu ianterial capitil sommiiminils oulstanding 7 at this statement of inaneind pesition dae,

I Events after the end of reporting dite

Ny chrousnitinees have ariaen s the balanes shoi date witlch would regome miljastmints s, or disdisure i, the francial
statemenin

22 Finangial instruments
Findneznlassete—wmmored a0 tovordiznd cost

Trade and other recaivablis juscliding propuivitdnts] (Note 9) 5812069 28, BR% . arn

Canit and casli eqidvalimts (Note 14) F225244 37,093,541
7,037,313 55,979,811

Firierad il ez af waiieiizat vl

Cash end msh equivalents (Nate 14) 153,637,305 17 38% 530

Trade and oiher payables (Note 18) 47,087:320 39,637,279
61,704, 425 57,027.109

23 Related party lransactions
Key management compensation
Koy manypement includes membess of thir Board of Direttors of ||w4._um;-am» It catm ponsatiin paicd or pavable o key
aranAgeinent foy I-mpl.urt‘l.' sty lies |s shiowr bl /Gp,\gﬂ
Remunitation paid by ‘\.,; 412300
- A12500
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Arcountanis

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED'

SIGNIFICN T ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

231 Direebors' interest in contracts anil related party transactinne

2020
Rs.

Page 17

2019
s

L‘r&-‘entiy tht fonrd congist of M. KAK Jayatmlike, Me i ['N_| Chandrasekers aod M, Thilek Hewnwasamas directar of the

Company.
Tire follenving teansnctions wen earried ot with purties contralled by the company)

Custanding balances ansing from satesand othirs:
{1 Amtists Pue from Refabid Parties
Dellivgiativs Internationml (Private) Limited
Eeo Toch Manugement (Private) Limited
Thilma Bookship
Intermativmal tnstitule of Divelopment Traloing (Private) Linted
Zeneth BPO (Mrvate) Limitod
TEDFA
Erveliapiment Concoptis (Private) Uil
Susitainable Agends (Private) Limited

(HE Amsiits Due from Diractore & Stnehalders
Bhue friom Shareholders

M Tulal Weluopillag
K. 13, G, Wijemanne

(L) Aty Eiee b Retabed Priies
sustainpbie Engrrisring Coneept (Prvaite) Limilod
Sustainable Edgioseting Technolggy {Privatel Limied

() Auetiipts Diig 0 Did¢inr=
Me b ALK Javatilake

11094410 o3
4412615 §412815
18,61% 16419
1,505,053 2,66 587
672,586 853,197
128 iy 128 454
533,000 357245
Lm0 152042
19,616,799 19,625,152
492,882 492887
910 F4eL0
867,792 567,792
3,678 644 4542 Bah
6.112,084 6,112,094
9,790,740 10,654,740
2613350 259,250
2,059,250

2613350
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EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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MGIH AL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ML CONSULTANTS {PRIVATE LINITEL

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMRBER

Servioe Incownie
Divest Service Coss
Gross Profit

Other lmoame
Pefsonnel Expunces

Admimstration txpernses
Finarer Costs

{Eoss) ! Profit Hefore Taxation
Incorme Tax Expenze

{Lozs) / Profit for the Year

Statement 1

Stalenten| 2

Statement 3
Statement 4
Bralement 5

Stalement &

Puga i)

2020 2114

s, Rs.
130,740,943 125,070, 505
(102 775,025) (89,014,330)
30964418 37,156,259
TR, 364 2,567,703
45 (50,2682 19, 623.962
{22,205, i) (31, 536405)
[17,354.647) {13, 555,000)
(1,892,402 [2.391,143)
135,511,549 (40),282,553)
§,538,633 1635,591)
(712 807 {74 sus)

[920,166]

— 4

——
~L0p e’
S
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MGEKAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Acedunianiy

EML CONGLL TANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITEL

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3181 DECEMBER

Gross Profit

Drescriptiog af Frofect! Progrimmm

Metarme Dhive

Simplex Infrastructure
Kalamativa Fishicry Farbor
Sedawaita Waste ta Enutgy
IPFE Tnvestment Prapisal
BU =T AR Eravyr
Higpinal Wit - Stac Mrom;
Road Melivagolia

Nuga Troe - Quastionnaine
g A far Tech ity
LINDT Surveying & Cans
HEMS Izt Pan Asia Bank
1EER Mavurn Flaw

[EF Kundasale Harngama
Hatkawala

Nurthiern Fisheries - LKR
Mhike Wet Season
Worthem Fishories - Privvision
_[.:tl'lrm ﬁhgal Watsr,

e - Monaey from SIVS
1EL Fiarlasy 1aliang

FIa A lswwa

GME

Manese Wi, Mower

Selar Park Styatalanduwa
IFE Apsvpara Wil Life

EPR Plistic \Waste Mgt
Hatgl Tity Waves
Kuchikade

Muorther Torisr M
Tranzlation DRI Guldilines
Hotspot Eastern '
Hutspit Uva St
GFC Waswe Mgt

TA Jlgth:ufrun.-. Eurape ELF
Melwe I'Ir'rf.eI Project
Rkt

Tarnliyh

Elwiric Cnes

Hintic Baseline Study
Mahmwel Lot Bank

Larid Fill Jo-Ela, Ekala

/¥ Balanece

Puge 02
Statement 1
Gross Profit!  Groges Profit/
Service Service (Loss) {Logs)
Angwme Costs 20 2019
[ Rs. s Its.
(600,748 5,548,172 i arod 057,584
= 21,6085 {21,605) 240 68T
. - - [257,281)
581,750 143,055 438,695
857U 1A, 37 1655, 442
EE S e Rl g E R T
BR300 341,140 39 30l
LR R TV 2005120 153 682
Hoboan 573 242700
- (38,000 (639,000 L164,100
7.365.113 1,270,337 5,094 726 | 16,608
- . = 539,123
= = - [RALLY]
1,050,000 1,145,407 {403,505 5
1221620 = 1521620 -
18411733 17829034 281,749 C R AT
- . 50804
179,590 179, R4 (1,097 5045
700, 180 590,457 202.729 1089023
Gl 3 6004 AR )
E 590,134
| k25 I EFS L7750 12748
. 1A01, 356
LR IUNWIANT 18357003 1355, Dl
ELTR| HRLEHR (B8 518) 1,139,651
) 119,063 (113,063 9585
1167821 . 1157821 40076,786
- E = 316326
3,983,154 442y 50 ShzASS 1.14A 242
- 15,0000 EERT Y 125,608
80,000 122,300 (4300 1,021
5753515 6,055,497 (300,584 HST1]
0,68, 725 5.,0068:319 1635415 210,660
90,463 118,180 {95217y 37087
1,870,324 21,011.157 450,167 3,308,703
370
LARKELICI E | A 000
258 (1 255800
FAE AL - |2 050
e . 5787 (50,287 BLTET
q_'d"nsfﬁQ N 973 544,110 429704 2395200
N . 13560001 (1,346,001} 5
8,001,535 21,680,384 14,432,845

,-,;{num:f.n'..j.

".\ S0

CHARTEARL ,?;-'-,-;M]‘q
o
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MG KAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Accousitants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE! LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED IIST DECEMBER

Demeriptioie of ProjectiProgramme

B/D Balange

I'eitoce Mastlr [im

Suppart Regenararion: Pro
TEER Tonel Udapamia

Elay Wilgamuwa
Morocheholid FTA
Kerawalapitiva Hialth Care
AR Survey

LMD E Governange
Melwarhtha E14
ENDP ISC 00|

IEIDC GOWWMP
ol e Iranspont Project
Promssional Sor - luks
LING Project-Bikkawitn USD
1A Resadoniial Blowics

ETA Ml irijririv

ILE Matiopnl Copaltancy
POB Singapore

Markal & 5E Survey - Fees
TEH Wollawanme

Electiieity Afiosdability Sarv
Agrl Mod'n Praject

GI2 Britge Wilpatte

Other Ineeme

Triteredt Incomw

Reepit Trsorie

G on Dispoesa ol Mywor Vehele
Cored ibor wintties back

Hachange (Los=i ¢ Cain

Puge 03
Cross Profit/ Grdss Profit!
Service Service {Lias) (Loss)
Income Conts 202 g
Rs. Bs. Rs. e,
7772214 865,087,535 21,680,354 34432848
- (112:395)
28:47R 2,475
4L 168, 7id ke o -
{3275
AT 736,560 TA%E90
720,000 248,000 471,000
5,318,970 3682701 2,836,260 .
2.766,300 2,200,550 563, 721)
7175685 5,25 e L544.2T0 -
1,799,480 1.200,000 A9, 400 =
1,384,310 321,124 1,063, 16 BEL654
13 7sd 25,842 417,922 .
= 1597052
. 3008 245
EN kS
199,117
FAL
(1,171,088
LAS1AT] (1,351,171 {3407,552)
i {i57,300)
3,059 616 63,208 L7638 (a7
50,000 325,600 AN 931138
117,711 916,563 201,197 3
143,740,943 102,776,025 30964918 37,056,259
2020 2018
Ra. Ra.
Statemant 2
Statement 2.1 2354052 IIATES
23000 =
S0 3
o825
2810412 [eLi81]
14,085,364 2567703

3?&%
D\

r‘l CHARTERE -J\]
115 ey

B

IJP!— JL\'}}

= ACCOLNTAN

w
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MGIRAL Rupasinghe & Co.
l\."_l'mﬂuml_.i Adcuriitants

EML CONSULTANTS (MUVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER

Intereat Meean

al

| 4]

a

Frtterest Ineone fram Savings Accounts tn Loeal Clirneniy
KB —Savings Accousnl

HIME- Savings Account

BEHC- Saving Acculmd

Biteresl Ticose from Savings Accotints in Foreign Currgnpy

NIE - Saveang Accomnt
FI™WH - Saving Aceclint

Interest Iiceune from Ficed Deposits in Foreign Currency

NI - Flxedd Deposit Avominn N 108230001 785§ D Har { Australio)
HMB - Fived Doposit Accoupt Sod3921015333 ¢ Dallar (Australiag
FINT - Fixed Doposit Account hod38210 15388 ( Dallar pAustraliag
HINB - Fixied Depiesit Avcourt Noa.D4352101547 8/ Daollive { Awstrnlia)
NP -« Fied Deposit (FEEA) FCATS N 10830001197 f Dollar (LSA)
MITH - Fised Dupusit (TEEA) FCAFS NaU I BRI00247] | Dollar (USA)

Page 4

220 2014

Rs. T,
Stuternent 2.1
147,060 172471
g ey I8t
150,85 272431
518,883 #1118
13 et 5553
bl - 7 ] 247929
197,141 253,660
108731 80571
114,115 134,762
120,606 138,861
110,135 138 840
14,644 B2t
1,196 67,585
1,519,028 1,346,587
2,234,932 2.273,585
P 'E'-»E\S;
==
-~/ d M
v '

CHAREERS) Yo

.,'L SO TAN
.—J & WA
o Yy

=z, :

i)
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MG KAL Rupasinghe & Co,
Charlered Actnuntants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER

Parsonnel Exputsus

Chairman » Bumuneration
Stall Saliriissand Allowances
Huris

EFF Contribautlom

L Conteibution

Retaizet's Feeg

Dt

Mubsile T Relmbumsement
Travelling Heimbursemint
Courdiration allywanoe
Lezve Encaslunent

Proviston for Employee Beneflis - Gratudty

Admimstration lncome
Salaty Rudmbiersemient from related companie

Finanee Lok

Interrst o Bamb Ouendeafes
Lanse Interest om Findtice Lossits
Irytisrest om: Loan

Incame Tax Expanse

Chyrrent Tegine T Expense
Incormies Tas Exfuense oo Current Year's Profit

Teferred Tax Expense

Page 05
2020 2019
Rs, Rs.
Statement 3
33,750 412500
12523200 14,525 163
580,000 114,050
136,55 (743383
) feet 43I5HT0
3,960,426 1,153,425
2H) s 524363
260,125 IBB42
T4}, 049 1766023
159,574 368,659
- 212407
1,606,334 TR, 503
22,332,875 27,534,028
(6H a6 (87,458
{=20,127)
20,264,606 21,935,405
Statement 5
1443951 LLTET L6
12,684 25114
R AT 263,412
1,862,402 2,301,142
Statement &
; 261,595
261,595
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MG KAL Rupasinghe & Ca.
Charlered Accountants

ML CONSULTANTS {(BRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCONME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 25T DECEMBTR

Administration Expenses

ity

Water

Slafi Welane

Seelitily

Skal's Trpiming Sentlnar & Workshops
Brusdivess [P pomistiom d a.»ta;léuun.s
Repaind Maintenange

Repair / Service fisr Vehicles
Adbvirrising

Stittheriety

Telephone

Rdreshments & meeting exponsy
Internel

Posrage & Cprivs

ravulling - Lol

Traviting - Forergn

Annual Biceiwe and Tnfuance Fees Vehiclos
I

st - Hialll

Membersinp beos

1T Fioge

Socrilarial Gervices

Audiy Fods

Accouniing Suppart

Advisory Conyultancy Fec
Damain Reniweal

Tender Bhacymintation Charge
Bid Bomd bank charges

Tavaton, Fees

Lagal Freie

Errippoaal Witlers Fees

Brespomal Fleld Vidh Explnees
WS = Payrod] 'reparation
Clenning Chargs

Nathon Bullding Fax
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Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

mgi kal rupasinghe & co. /»

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019
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mgi kal rupasinghe & co, /- Widapon, Colomoa 6,50 Lanka
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Ematl . kitlrupcoamaikalrupee com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE] LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinian

We have audited the accompanying financial statements: of EML Consultants {Private) Limited, which
comyprrise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 Decembar 2019, and the Statement of Conyprehensive
Incamie. the Stalement of Changes in' Reserve and Statenient of Cash Flows far the year then anded, and
notes (o the fimancial statements, h‘lclul.i'mg a summmary of Significant accounting policies

In our gpinign, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fatr view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance for the year then ended in
aceordance with Sei Lanka Finandal Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities.

Basis for Opinion

We rinducted our audit in aceordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Stendards (SLAGSs). Our responsibilites
under these standards are further duscribed in the Additor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statemalits section af our report We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements af the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka that ave ralovant to our audit of the financial
staternents, and we have folfilled our other ethical responsibilities inaccordance with the Code of Ethics,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained i sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinlon,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Mansgement is résponsible for the proparation and fair presentation of Urese financiul statements in
aceordance with St Lanka Flnencial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability o
continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going cangern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative-but to do so.

These charged with governance are respansilile for overseeing the Company's financial repoiting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTD......)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statéments as a whale are
free frant material misstaterent, whether due to fraud or error, and o fssue an auditor's repart that
Includes-our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but &5 not a guarantee thal an
audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstiterents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, Individually or in thi
aggregate, they could reasanably be expected to influence the tconomic decisions of users taken on (hi
basis of these financial statements,

Mg \Cer ﬂwtw

MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Colombo

12 October 2
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MG KAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page 1
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS {(I'RIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBFR 2019 2018
Nole Rs Rs

Reveniie 3 126,070,593 159,671,737
Dhrest Cost -(39,U14,335} (115,292.607)
Gross profit 37,056,254 44,079,130
Other incane 4 204,118 8047730
Administrative expenses (37,8491,411) 142,204,621}
Dperating tloss) / profit (541,034) 9,922,239
Finance inoomse 2,273,585 2,166,719
Finance costs (2,391,147 (3,850, 166)
Finance costs -net 5 {117.557) (1,689,447}
{Loss) / profit before tax (658,591) B,232,742
Income tax [ (261,595) (798,354)
{Loss) { profit for the year (920,156} 7,434,438

Other Comprehensive Tncome

Surplus from retiving benefit obligation 16 485,143 528,064
Deferred Tax effect on actuarial loss on defined Beneflts plan (67,920) {52,806
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (502,963) 7,909,696

(0.01) 0.09

b |

(Loss) / earnings pershare - basic (Rs)

The aczounting policles and notes on pages 5 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Colombo: / ?ﬁffﬁ”"qy
13 October 2020 ’?{ O
& ( CHARTORED g
( e ancolNTATE 5
2\ o
3 .:“-» —
L T .-,_.:-‘_t
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 315T DECEMBER
Notes

Assels

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment - Freehold W {a)
Troperty, plant and equipment -l.easehold 10 (Y.
Total Non-current assels

Current assels

Irade and Other Recvivables 8
fmcome Tax Refund 4
short - Term Investments 1
smount due from Related Party 12
cashand eash équivalents i3
Total current assets

Tomal assels

Tasity and liabilities

Cagital and reserves

Saed oapital i4
femursed earnings

T2l Shareholder's funds

“e=—current liabilibes

Seowings 15
Tismed Benefit abligations 18
Teserved Income tax Habilities

Tetml Nen-current liabilities

Cse—ent liabilitiea

L e T | ]
e and other payables 17
Semoeet 2ue to Related Party 18

Tate current liabilities
Tl Babilities
Tl sguity and liabilities

YL

S Fommwoial Officey

Sz zad signed for and on behall of the Board, —
/Jbehsm"‘e
/ ‘j;/ A

H— - %
—F / (, GHARTERED
5T — .

:I._{.L..;-r,-.t.T?: O

- N 2N &
L . )

Page 2

2019 2018

Rs Rs

54,017.756 56,653,034
- 808,979
54,017,756 57,162,013
29,458,033 32,216,104
1,698,330 1,587,702
36,779,614 37,881,272
20,190,944 19,826,834
27,095,841 26,639,992
117,222,762 118,151,904
171,240,518 175,613,917
90,900,000 90,900,000
1,595,382 2,098,345
92,495,382 92,998,345
3,020,125 3,020,125
4,568,550 4,053,190
1,415,362 1,0185,847
9,004,037 8,159,162
17,389,830 18,392,630
39,637,279 51,934,829
12,713,990 4,128,951
69,741,099 74,456,410
78,745,136 82,615,572
171,240,518 175,613,917

¢ sounting policies and notes on pages 5 1o 17 furm an integral part of these finandial statements.

o Fmencal Strements arein compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No, D7 uf 2007,

s St of Directors is respensible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Btatements.

Divector
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co:
Charterad Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST DECEMBER

Balance as at 31 December 2017
Prior year Adjustment

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2018
Total comprehensive loss tor the vear

Balance as af 31 December 2019

Page 3
Stated Retained
capital earnings Total
Rs. Rs, Ras,

90,200,000 (5,791,351) 85,108,649
{20,000) (20,000)
7,900,696 7,909 696
90),900,000 2,096,345 92,998,345
= [302.963) (502,963)
90,900,000 1,595,382 92,495,382

The accounting policies and notes on pages 5 to 17 fonm an integral part of these financial statements.

Colombao
13 October 2020
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co,
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE PERTOD ENDED 3157 DECEMBER

Cash generated from { (used in) operabions

(Loss) { profit before lax

Adjustments for;

Depreciation

[mterpst income

Interest expense

Lease Interest on Finanee Leass

Cratulty Provision

Bad Debits Witten off | Reversal of lmpairment on Debtors
Written off (vade payables

Prior Year Adjustment

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Changes in working capital;

- (Tneressd) [ Decrease in Trade and Other Receivable

= {Ingrease)  Decrease in Amouants Due Trom Related Party
- Increase [ (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables

- Increase [ (Decrease] in Amounts Dus To Related Party
“Cash (used in) / generated from operations

Interest paid

Ineame Tax/WET Paid

Net (used in) / generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activilies
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest receivied

Investment f uplift i shorl term investment
Net cagh generated from investing activities
Cash flows from finaneing activitles

Movement in borrowing
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (Decrcase) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

I'he aceaunting policies and notes on pages3 to 17 form an integral part of these se finangial stlements.
Fd o bi"'i.'[l

Colombo
13 Oetober 2020

-*x

Page 4
2019 2
Note Bs Rs
(658,591) 8,232,792
3,750,551 4,489,714
(2,273,585) (2,166,719)
545,912 1,735,380
28114 198,754
1,000,503 857417
3,570,484 3.938:406
(658.204) (591,587}
- {20,000}
5,355,089 16,674,157
512,413 §,843.008
{364,110y 4.735.452
(1 'lffrvﬁ'r’,l’nﬁﬁ} (616,417)
6,906.476 550,701
(582,523} 30,186,993
(595912} (1,735,380)
[110,62H) (104,704)
11,258 B63) 28,346,500
{36,294 (444,739)
2,273,585 2,166,719
(BUE,24D) 3,533,437
1,065,949 5200417
(1,002, 500) (10,712.616)
(1.002,800) (10,712 515}
(1,222,714) 22,834,710
10,928,725 (T1,905,985)
13 49,706,011 10,928,725

0 A "“HG'

CHRARTERED I'-g
.Pc:m iTe ﬂ
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MGl KAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page 5
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  Genemal infonmation

The EML Consultants (Private) Limited 5 a limited Liahility Company Iincorporated on 10th March 1993 and
doviciled in Sri Lanka, The Registerrd Office and Principal Mace of business of the Company s situated at No.
6710, Rajamaha Vihara Lane, Raamaha Vibara Road, Pita Kotte.

The Company = engaged i the service of olferng consullancy services In the calegories of Engineering,
Envirshment, Natural Sciences, Social Sciotces, Technica| Scieness, Technieal, Financial and Management Services
ete, Lo organizations within and outside 5o Lanka.

These fmencial statérments have been approved for fssye by the Board of Directors on 13 Ocober 2020,

2 Summary of significant accounting polivies
Thie lirst sat of financial statements peepared in accordonce with the 'SLFRS for Small and Medium-sized Ertities”
igsued By thee Institue of Chartered Accountants of Sef Lanka. The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these finandal staterments are set out below, These pelicies have been consistently applied 1o all the
years presented, unless olherwise stated,

21 Basis of preparation

The financal statements of EML Consultants (Private) Limited have been prepared in accordance with the 'S
Lankn Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Mediumesized Entities” (SLFES fur SMEs). They have been
prepared under the historleal cost convention, as modified by the fair valuation of financial assets subsequentiy at
amortized eost wherever applicable which are Inltially récognised at fair value.

The prepamation of finaricial staternents in confarmity with thie SLERS for SMEs requires thie use of certoin critionl
accounting estimates. lbalso requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the accounting
palictes. Areas [mvolving a higher degree of judament or complevity, or ateas whers assumplinns and estimations
ara signiftcant to the financial statements.

22 Foreign currency translation

) Punctional apd présentation carmency

[tems included by the financial statemients are meastired using the currency of the primary ecomomie enviromment i
which the entity operates (‘the functional carrency ), The financial starements are presented in "Sri Lanka Rupees”,
which Is considered thee Company's funetional and prasentation cuttency.

bl Transactions and balices

Forelan currency bransactions are transiated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevalling at the
dates of the transactions: Foreign exchange gams and lodses sesulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation al year-end exchange rates of manelary assels and lalilifes dienpminated in (oreign currencies,
are recognized in profit or Jbss.

Forelgn exchange gains and [osses are presented in profit or loss within 'finance incame / (vosts) -net’,
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MGIEAL Rupasinghe & Co. Prge &
Chartered Accountanis

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of -!ignif'{mnr acconnting policies (Contd)
23 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at historical cost less apomulated depreciation and any accomulated
impairment losses.

(mh  Measwrement

Pistorical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 1o bringing the osset to the lecatinn and condition
netessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner [ntended by mn gt

Phe subsequent casts are included in the asset's carrying amount or récognized &e o sopirate sssel 08 pppropriote,
orily when It is probable that future economic benefits assncinted with the ftem will flow (o the Company and the
cost of the item can bie measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced parts are derocognizad. All sepairs
and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprebensive income during the Anancial period in which thisy
are mcurred.

b Depreciation

Land is not depreciated as it s deerned to havean indefinite life.

Depreciation on other assets Is chorged so as t allocate the st of assefs Tess thelr residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight |line method commencing from the month in whith the assat is available for
use, On disposal of sssets deprecation is caloulated axclusive of the manth in which disposal takss place.

The estimated usetul lives range of property, plant and equipmerit is-as follaws:

Builidings 211 years
Computer Equlpment 3 yems
Furniture and fittings 3 years
Cifice Equipment 4 yenty
Maotar vehicliss 5years

This assets’ rosidual valuos, wseful lives and depreciation miethods are woviewed. and adjusted prospectively if
appropriate, if there is an indication of a slgnificant change since the last reporting Jdate.

An asset’s carrying amount §s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount is grenter
than its estimated recoverable amount;

Galne and lissws on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrving amount and are
recognized within other gains / (losses) - nel, in the statement of comprehensive income.
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MGIKAL Rupasinghe & Co, Page 7
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS {(PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Contd)

24  Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

Assels that are subject 10 depreciation or wmorlizition are assissed ot each reporting Jdate w0 determine whether
{hiere is amy indication that thie agsets are Impaired, Where theve s any indleation that an asset may be impaired, the
cammying value of the asset (or cash-generating unit to which the asset has been allocated) is tested tor impairment,
An impaivment loss s recignized for the amodnt by which the sssel’s cartving wmount exceeds its recoverable
ampunt, The recoverable ampunt i the higher of an as==t's {or CGU'S) fair value less costs to sell and value in use,
For the purpeses of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the Jowest levels for which there are separately
dentifinble cash flows (CGLs), Nan-tinancial 3sseks other than goodwill et suffered an impairment are reviewed
fur possible reversal of the impatrment at «ach reporting date:

2.5 Inventories

Inventories are comprising of jobs at work In progress. At each reporting date, Invertories are assessed for
impatement [Finventory is impaired, the carrving amount {5 reduced (o its slling price less costs to comiplete and
sell; the impairment loss is recognized immediately in profitor loss.

26  Financial assets - loans and réceivahles
L0 Classification

Loans and receivablas are nan-dérivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that ore ol quoted in
an active market. [hey are included in current assels, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting perivd. These are classified gs non-currentassets. the Comprany's loans and receivables comprise trade
avid other reccivables and ¢ash and cash equivalent in the statement of financial position (Notes 2.8 and 29),

262 Recogmition and measuremen!
Loans anid receivables ane [nitlally measured at fair value and subsequently carrled at amortized cost using (he
effective interest method.

27 Impairment of financial assets - assets carried at amortized cost

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whethee theee is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired, A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impaisment
Insses are meurred enly if there is objective evidenice of impalrment as o result of one o mord gients that docuered
after the imitlal recognltion of the asset (2 ‘loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assers thal can be relinbly estimated,

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financil difficulty, default or delinguency in imterest ar principal payments, the prabability that they will enter
hankrupicy or other financial reorgenization, and where obrervable data indicate that there 5 a measurabile decreass
in the estimated future cash [lows; such ea changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaulis,

§ G‘idmitf-\ﬁﬁ‘
\-: ACEOUNTANTE f~
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MG KAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page 8
Charlered Accourtants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Contd)

27  Impalrment of financial assets - assets carried at amortized cost (Contd)

Fur loans and receivables category, the amount of the logs is measured as the differcnee between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash Gows (exeluding fitire cedit losses that have mot been
ncurrad) discounted at the Hnancial assat's original effective interest rate; The carrying amount of the assel is
reduced] and the amount of the loss [s recognized in the statemint oF comprehensive mcame U o loan or leld-to-
maturlty lnvestment has 4 varisble interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impakerment lass is the curent
cifective interest rate determined under the contrach As & practica! expedient the Company’ may messure
impatrment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an abservable market price.

2§ Trade receivables

Trade receivables ars recognized Initially at the transaciion prive, They are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. & provisian for impairment of rrade receivables is
established whan there is objective svidonce that the Company will not beable to collect all amounts due accarding
tor the original terms of receivables.

29  Cash and cagh equivalents

For the pusposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents somprise cash in hand, deposits held al call
with banks, net of bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in cutrent liabilities on the
statement of financial pasition.

210 Stated capital
The ordinary shares are clessified as equity.
211 Trade payables

Tracle payables are recognizod initinlly ¢ the transaction price and subssquently muasured at amorteeed cost using
the effective interast method.

212 DBorrowings

Botrowings are initmlly recognized at the transactivn price Induding transuction costs. These are subsequently
stated atamartized eost,

213  Bomowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in statement uf comprehensive income in the period in which they
arefincurred,

B\ ACCaRNTAKTS }
LA
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MGEKAL Rupasinghe & Co. Piage 4
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting palicies (Contd)

214  Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligations ae a result of past
events It is probable that an outilow of resources embodying econamic bepefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and o relinbli estimate of the amount of e obligation can be nwde.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determiriod by considering the class of obligations as sowhole: A provision (s recogrized even if the likelihood of an
putlow with respect to any one ltem [ncluded in the same class aof obligation may be small,

The provisions sre measured at the present value of expenditures expected Lo be regulred (o sellly the obligation,

15 Employee benefit obligations

(e} Defimed binefit plans = Grafuily
Pefined benefit plan defines an amgunt of benefit that an emploves will peceive on retirement, usually dependent on
one of more factors such as years of service and compensation. The definéd benefit plin comptises the gratuity
provided under the Acy, No 12 of 1983,

The linbility recognized in the statement of finandial position in respect of defined benafit plan {6 the present value of
the defined benefit abligation pt the date of the smtemen: of financial posilion togsther with adjustments for
unrecngrized past-service costs The defiped benefil obligation is caledlated annually uging the formula method.
The present value of the defined benefit abligation is determined by discounting the estimatod futare cash outilows
USIN{ appropriate interest rares,

Past-service costs are retognized Immediately n stotement of comprehensive income, unless the changes to the
defined benelit plan are conditional on the employees remalring ih service for a specified period of time (the
vesting period). In this case, the pasi-sarvice costs-are amortized on o straight-line buss over the vesting period.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experlence adjustments snd changes inactuarisl Bssumplions are recognized
immedately in the slatement of comprebensive income.

The assumptions based on which the results of the actuarial valuation was determined, are included in Note 17w
the financial statements:

(b)  Dofined contribution plans

All locat employees of the Company are members of the Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees” Trust Fund, to
which thelr employer contributes 12% and 3% respectively of such emplavees’ basic or cansalldated wage bt salary,
cost of living and all other allowances. The confributions are recognized as employee bunefit expense when they are
due; I contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognized as an asset,
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MGIKAL Rupasinghe & Co, Page 10
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Contd)
216  Currentand deferred income tax

The tax expense tor the period comprises carrent and deferred tax. Tax &5 recogruzed in profit or logs; except that a
change attributable to an ltem of income or expense recognized. as other comprehensive income is also recognized
directly in other comprehensive income.,

The provision for curment invome tax Is based on the elements of inceme and expenditure as reported in the financial
statements and computed in aceordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act, No.10 of 2006,

Dieferred income tax is provided in full, using the liobility method, on temporary differences ansing between the fax
bases of assets aid liabllities and thelr careying ameunts in e fnaocial statements. Deferfed ncome tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the weporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assels is tealized or the deterred income fax liability is
sottled,

Deterred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that 1t is probable that tuture tavable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized:

217  Revenue recognition

(a}  Remdering of Services

Revenue comprses the fair valus of the consideration received or receivable for the serviees rendered in the
ordinary course of the Company’s activities; Revenue is shiwn netof all appllcable taxes and levies, returns, rebates
and discounts,

M) Taferest income

Interestincome is recognized using the effective interest method.

218  Expenditure

The expenses-are tecognized on an acerun] basis. All expendes incurred in the erdimary course of business and i

maintaining property plant and equipment in a state of efficiency @ charged against incarms in armving at the results
tor the year.

For the purpose of presentation of Hye statenient af comprehensive Income [nformation, expense by function method
is uped to glassify expenses.

219 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders ks recogniced as a labllity in the Company's linuneial
statenents in the period in which the dividends are approved by the company's sharehelders,

220 Comparatives

Where pecessary, comparative figures have besn adjusted to conform with changes in presentation i the current
'?Eﬂf_
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page 11
Chartered Accountanis
EML CONSULTANTS (FRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ANDY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
209 2018
Its Hs
3 Revenue
Revenue from Consultancy Services 126,070 565 158,671,737
126,070,545 154,671,737
4  Other incoma
Exchange Galn (364,161 FASE 143
Creditor written back G5E, 209 Se1.587
254,118 5,047,730
5  Finence income-and cosis
Finance o
Inteony Income 2,273 585 2,166,719
2,273,585 2,166,719
Finunes rosiy:
lrterest on buerow ings (2363 125 657,412
Lease Interest on Binance Leases {28,114} (1967541
(2391, 142) {3.B56,166)
Finance costs - et 1117,557) [1,68%,447)
& Income Tax
Statement of Profit [ loss
Currenl Tax Expense 3 =
Defermed Tax 251,595 708 354
Tax charge reported in Income Statement 261,595 798,354
Btatement of other compreliensive income
Deterred Tax effect on actuanal gainf{loss) on defined Henefits plan 67,920 S2.800
Tax charge directly to other compreehensive income 67,920 52,806

Thar nppricebile fix wiite on preofit as 14495

61 The tax m the Campany's (loas) | profitbafere tax differs fram (he theoretiml amount that wiotld arise usinyg the bistc tax

rate applicable to profits of the Company as fallows:

(Loss) { profit before tax

Add: Expenditure Disatlowed Under Sec 26

Lams  Allowable Expuerises including Businiss Lissesset-olf
Lo ¢ Toywvessbimwent Incouny

Profit from Trade ar Business

Add: Interest Incorie ! Investment Tnaome
Liezs : Deductiom under Section 32 (Non taxable part & allowable losses sel-off)

(638,541) 8,232,792
4,264,005 7.6246,091
{1,361, 849 (6,239,021)
{2.273,585) (9,622,861
2373585 5,627 562
{2,Z73,545) (4,623 8AT)

Taxable Income

Tox Expense on Profit from the Business

Tox Experstc on the Interest Tncome f_".‘-_.‘; A S

Tolal Income Tax Expense 'fx,-\‘f-ﬁ\‘:q'.‘;\

L r ol
b=y ( GHARTRRED "l:»e

E ACHOUNTAS I.!"_-'.r. n
2\, /°
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MGI KAL Rupasinghs & Co. Page 12
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNTFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 (Loss)/ garnings per share

Hasic |Iss) f eammings per share is clodlated by d[_uid,iing the (loss) / profit attebuable o equity holdersof the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the vear:

amsa 28
(L] profit atteibutgble (o egquity holders of the Company (502,963 7.909,696
Welghtad avirage numbie b ordingry Shares in {ssue (Nate 15) S0, 0,000 50,200,007
Basic (Losg} / Exrnings per share (is) {0.01} L]

8§ Trade and other receivables

Trade recpivithles 1739 72 25,571,544
(<1 Provision foy Tmpairment [1.579,873) {1 879,573)

15,516,751 1},;’5‘1! an
Projict work-in-progress - 5,159,405
Muhilization advances for profects L0150, 95H 168098
Patpazil and prepayments 574,063 al1,063
Other recelvalales [See Note (a) below] 3,174,261 2,595,607

19,458,033 32216104

(31 Olher ficelvablis mudnly consist aFInterist Reseivable of Re 762733/~ (2018 - Rs, Rs. 700, 185/, Cash Murgin NDB Rs,
0 (2018 - Ra 8,285/}, Bamboll KTHT receivable Rs, 642,089/ (2015~ Re, 642,069 and FSC Recovernble 12, 1,457,774/
{20118 - Rs. 1,156,5731-1.

5 Ineome Tax Refund

Balanee at the beginning of the vear 15877 1,482,995
Less:

- Income tax pn.wl'siqn foor the yoar

L587,702 1,452,998

Add
- Wilth Holding T L1628 i R

Balance at the end of the year 1,695,330 1,587,702

ZGBAS),
)
{=/ \ﬁ*
[ ] t--ml'ﬁl':i.‘ila)?’
= 4 ACCOHTEANTS

I\.:’\ SHHEIR ﬁ

AN FA~)
o,

-
f ey

L g’
S o
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page 13
Chartersd Accountanty
EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATT) LIMITED
SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
10 {a) Property, plant and ¢quipment - Freshold
s i
Balance as at Tknlechug Additinns Disposals Halanee asal
leasehold .
0L.0L.2M19 during the year during the vear SL122019
property i
Hs. R Rs, Re. Rs:
At Cost/ Valuation
Ll 18,000 000 - - - 15, (4K}, 0110
Bulldings 45,558,074 = - 45,868,429
t2nd & Building Improvemen 4,135,113 - - 4,138,113
Motor Vekiclus 14,998 861 = - . 149498 840
Crfice Squipments LR Ve - . 1,937,909
Computer Equipments 11,437,754 - 275880 11711684
Fumiture & Fittings 3384443 - 32414 3416857
Total 90,756,038 : 306,299 S 100,072,332
fr %
Balanice as at el Charge for the DIIFPBSJIII ¢ Balance as at
leasehold Adjustmint
11,0129 year F ) 3L12.2n9
properiy during the year
Rs. Rs, Rs. Rs: Rs.
b!PI‘L‘(‘iI‘IEUﬂ
Buildings 12458647 = 1,780,311 s 14735958
Land 8 Building Impravement 91,23 - &24 431 . 71615
Muotar Vehicles 14,062, 850 - - ] 14,995 Bl
Office Egulpments 1825730 15,363 - 1,344,113
Computer Equipments 10,824,668 - 387,009 1L 1677
Furniture & Fittings 29116876 132,935 3044514
Total 43, 11L004 . 0,943,572 - 46,054,576
Net Book Value of Assels (At Cosl 56,055,034 54,017,756
10 (b Froperty, plant and equipment -Leasehald
Balance as at Additions Tramsferlo DisposalsiAdiu  Balance as at
0LDLA0IY  during the yeat freehold assels  stments daring 1122019
lhe year
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Al Cost/ Valuation
Matur Vehleles Ti02576 - - 7102676
Total 7,102,676 - . - 702674
Balance asat  Chargeforthe  Transferto Disposals / Balance as at
07.01.2019 year freehold assets  Adjustnent 31.12.2009
Rs: Rs. Rs. R, R
anmcinﬁon
Moo Vieluelos 6295657 BOG.979 - - 7. 102,676
Total 6,295,697 806,979 AAPASIN s 7102676
Fo N
Nel Buok Value of Assets (Al Cost 806,979 (= "\F\.“ =
{ cosmichen |
GUKTAT T |
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MGI KAL Rupaginghe & Co.
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Shaort « Term Investmants
Investments i Fiwed bupuﬂ_.i.l.ﬁ Ln'anqa,u Cunm\‘y

12 Amount due from Related Party
Amounts Due from Related Companies
Amnoints Do from Directors and Sharcholders

13 Cash and cash equivalenis

Favourable Cash & Cash Eynfoulent Balinces
Foreign Saving Awounis

Lescal Saving Accuunts

Loeal (_'urreﬁf Accounis

Petty Cash

Tatal Favourable Cash & Cach Equivalent

Unfuvonrable Cosh & Cash Equivalent Balanevs
Luwal Current Avcounts
Tatal Unfavourable Cash & Cash Equivalent

40
24 fii)

Totul Cash wnd Cash Equivalent for the Purpose of Statement of Cash Flows

14 Stated capital

Fage 14
2019 2118
R& IRa
56,779,614 37 BR1ATE
38,779,614 a7.851,272
19,623,192 19,259,042
567,792 567,702
20,190,944 19,326,834
992705 14,022,681
1697450 232273
64,250 428D
130,000 230,000
27,095,541 26,639,592
17,389,830 15711267
17,359,830 15,711,267
9,706,011 10,928,715
U9 2018

Dhering the year :Jdnrrliuf&mg st af ke compamy hins heen thanged and the current shareholders togetherith D respection iofdines

e s folloms:

MWame of the Sharcholdor
HN] Chondrasckara
Thilak Hewawasam

PC Fermando

DG Wijemanme

Tl Waloopillai
Employees

uriliier of Shuries Value (Rs.) Value (Rs.)

7,111,850 &7, 111,650 87,111,550

4445 S44 445 D4, 455

St 667 Shi 6T Sl (5T

14,725 406 14,735,406 14,725 406
7362744 T 7H: 70174

188,985 1BE.BES 185868

80,500,000 90,900,000 ‘90,9000
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MGI KAL Rupssinghe & Ca.
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING FOLICTES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 Bortowings
Non Current (due more than ane year)
Term Toans

Current (due within one veay)

Term Lians
Leaze Credilors
Bank Cryordraf

Tatal Barrmowings

* The property loan taken Fom HNB has beon feschedulid on 08th Qctolser 2018, Wivien it was total capital outstanding
amuunt of R 32 Million. As par the reschoduled torms and conditions the laan woner his been exlended (o’ of 42

Page 15

2019 2ms

Re Hs.

3,020,125 3.020,125
3,020,125 3,020,125
- 2,060,500
= HO0EE3
17,389,830 13,011,267
17,384,850 18,392,630
20,409,955 21,412,755

installements from thie dote'of rescheduled ) and accordingly monthly @pital repavement & brogght downto Rs. 100,000,060,

16 Defined benefit obligations

Statevery of Aimaneml pasition obligntion for:

Graluity 4,568,550 4053190
Statessent of comprehionaie (hcome
Grzatuity 515,350 324,353
The movement (o the defined benefit obligation over the year isas follaws
AL January 4053 100 6343857
Current service cosl 408321 427 669
Inlerest wost SUR 182 4249778
Surplus /| (Defiat) from retiring benefit obligation for the year {d85,143) {825.0s4)
Henefits paid . (2,820,000)
Al M December 4,568,350 4,053,140
The amonnts recognized In e staleaen] of compreleisive oo ae ps ollows:
Current dervice cdst 498,321 427,680
Intereet codt 503,182 429,738
Surplits { [Deficit) from retining benefit obligation for the year (485,14%) 528,064
515,360 329,353
The prircipal sseaomptions used o e calenlotion wiere a3 Tollovws:
Discoant rate 12.00% L2000
Expoctod raterof Future salary incroases 10,00 10008
Retirement Age 53 yers 65 years
Ire addinen o theabove, demographic assumptions such as tumover of employees and rutivement age were constdisred for
1he computetion. -
: ZoPASIES,
The pruvision for defined benisfit obligations i not externnlly funded. P - = G_:,_
f.\“f Ny
= | AGCOUHTH
3
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Charterad Accountants

EMI CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ANL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17

19

20

2019 2018

s, Rs.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables 5,439,581 32,514,199
Other Tayables 2,520,000 2,820,000
Accrmed expenses 4,159,945 2515903
Consultancy Fee Payable 2,165,000 .
Project Mobilization Advanees Received 043213 7,226,566
VAT Pavable 1979326 ;l,ﬁﬂ‘l.ﬁl‘ff
NBT Payakle 144 595,198
FSC Pavable - 578,334

39,637,279 51,934,529

Acortind Fxpenves mainly chnsist of Salary payable R 14388584 (2018 - Bs. 1,.436,983/-), MD Comumission pavable e
26,5570 (2015 - R, 192,714/ and Laboir cusy EPFELT Rs. 693, 5401 (2018 - Re. 691,540/-)

Amount Due to Related Party

Amoul due iy Related company 210 10,654, 740 2089701

Arneiists dii i Directorsand Shareholders Z4iv) 2,039,250 2,059,250
12,713,590 4128951

Contingent liabilities

There wereno legal actions against the company as at the Balance sheot dale.

There were no material contingent Habilities existing as at the statement of financial position date,

Commitmants

Capital commiitments

There were o material capital commitments sitstanding as at the statement ol fitanclal position date.

Events after the end of reposting date-

The Corana Virus ("Covid-19") ls expocted 1o have an impact on the Conpapy’s husinesd perfarmance in the short e,
Tl Management monitors and controls spending in anticipation vl an eventunl recovery of the marketolice, Baecd an the
prevailing uncermin marker condition, e Managemant has deferred thetr copital investment progratms in preparation for
any uncertalntics o this tetuvery expectations in the marker As o resull, e Company’s finangial periormance in the short
teerm s xpeited o correspond with the provailing negative businiss environment which will continue fora fonseabili
future,

The Management Is of the oplnion that the Company has adequate cash Hiows (or i in o position to arringe credit facilities
if required) 10 meet any contingeneiss to ensure seamless opiealion. The managemunt i conbident that all fheir decisions
and measures will enswire thw Company remaing viable a2 anentity through these uncerain times,

Othir than the above thete have besh noevents after the reporting period which sequire adjustments to, or disclosure
the firerwial statements.

Financial instruments
Finameinl assety = memirgd @t arportized cos

Tradiand othe receivables (exchuding propaymenis) (Note ) 25,683,920 31,615,04;
Cash il cosh eguivalengs (Mot 14] a705, 840 2, 634,502
55979511 58,255,033

Finaricind Lobilities - meadred ok mnortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) 17,389,830 15,711,267
Tradle s ather payablos (N 18] ( :{ oz N N7 T
o) Vilalaiad ] 7,027,108 57,646,096
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Churlered Accountantd

EML CONSULTANTS (FRIVATE) LIMITED

SIGNIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Related party transactiong
Key management compensation

019
s

Page 17

Key management Includes members of ihe Board of Ditectors of the Compuny. The compensation paid o payable ta key

management for employee services is shown below:

Remuneration pald

23.1 Directors' inlerest in contracts and related party transactions

412,500

412,500

412,500

412,500

DPruring the periond, Mr. KAK Jayathilake has consed thie boand and Mr, DL Kumaradasa has newely been appeinted o thi
‘board and presently the board consist of Me. HN] Chandrasehers, Thiluk Hewawasan and DL Kumaradass s director of

Lhe company.

The fullinuipg transactions wore carried out with parties controlled by the conmpramyg

Cutstanding balances arising from sales and uthers:
() Amwonite Dhee fram Relited Partus:
Dellogistics Intaimational (Privale) Limined
Eco Tech Management (Private) Limited
Thilina Beokshop
Intemationasl Institute of Development Training (Private) Limited
Zeneth BPO (Private) Limited
TEDHA
Development Cancipls (Private) Limited
Sustainable Agendd (Private) Limied

i) Aprowints Dug frovm Divectors & Shareholders
Ewit from Shurcholdirs

Mir. Tulsi Waloogpiilal
Mir. D. G, Wijemanne

L) Anwusets Drie b Related Parties
Sustamable Engineering Concept {Privase) Limited
Sustainable Engineering Technology (Private) Limited
KEHT Lanka Jang (Private) Limited

(v} Amoynts Dug 0 Direetors
Mr. Ko ALK Jayatifake

'.E'-

1034 523 11,045,409

LA12615 4417515

18419 18419

2,664,557 2344934

554177 g0

128 buig 83321

57,245 380,045

152842 118,075

19,623,152 19,259,042

492,852 452582

7450 4910

567,792 567,792

437,645 550,701
6,112,094 :

- 1519,000

10,654,740 206,701

2,059,250 2,059,250

2,054,250 2,059,250

53‘\
GHARTERSD jk
M‘fﬂuTII‘}.ll o
7 {,'! ¥
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER

Barvice Inome:
Direct Service Costs
Gross Profit

Other Indme

Perscmme] Expentes
Administration Expenses
Finanie Costs

iLoasl [ Prafit Before Taxation
Incomne Tox Expensie
(Loss) ! Profit for the Year

Page 01
2019 20315
Ri. R
124,770,593 159,671,737
(B9,004.338)  (115,592,607)
Statement 1 37,056,259 44,079,130
Statement 2 2. 567,703 10,214 446
39,623,962 53,293,57%
Statement 3 (21,936.405) [22,580,552)
Statemant 4 (15955,006) (19,624 (59)
Stalement 5 (2,39 142} {3.856,166)
{401,282.553) (46,060,787}
{656,591) B,232.752
Statement f {26 505) (798,354)
(920,186) 7,434,438
) .@;’5\1 ASigs
f g \.J:.'n
o \!
- 4 Mc:xurln_ SED ) o= |
— CoUliTaNT
0
A o
S
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Chartersd Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 DECEMBER

Giross Profit Statement 1

Gross Profit!  Gross Profit/

Service Service (Loss) (Loss)
Deseription of Profect/Prograrmime Income Costs 20019 208
Rs. R, R, Re:

Marine Drive 3,144,312 3086, 728 2,157,584 2375 6aF
Simplex Infrastruciine 60334 10,645 249,589 36,393
Kalamatya Fishery Harbar: 432,345 B90,026 (2RT bRy 400,006
ElA Muthurajawelr . . - {261, 168]
ElA Western Powar - . - 37,700
Upper Kothrile - Foes - - - BR5445
Paranagumi - Coardination - - - 10,0004
Puranagums - Other - . . (120)
BOI Katurayake . - . 144,868
EIA Nilasevary . - - (134,531)
SIA for Tech City 2,944,140 1,780,080 1164100 343,304
UND?P Survaying & Cons &[126 50E £711,900 146,608 68,670
SEMS irPan Asia Bank 2,502,320 2,363,198 539,122 323524
[EER Mayura I'lace - 4,900 {4.900) 369,337
[EE Hemmanthagama - . - 457,553
Hemmanthagama - - = 1609057
Nuethirn Fisheries - LKR 73,347,200 13, 560,654 9T 12,053,014
Ik Wet Season 4,518,095 36290 EERRTE .
Morthir Fisheries - Provision 3,155,605 4,353,100 {1157 504) (89,262}
Jaffna Sticim Water. 4,809:593 3,810,570 1,080,023 B0,
|EE Fantasy [sland L7954 7,825 90,134 -
F1A Alawwa 3,458,778 1,916,036 1842742 -
GMC 1801358 . 1,601 358 -
Mharnriar Wird Mower 2562862 1927 8506 65,006
Sulue Purk Siyabulanduwa 3,224,001 2084, 350 113,651 -
IEE Ampara Wild Life 853,000 573,014 279,586 -
PR Plastic Wasie Mgt 4.016.786 . 4,016,786 -
Haorel Clry Waves 316326 - Al6, A28 -
Kochikade 4,983 954 2335722 1616232 =
Nuethern Teurlsl P 203,53 77437 125,68 -
Transiation DRE Guidelines 156,07 44,150 1,521
Huotspot Eastern 4,117,597 3,999,286 118,711 -
Hutspot Uva Soullwrm 5570479 5,359,310 210,660 =
GFC Wastd Mgt 37,637 - i .
TA Agriculturne Europe EU 18,233,561 14,715,168 3.508,793 02038
Melwa Hioel Project 244,598 208,975 37,4925 187,291
Hictic Baseline Study a70817 357,331 253 456 700.276
Mahaweli Loft Bank 4504 464 2149965 2395201 -
blA Wasta tn Frergy . . : (128333)
Vogo [ Biz . 5 . 513,148
Peraliya Anchotige . I 502390
Sepiage Trentmient - [ e\ - (292.525)

C/F Balance 109,777,255 & EHPHZN 26,965,455
= ACCOUNTANTS,
6, LU _J;E
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EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER

Grass Profit!  Gross Profit/

Sarvice Survice iLoss) iLass)
Diesertption of Project Progrimme Income Costs 2my 2018
Rs. Rs. Rs. Ras,
B/12 Halance 109777265 75344437 34,432 848 26,965,455
Trireo Master Plan . 152,495 {112,395} $833,703
Puranaweall Fishery Har - - - 499388
Cliimale G‘I.llh}{.!: - = 1,488,407
EIA Wilgamuwa . 3378 13.278) (2,619)
Bli2 Dorset Mroperty Bevelopraent . E - T80
Agri Megs Zone - Ampara / Lhana - - - 1,161,895
IMMI Dats Ciollecting - = - L7240
Lawsctbil] Ja-Ela, Bkaln - " - (2,145)
IEE Black Water Stage |1 - - T
Lalan Rubboer = = . 14474
BSIDC GCWWMP 3,680,574 3,108,320 S8LA5E 175,835
Solmd Mgt of PCBs - . . 87.607
Professional Ser - [luka 1,597 042 . T 42 745,067
NG Profject-Dhikkowita LSEY B09E 754 3.000.508 3008, 245 2412 658
1EA Residential Blucks 7l4a . 743 -
EIA Mudirigisiya 1,012.251 L211,39H {199,117} -
LG NaLL_an-Ctmu]lancy 2183035 1A 1411630 962114
POB Singapore LT L0 (1,171,989) -
Markey & SE Susvey - Fecs . 3,407 552 (3407852 -
TEE Wellawalis . 157,500 (157,50 =
Electricity Affordability Surv - 2,010 2610 -
Agr Mod'n Propect 1,708, 052 722,949 PE1,138 310,517
Boklel for Projec foads = . - 215,319
126,070,595 9,014,336 37,056,259 44.079,130
2019 2018
Ry, s,
DOther Income Statement 2
Interest Income Staterment 2.1 2,273,585 2166719
Creditor written back 58,259 591,587
Eschange (Lossp/ Gain (At 181) TA5E,143

2,567,703 10,214,449
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Chartered Accountanis

EML CONSULTANTS (PFRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER

Interest Income
a) Tnterest Income from Saviugs Accounts in Local Curroncy
NDE - Savings Accounil
HNB - Savings Account
BOC- Saving Account

B Treterest Tncdie from Savivgs Accoints in Foreign Currency
NDB - Saying Account
HNG - CAD
BOC ALID (073581610
HNEB - Saving Acoount

cb Interest Incomme from Fived Degrosils e Foreign Curremicy

DB - Fixed Deposit Account No lOB330T7RS 1 Dollar | Australia)
HINE - Fixed Deposit Account NoA303 1007505 7 Dollar (USA)

HNB - Fixxedd Deposit Accounl Ned39210153233 / Dollar {Australin)
HNE - Finedd Dieposit Account No 43921015388 / Thollar (Australia)
HNH - Fised Deposit Account No 4392101308 / Dollar [Austrakia)
HNB - Fixed Deposit Account No.43031009331 7 Dollar (USA)

NDB - Fised Depusit (FEEA) FCAPS No 1083001197 { Dallar (USA)
NDIB - Thyed Deposit (FEEA) FCAPS N, 105330002471/ Dollar (USA)

b Matevest Income from Fized Deposits in Local Cirvemcy
HNB - Fived Dieposit Account Mo.G33037013823/LKR

Fage (4
20149 208
Rs. [is.
Staterent 2.1
172471 155 193
168,210 79,940
TTLAN a9
613,118 291,045
15.551 18,517
B EE
B 316
247,929 158,270
263,880 172,437
a7 el Tl
163,619
136,762 145,924
134,863 145587
138,844 141,030
. 21,346
8820 G609
67,585 B39
1,306,557 1517149
- 146,058
- 186,088
2,273,585 2,166,719
S APAS;
Q=
=7
= AC{UL'J::LI I
- TS
(L)
e O
= e /
L
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Co,
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 DECEMBER

Personnel Expennes

Chairmin's Remmuneration
Stalt Salaries and Allowances
Director Fee

Diractor - Traneport Allowance
Buritis

EPF Contribution

ETF Cortibution

Retainar's Fees

(virtima

Mehile Fes Relmburzemont
Travelling Reimbursament
Coordimation aflivance

Leave Encashument

Tax gn Tax - PAYE

Provision for Employes Benefits- Gratulty

Administration Income
Zalary Reimbussement from related companies

Finance Costs

Interest an Bark Cverd rafs
Tgasa Intérest on Finanoe Linses
Inberast on Lougn

Ineome Tax Fapense

Currenit Income Tax Expenss
Income Fax kxpense on Carrent Year's Profif
Dieferred Tax Bxpense

Fige 05

ams 2018

Ri. =
Statement 3

412,500 412500
14,528,163 14,864 530
S60 454
- 2419
118,050 348,250
1,743,383 1.783,952
435 850 46,003
1,153,425 1,218,322
524963 369,957
260642 301,851
1.766,003 1,939,751
G 499 62,500
22407 135,801
- 141,786
1,000,503 BE7.417

22,544,028 24 067,564

(67, 44%0) (134251}
[520,137) (1.352,731)

21,956,405 22 580 550

Slatement 5

1767116 1,322,047
28114 196754
Bus g2 1,735,380
2,391,142 3,856,166
Statement b

79854

708,354
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MGI KAL Rapasinghe & Co. Pige 06
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTAMNTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 DECEMBER 2019 2018
Rs. Rs.
Administration Expenses Statement
Eleptricily 151,865 139,233
Waoler 6] 448 £3357
Blaif Welfare Ll B 415202
Security 116634 137,200
Staffs Traming Seminar & .Wurksl'mpi - 13,500
Business 'romotion & Marketing 11,861 8025
Repair & Mainbenance I,_T":'i‘?,.l‘.‘n'.'-'.l 848,035
[epair / Servico for Vohicles 962.212 792,142
Advertising 47550 270032
Stalicrery 44 10 376,518
Telephone 190,425 210,660
Rufreshments & meeting exprense 2555 23,333
Intermet 290519 367,535
Pastage & Courer 3305 17.004
Travelling - Lol 8BRS 73a8s
Travelling -« Forelgn 5,400 ]
Annial Livense and Insurnce Fees -Vehicles 359,424 290,350
Insurance 115,381 174,089
Insurance- Health 74,989 252,024
Membership Fres 109,899 121,125
IT Feus 00,000 300,000
Secretarial Services 35,700 £0,516
Audit Fees EXIERNES] 00000
Ackounting Support 7 -
Advisory Consultancy Few 2669101 52,601
Domain Renewal bedvd [} 2340
Tender Documeniation Charge 67,540 80,250
Bid Bond bank charges: S0 51500
Tasntion Fees 1{,000 176845
Lusgrud Fows bbb 421 550
Propeul Writers Fees 543,875 3385599
Fropesal Fleld Visil Expenses 33,019 55,072
Dianations - 550
MSL - Paytoll Preparation 140,508 134,357
Cleaning Charges IE7 M0 410,335
Nation Building Tax 2,053,258 303,629
Frael for Vebickes 1,003,636 1,069,350
Depreciation on Properiy, Plani and Equipsient 3,750,851 4489714
Tende debrees wrilten off 3570484 Bd5,949
Ti‘npn'rmlent im Trode Recolvable E 1,879.973
Service Agreement 55,004 :
Bahk Chirgus B1.57 171,052
Tax Penalty = - AL
f{gﬁéﬂ:-J _ 21865411 74937,669
Qyer recovery of Expenses j ;‘" _— (RUE5A42) (290,280
Overhead Expenses recovernd from related companies DRAMHR (3,476,563) (2413320
15,955,006 19,624,050
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Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

mgi kal rupasinghe & co. /+

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2018
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Hoh, Dalabenamulls Lane,
mgl kal rupa51 nghe 8‘ co '-:iruf&p:ane,,[nlrn'nm B, :Sll I.;nka
o ART L AL Edi Teleprane : «841 11 2815653, S76R6G7. 57686097

Far 9011 2199819 Weby Lwwwaingikalrupeaicom
£ mail : kalrupeoimgikalupeo com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REFORT

TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATL) LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Finaneial Stalements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying linancial statements of EML Consultants (Private) Limiited, which
comprise (he Statement of Finapeial Position as at 31 December 2018, and the Statement of Comprishensive
Ingome, the Statement of Changes in Reserve and Statement ol Cash Flaws for the year then ended, and
fiotes Lo tie [Angoclolstateients, includiog o summary of significant uccounting policics,

in our gpinion, theaccompanying financial statements give a true and fir view of the financial position of
the Company a5 al 31 Decamnber 2018, and of 1 financial pedformanee for the vear then ended in
accordance with Sri Lanka Financial Reparting Standard for Smaller Entilies.

Basia for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with 501 Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSS). Cur responsibilities
unler thase standards ave further deseribad in the Auditor's Responsibilitios (o the Audit of the Finaneial
Statements section of our report, We are independent ol the Comipany in accordance with the ethical
riduitemients of the Code of Etfes issued by CA Sel Lanka that are relevant (o our audit of the gl
statemnents, and we have fulfillad our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics,
We balieve that the audit evidence wé have oblained is sufficient anil approprinte to provide a basis for
O Opinivi.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Stalements

H{L_ﬂ_ﬂt‘tgemenl-fﬁ respemsible for the preparation amd fair presentotion of these fmancial statements in
accutidinee with Sri Lanka Financial Repiorting Staiclard for Smaller Entities and for such el contiol
as managenienl detennnes is necessary to enable the preparation of financial stataments Lhat are free [rom
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial stalements, management is respansible for assessing the Company’s ability to
‘continug as a going, concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and wsing Lhe
going canceérn basis of accounling unless minnagement either intends to lguidale the Company or to ceasy
operations, o has no realistic alternative but to de so,

Tl‘m“-‘ charged with governance are responsible for uverseeliy Uhe Conipany’s financial reporting process,

(HERER @
ﬁ:‘mmwmnli X

lEarfames o an. L
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m gl I{a[ ru paSi r] g h e & CO j -,' MeG, Balahvenamulla Lane,
LW Kitutapane, Colomibo &, Sl Larika

y Telephnne: 19417 2815655, 5768667, 576R697

Pt 0 11 299908 Web: wwawmgikalrupoo.com
Emalls kalrupeognmuaikalrupes com

A A O I A -

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our chijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the linanclal statements as o whole ane
Froe Tronn aterial niisstotemmont, whether doe b fraod e ereor, and Lo issine o additors reporl tit
includes our opinion Keasonable assurance (s a ligh fevel of assurance, but is nol a guarantes that an
il comductod in sccordance with BLAuSs will always delect a moderial misstafemont when it exists:
Misstatenuents van arise frony fraud o error and ane considered  material il ndividually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to nfluence the ecanomic decisions of wsers taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

i

MG KAL Rupasinghed: Co.
Chartered Accountants
Colombo

14 Oetober

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction

91



MG KAL Rupasinghe & Co,
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (TRIVATE) LIMITID

STATEMENT QF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Pagel

FOR THF YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2018 e
Nole Rs Rs
Revenie 3 139,671,737 B6,528,306
[Hract Cost {113,392,607) (53,967,615)
Girgss profit 44,079,130 32,560,691
Oher income 4 8,047,730 3,675,209
Administrative expoisie (42,204,621) (37, 1L EM)
{Operating profit/ oss) 9,922,239 904,930
Firance inconm 2,166,719 1,806,523
Firtance cusis (3,856,166} (4.367,171)
Finance costs - net a5 (1,589,447) (2,560,H8)
Profil / (loss) before tax 8,232,792 (3,165,578)
Income tax b (798,354) (109,797
Profit / (loss) for the year 7,434,438 (3,575,375)
‘her Comprehensive Income
Surplus from rethving benefit obligation 16 528, 0l T B
Dieferred Tax effect on actuarial loss on deflned Benelils plan (52,806) (7287
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 7,909,696 (3,504,796)
Earnings / (loss) per share - basic (Rs) 7 0.09 {0.04)

e acconnting policies aid nates on pages 5 10 17 form mi integril port of these financial stalements,

[Colombuo
14 Octaber 2019

SiARIEHED
=L AConUNTALITR fe)
/ﬂ
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MG KAL Rupasinghe & Co.
Chartered Accountants

EMT CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE LIMITER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT ST DECEMBER

Assels

MNon-current assets

Propedy, plant and eqguipornt - Frephold
Property, plant and equiprient -Leaseliold
Total Mon-current assets

Current assels

Trade and Other Ruecelvabloed
Income Tax Refurd

Shorl'= Term lovestonedits
Aol due friom Rilated Party
Canbi vl eanh equivalonis

Total current assets

Tolalassels

Equity and Habilities
Capital and teserves
Stated capital

Retamad cainiigs

Total Sharcholder's funds
Non-current liabilities
Burrowlngs

Delined betefit ubligations
Distorred noome tax finbilitios 3
Total Non-current liabilities
Current linbilities
Borrowings

Tradu ol other jpayililes
Al thoe o Related Paty
Total eurcent Habilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Noles

10 {1)
112 (b}

§}
12

£

1*

Tuge 2

2018 2007
s R
56, 655,04 50,224,474
06,979 2,237 514
R7462,013 611,451,948
32,210,104 47,555,155
| B, 7012 1,423,451
a7 861,272 41,414,709
19,526,854 24,560,205
26,639,292 13,368,350
IR, 15140 126,323,962
175,613,017 189,775,950
40,900,000 0,900,400
2,098,345 (5.791,351)
92,998,345 85,108,649
3,080,125 10,850,627
4,053,190 6,53, R37
1,083,847 234,687
8,159,162 17,629,149
18,392,630 A0,u08,656
51,954,829 51,551,240
4,128,951 3,578,250
74456410 A7.038,152
H2,615,572 104,667,301
175,613,017 189,775,950

The wecountisg pelicies i o tes o pages 51017 fore an iibogral parl of Guse fgocitl statiomonts,
Thee Pivnsretol Statements are tn complinece with e reguirements of Hie Companles Act N 07 of 2007,

Chitef Tinprecial Officor

Tie Boart of Diveetars ix vesponsilde for Hue proparation wd presentation of tese Finaucdal S foments,

Approed aond stgued foraad o behpif of Hie Ban rils

[
ek

Fhbhne s amamnadnnainnnne

I¥ireator

Caluustin
11 October 2019

Direcior
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MGI KAL Rupasinghe & Cao,
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITELD

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31871 DECEMBER 2018

Puge 3

Stated Relained
capital carnings Total
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 31 December 2076 900,900,000 {2,281,555) 88,018,445
Total comprehensive loss for the year (3,509,794 (3,509, 796)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 90,90, 000 (5,7971,351) 85,108,649
rivr year Adjustiaent (20,000) {20,000)
l'otal comprehensive income for the year 7,909,696 7,909,696
Balance as at 31 December 2018 90,900,000 2,098,345 92,998,345

The qecortnting policies and notes oi pages 5 to 17 form an integral purt of these financiul statements,

Colombo
14 Cetober 2019
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MGTEAL Rupasinghe & Co; Page 4
Chartered Accountants

EML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASIH FLOW

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2018 Ly
Nole Its R=

Cash generated from [ {used in) eperations

Predit f (loss) before fax H.232,792 (3:465574)
Adjustments for)

Plepracialion Aa189,7 14 'Lr:'lﬂ':i,‘??ﬂ

Interest income (2,166,719) (1,8006,523)
Inferest ex pursi 1,735,380 2,381,680

|eaae Interest an Finpnoe [ease writlen of | 198,754 6T
Ciratuity Provision BEF 17 LSS0

Bad Debts Witten off / Reversal of Inpuirment on Debloss 3438406 GH0L87S
Writtert olf trade payables (591,587)

Frotit/Loss) o disposal of property, plant aned equipment B A35,889

Pricr Year Adjustment 120,000y

Operatiug Profit Before Working Copital Chonges 16,074,157 4,105,960

Changes in working capital:

- {Itrense)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivable B B43,008 (1.681,287)
= (lncrease)/Decrease-m Amounts Due rom Related Party 4,735,454 (i5.056,476)
- Inervase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payahles (616417) 19,998 466

= Increase/(Decrease) m Amounts Due To Reloted Party 530,701 (1.072,185)
Cash generled from operations 30,186,993 14,694,108

Cash genvrated from / (used in) operatlons 30,186,993 14,694 108

Interest paid ’ (1,745,380 (2.381,690)
Income Tax/WHT Maid {104,704) (22,203)
Definied beneflf abligations paid . (576,000
Netcash generated from operaling activitics 28,346,909 1L.704,215

Cash Mows:(rom investing activilies

Purchiise of property, plant and equipment (449,739) (1,029,663)
[lerest tessivied 2 166719 1,806,523

Irvestment / uplift in short lern investment 3,533,437 (4,713,345}
Mroceeds fram disposal of property, plant and equipmoent ] 1,043 478

Nel cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 5,200,417 (2,893,007)
Cash flows from financing activilies

Maonetnetit in borrowiing (10,712616) (6.759,102)
Netcoash used in financing activities (10,712,616) (6, 7549,102)
MNet Ingrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 22,834,710 052,106

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year {11.903,963) (13.958.091)
Cashand Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 1 1092672 (11,905,885)

wAS)
Aigiils “,'-,r
i

The accounting policies and notes on pages 5 1o 17 forman integral part of these f

3
o

T AGLOUHTANTS | )

Colonibo

Mmoo PR
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MGIKAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page 5
Chartered Accountants

EMI CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Thy EML Consultants (Private) Limpted is o Gmiled Llabllity Company incorporalid on 10t Mareh 1993 anel
domiciled in Sei Lanka, The Registered Office and Principal Place of basiness of the Company 15 situated ab No,
&10, Rajamaha Vihara Lane, Balamalia Vikhara Rogd, Pita Kalte:

The Company 15 engaged in the service or offering consultancy services in the coregories of Engineering
Enviranment, Natural Sciences, Social Sciences; Technical Seiences, Technical, Tinanclal and Managemint Services
ftey Lo organizations within and outside 5 Lanka,

Thuse financisl slaterments v besn approved for [ssue by the Baand of Divectbrs on 14 Ocbobep 2019,

Summary of significant acedunting policies

Ine flsl s b Hirarcial statements prepared in accordanve with the "SLERS for Small and Mediom-sized Entities
sl by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sei Lankno. The principal accounting policies applied in the
seeparation of thise Hnancial statements are set aut below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
cears presented, unless otherwise stated.

21 Basis of prepamtion
ine fimmotal Sﬁs,ternentu of EML Consultants (Private) Limited have been prepared m accordance with the ‘Srf
Lorka Financtal Reparting Standards for Small and Medlon-sizad Entitles’ (SLERS fur SMES), They have Leon

oeeparnd pnder the Ristorical cost comvention, as modifled by the fair valuation gf financial assets subsequently at
seoortized costwheresver applicable which are initially récopnized ot flr value,

AL prepdrabion of tmancial slatements inoconfarmity with the SLERS for SMES sequires thig use of Gertain crltical
seanting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its fudgment in the process of applying the accounting
solicies: Arzas Invilving a Wigher degree of judgment or complexity, of arens whire sssumptions and estimations
e wgnitieant to the Anancial statements:

%

22 Foreign currency translation
w0 Functronal pnd prresentation curroney

serrs ncluded in thie finanicial staterments are measurod Using the currency of thie piimasy éeonamie eibirbniment in
we ok the ontity apetates (the functonal carreney'), The Hnaneial statements are presented in 'St Lanka Hupees’,
« o am s considered the Company's tunctional and pressnsation currency.

- Trunsactions aud balinces

oo gn cunency transactions are translated inre the functional currency uaings the exchange rates prevailing at the

coes o the transactions. Fareign exchange gilns and losses sosulting from e sulbivmient of sueh rangactions and

= e manslation at yearend exchiange rates of monetars assets and labilities denominated in foreign currenciss,
o recognized In profit o loss,

Sore znewchange gains ard losses are presented o Proftor loss within “finonce incorme / (Costs) - net.
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%G1 KAL Rupasinghe & Co. Prge 0
Charteted Adcountants

L CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITEL

SICNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Symmary of significant accounting policies (Contd)
23 Property, plant and equipment

Praperky, plant and equipment & staled at Historicol ot lass aceumulated depreamtion and any accuenlater)
Impilrment losses:

fwh Mogsurement

|
l
h Histarical cost Irdludes expendituee that isdirectly attribuilable to bringing the asiet to the Jomtion und condition
| mecessary for it to bi capable ol operating in the indnnier intended by management.

The subsiguent ciogts ove nclided i the assel's carrying amaurt o recogrinod a5 a separate assul, as appropriste,

by syhen it is-probable that future einmule benefits associaled with the fem will low tg the Company and the
et o the jtesy con be measured celiably, The carrving amount of the feplaced parts are dinvcognized. All repairs
o fraintenance st chatged to the statermient of compethonsive meome during the linancial perlod i which they
azz ingurred,

e Dgreeesafion
rdisnot depreciated as it is deemed to have an indetinite e

Dugredintion on other assets is charged sp0s to allocate the ost af assets leas thelr residual valies over thetr
o mated diseful Tives Uiz the dtraight ke method cotmening from the meanth in which the asiet | avallable for
e On disposal of nssets depreciation s calculated exclusive of the month in which disposal takis place.

ris stimitied dseful Tives ramge of property, plimtand equipment ls s follows:

Sodldingx 20 years
— et Brquipment 3 years
sersturedand kings. 3 years
= Lgu|pment 4 years

& e vehicles 5 yeals

o sesets restdual values wseful lives and depreciation methods ane reviewed, and adjusted prospectively Il
e sarate, if Bhoreds an indication of 4 significant change singe the last reporting dite.

io s s carrying ameunt 18 writter diwn tmmedintely tu (s recaverable amuwit il the carrying amountis ghuer
=a= = estimated reciverable amount.

e and ldses bh disposals are dewermined by eomparing the proveeds with the carrylng amount and are
< oiaed within other gains | (lusses) - et In the stuttment of camprehensive meome
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MGLKAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page 7
Crartered Accountanls

£311 CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SCSNITICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= sammary of significant pecpunting policies (Contd)

31 Impairment of non-financial assets other thar inventories

Aesnls thint ave dubjiet to decreciation or amortization are pssessed at wach repartivg date o dewrmine whother

there 15 any nditation that the agsdts are impaited. Whete there s any indication thal an asset may he impatred, thie
| carrying volis of the asset (on l:.‘lsh~g:._'rmr.'-l-ing it by wlvich this ansid hne been altfocated ) i tested for imypairment:

A impaierient foss Is recognized for the amount by which the assot's carmying itmaunt exceuds s reroverable
‘ smaunt. The recoveralile ambunt fs the higher ol &0 asset's (op COU's) foir value less costs fo sell and value in use
For the purpuses of assessing impaitment, issels ave grouped at the lowest levels tor which there are separately
Sestifiable cash flows (CGUs) Won-financial assets olher thar goodwhl vt suffered an impalrrient oo reviewed
it pessible reversal gf thee impattisent at 8ach reporting date. .

15 Invedlories

wentries are compnisng of inbs at work in progress. At achi repurting date, Inventorles ame assessed o
—sirmmet, I inventory Is impaired, thi corrying amount s reduced tn its selling price lesm posts Lo complee and
=11 the impairment foss 1s recopnied (mmediately in profitor liss:

& Financial aesets - loans and receivables

e Classification

sme anel recaivables aoe mon -dorivative financial sssats with Hyed or determinuble payiments thit are not guutue In

o coriue arken They dee tneluded in current assets, except for maturites greatet than 12 months after the coud of

o srarting period. Thise are classitied as non-currént assels: the Conipany’s [oans antt recervables eomprise trade
.t Lot receivables and cash and cash equivalent In the statement of financial pesition (Notes 2.8 and 2.9).

Sel Heepguition andmensurement
s snd eedeivalies ore initially megsered i lai value and subsequently cartied al pmnetlzad cubl using e
ey rirpergtmethod.

Impairment of finaneial assets - assets carried al amortized st

“op _ompany assesses at He end of each reporting peclod whether there s objettive evidince that a financial assgl
o cocp il finamcial assets is ompaired. A financiol asset or o groop of financial ases s infpaiced and impalrment
e re Inpurred only [ there |s objective guidence of impairment as a result ot ome o mare evanls that pectrred
e e cnitial Tecugmition of the asset (i 'hoss event’) and hit luss cvent {ur events) ks an Impact-on the estimatesd
e cxehy s of the Francial assel ar group ol finameal assets fal con be cellably sstimated.

e ol mpairment may: inclade ndications that the debtors or a geoug uf debtogs i3 expérioncing sigificant
ol diifilulty, default or delinguency in interest pr principal payments, the probability: that they will enter
o umers ar ather financis] reorgankzmtion, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrense
e paimazed future cnsh fows, such an changes in arregrs ol economic i itlons tt cutrelte with detaiis:
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MGIKAL Rupasinghe & Co. Page §
hartered Accountants

EAL CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SHGNIRICA NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ANT) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I Summaty of significant accounting policies (Contd)

27 Impairment of financial assets - assets carried at amortized cost (Contd)

For loans and receivables catggory, the amount of the loss is meesured as thie differerice bdtwoen the assel’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash Hows (excluding tuture eredt losses that ave ok been
Ineurfed) discounted at the Ffinaticisl asset’s ariginal elfective Intefest fate, The sarrying amount of the asset s
reduced and the amount ot the loss is remgn_[kud [n the statement of comprebensive income, 11 a loan or helid:to-
maturity Investment has o varlable interest rabe, the discount gate for measaring any impairment loss s the careent
cifertive interest rate determined under the contrack. As @ practical expedisnt, the Company may measure
smpalrment o tha basis of an irstrument’s (air value using an observable market price.

25 Trade receivables

[ratie receivablesare recognized initially at the ransaction pace, They are subsequently measured at amorized cost
sing (e effective interest method, less provision for impalment. A provisiun ferimpairment of frade veceivalbles s
=tablished when there isobjoctive evideare that the Company will not e able to aollect all amounts due sccording
o theariginal terme of receivables,

2% Cashand cash equivalents

Foe the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and ash equivaleats compiise cash in hand, depasits held at call
wies banks, nel oof bark overdrafts, Bank pverdrafts are shown within borrewings in current labdlities an fhe
satement of findneinl position.

110 Siated capital
T ordimary shares are classified as equity,

=11 Trade payables
Teade pavables aee tedognized indlially ot the lransaction piice and subseguently measuned at amirtized cost using
—w erisctiveanterest method:

-

252 H.m-mwiuﬁs

Beeonngs are inilially recognized at the lransaction price including transaction costs, These are substiguently
s 2t amaortized cost.

= TE

Barrowing costs

S oortowing cests are recognized @5 an expensein staterment ot comprehensive income in the period in which they
o= curred,

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction
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ML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

* Summary of significant accounting policies (Contd)

214 Proavisions

Provisions are recogmized when the Company has o present legal or constructive abligations as a result of past
avents, it is probable that an outflow of resources embudying eeonomic benelits will be required to settle the
abligation, and a relinble estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the tikelihood that an outflow will be reguired insettlement is
determined by considering the class of nbligations as a whole. A provislon is recognized even if the likelihood of an
watflow with respect to-any one item included in the samie class of bbligation miay e small.

5z provisions are measured at the present value of expendllures expeded to be sequired Lo settle the obligation,

215 Employee benefit obligations

e Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

Zermud banefit plan defines an amount of benefil tatan employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on
e ot mare factors such as years of service and compensation. The defined benaflt plan comprises the gratuity
=roviced under the Act, Na 12 of 1983,

Toe ability recognized in the staterment of financial position i respect of defined benefit plarn is the present value ol
s delined benetit ubligation at the date of the statement of financial position together with adjustments for
crmmgnized pastservice costs. The detingd benetil obligation is caleulated annually using the lornila method,
“we present value of the defined benefitubligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
==z approprifte interest rates

Cesreevice costs are recogrized immediately In stotement of comprehensive incbine, unisss the changes to he
cemmed benelll plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specitied periad of e (the
=g period ) In this case, the past-service cosls are amortized on a dtraight-line basis over the vesting period.
womaesl gams and losses arising from experience adjustinesits and changes In actusrial Assumplinns are recognizd
starely incthe statement of comprehensive income.

cesumptions based on which the resulls of the actuarial valuation was determined, are included in Note 17 1o
e ==ancial statemenis,.

= 4

> Detined contribution plans

v el emplovess of the Company ate members of the Employees’ Provident Fund and Employecs' Trust Fund, to

s e employer contributes 12% and 3% respectively ot such employees’ basic or covsolidated wage or salary,
| == = conz and all other allowasnces, The contributions are recognized as emplovee benefit expense when they anp

tx smtmbution payments excoad the cordribation due for servic, the excess Is recognized as ah asset.

BHARTEREL

ACCOURTANTS
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EMI CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= =ummary of significant sccounting policies (Contd)
216 Current and deferred Lticomis lox

The tax expense for the perod comprises curtent snd deterred tas. Taw is vecognized in profit dr loss, excest tiat o
chatige atbributable to an it of Income or expense recognized as other cormprehensive incomie s alsp recognied
direerly i uther comprelinsive income.

The pruvision for current Income tax s based on the elemints of incorme and espenditure as reported in the finandia)
statements and computed in accordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act, N 10 of 2006,

Defered Incame tax is provided i full, wsing e liabllity method, on femporary diiterences arising between the tax
cases of assels and lokilites and their carmving amounts in the finsncial statements. Deforeod inoifie ax i
dergrmmined using tax rates fand laws) that havi been snacted or substantinlly nacked by the reporting date and are
cupczed to apply when the related defermsd ineome tiy assets i realized or the deferred income tax liability is
setriad

Densrried inpome rax assels are recogndzed lo the extent that it 1s probable thot futuie uxable protis will be available
szarmst which the temporary ditterences can be utflized.
=17 Revenue recognition:
o Renilering of Sereices
fevere eqmprises the faie value of the considiration received o recelvable for the services rendered in the
sy courae of the Company's activitivs. Revinue is shown et of all applicable txes snd levivs, rsturms rebiles
=t dismounby
o Iurerest incinne
st income s Tecugnized using [he offective interest method.
L% Expenditure
T penses are aocagnized o an acerual basis. All expenses incuirsed in thie oidinady coueie oF budiness arid in

s emning propelty plantand equipment i a sate of afticley s charged sgainst income in arriving 41 the resulis
& propely p o Y IS G ; , j .

= =w 14T

S e parpuse of presentation af the statemint of compreliensive ncome Infofmotiin, expense by functon method
Sl Claddlfy enpenses, .

L Dividend distribution

el awsmibuton o the company’s shareholders 15 recoghiand a5 o Hability i the Company's financiil
e the period b whichithe dividends are approved by the company's shareholders

== Comparatives
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SR CONSULTANTS (PRINVATE) LIMITED

STLANTFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES 10 THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

s wmr
iis Rs
¢ Hevenue
Aevenui from Consultaney Services 159,571,747 S5z, M0n
15%671,747 6,528,306
¢ Other income
womt oo - 405000
Eacharige Gain 7450143 1,968 553
Crecditnr wrlthen bk T8 587 GRT, D
“vsrsnl of bad debt provison . A0, 542
8,047,730 3,675,205
& Femance ingomy and costs
cEmaNE Nt
=czest Incomne 116,719 180503
2165719 1,806,523
Fiman: s posts:
=it on borrwings (3.657412) {4,045 544
et Tifkrest om Finamoe Leases 195,754 {301,637
13,856, 166) (4.367,171)
Tanced costs - nel (1,689.44%) '(2.560,645)
®  Smmer Tax
S=ee=ent of Profit / loss
—meet Tan Expiense - 59547
= pronlsion : (38,695,
waimrod Tax TR 54 L
e smarge reported in Income Sialemen| 798,354 109,797
Sememant of other comprehensive income
S T difect on octuarial gain/less) on dofined Benefits plan 52 506 787
o Ssge directly to other comprehensive income 52,506 7.287

=i by Fitli o peafil) s 28%

W on the Company's peoliy biefore tx differs fiom the theotelieal aribwent that wauld arise diling the basic tax rate
= prafits of the Company as follows:

Wit buitore by ;232,792 (3:465,578)
Soe Sooedlfie Disallvwed Undee Siee 26 7,629,081 5,178,565
s bl Bvpenses Including Busins Losses set-off (6,229,021 [6.976,982)
e =tment Iboome (9,622.862) (1,300,119,
S e Trade or Busineds - 16,765,308)
S merest Inmme | Investmient Thcirie ENTeg. 1 S e
e Cecuoion ander Section 33 (Non taabile parl & allowalile Iimses setoff) (2622862 (1882118}
T Income - 351,400
B Sz = Friofis frpm this Business - s
B B ow the Interest Income %;}53
T o Tax Expensa - 98,342
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“VL CONSULTANTS (FRIVATE) LIMITED

STONIFICONT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Farnings / (loss) per share

Sesle enmings / toss) per share is caledlated by dividing thie profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
waghted aversge number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

2018 2017
ot/ losg) attributable o vguity holders of the Company 7804, 558 [3;‘5&"_1,:'.1“}
‘eighted average mumber of erdinary Shares in issue (Note 15) G0, 20,000 S0,900,000
Zzsic Lamings [ (1 0ss) per share (Rs), 0.04 LG4y

¢ Trade and other receivables

" dy receivables 25,571,904 414944860
Frovision for lmpal et {1,679.973) {1,423,2423)
T3,691,93) 4{1L521,018

Fomet work-Insprogress 5159405 -
“szateon advances for projects 168,008 3582907
vocsit and prepavinments 601,063 513,053
Jemes roceivables [See Note (a) bulow| 2,595,607 2937557
32 216,104 47,555,155

Crher receivables mainly consist of [nterest Receivable of Re, 700, 185/ (2017 - Re, 726,774/-), Cash Murgin NDBE Re,
©IREL 2017 - Rs 1,011,367/, Ramboll KOHT roceivalile Rs. 042,069/ (2017 - Rs, 4269/ and ESC Recoverable Ks.
134573/ (2017 - Ra. 404,943/-).

¢ e Tax Refund

S 41 ke beginning of (hie year 1,423,451 1,412,100
-
Income tax proviskon for the ye - (59,557)
1,482,998 1,352,353
™
e provision - 3B.AUS
Wit Holding Tan 104,704 32,203
S ot the end of the year 1,587,702 1,423,451

|-:-'IRE.=‘“£{’ i

L= 1
PECOUNTANTE 1O
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Sl CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SHOSIFIONT ACCOUNTING POLICTES AND NOTES 10O ' THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
© & Froperty; plant and equipment - Freshold
P
Balance as at ﬁl::::;:m Additions Disposals Balance as at
01,01.2018 during thie year  during the year 31122018
: property durimy thie y glneyen ;
Hs. Hs. Its. Rs. Rs.
ArCost | Valuation
Lt TR DD L&, 008000
Seildings 45,860,920 - 45, BGH,925
e G Budleling Tmprovement 4,138,115 - - A THR LD
s Vehicles 14,9598 Ba0 E - 14,998 5601
= oo Laquipments 1937909 & g - 1,937,908
Commputer Equipments 1267 5684 = 170200 - 11,4377
Fammitre & Finings 3,054,504 329,535 - 3384443
Temai 99,265,299 - 409,734 . 99,766,038
tr ! .
Balance ssat T"mﬁ:ﬂt;m Charge for the AT'T::;-:TM Balance as at
0101.2018 feasehol vear e 31.12.2018
property during the year
Rs. R s Rs. Rs.
Depeesation
Foar—ee 10,0153 405 24052492 = 12,458,657
e e Bulldivig Dnvpravimin 91,223 . - 91,273
s Lebtivlies 14,908,860 - 14,948,800
e Losipments 1,707, 56 - 27, Tod - 1LE2E T30
e Eguipments 10,350,014 . 474,650 . 10.524.068
b & Fittings 2,751,353 - 163,523 - 2,911,876
- 40,041,825 < 3,069,179 : 43,111,004
e Sk Value of Qm[g (AL Cast) W —EG.TJ‘N
S plant and eguipment <Leasehold
Balance agat Additons Transfer fo Disposals/Adju  Balance as at
0LO12006  during theyear  frechold assels  abments during  3L12.2015
the year
s, Rs, Rs. Ru. s
e | Valastion
— | s 7,102,676 : - 7,108,670
S 7,102,676 = = - 7,102,676
Balance asal  Charge furthe  Transfer to Disposals /| Balanice as it
01.011,2018 year freshold assels Adjustment 31.12.2018
B =
M— = LATS 142 LAmE3S 6,255,697
Thams. 4,575,102 1,420,535 - - 6,295,697,
e e |\ wlwe of Assets (AL Cost) 2227514 B6.97%
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D4 CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SSUNIFIONT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES 1O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2018 27
Rs. Rs.
© =nort- Term Investments
o estrtents Tn Fived Depmsits in Foreign Curency 37.881,272 39,270,570
eesiments in Fised Deposits in Local Currency - 2,144,139
37,881,272 41,414,709
“mount due from Related Party
“=ounts e from Related Companies RERS 19,259,042 29,50 15
it D Trom Dirvetons and Shazeholders 4 567,72 567,792
19,826 434 23562268
ik and cash equivalents
Fevvaratde Casli & Cash. Dipidvalent Balinces
e Swdlng Acmiinis RET Y 9330900
=z Saving Accounts 123073 303929
sz Clrrent Avcounts 4280 G3.R30
' ik 230,60 80,0000
el Favourable Cash & Cash Equivalent 26,630,452 13,368,359
Seesssuraile Cash & Cush Eipivionlent Bidannees
s et Acodunts 1571125 25274 344
Tl Unfavourable Cash & Cash Equivalent 15,711,267 25274344
S senand Cash Eguivadent for the Pirpise of Statepent of Cash Flowes TL828,725 (11,905,985}
s apital 2018 27
S ety ﬁrxrf.rmidmg shigraf the-vompmny fues Deen elrenged o e eursiont sbareholdies togittertontl ar respectros uldtig
= - &J:.ﬂml_;ij't oty i “lm_' Value [Rs) Vilie lﬂ;lil_
ST e b llarh 71850 G711 LASD =
Bl i - 67,111,850
Whien ~Sew £ VAN G449 445 G445 G4t 445
™ - ﬁﬁpﬁﬁ:'. A0k 667 ShbobT
= T 14725400 14725400 14725408
L el a6 744 7362744 F362,7H
_— . B8 58n LEEEEH] 148,885
90,900,000 90,200,000 0,900, 00N
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S CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
SENIFICNT ACCOUNTING POLICTES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2045 27
Rs, R,
= Sorrowings
“on Current (due more than one year)
Tesm lans 32135 10,850,625
3,020,125 10,850,625
urrent (dwe within one year)
= Lnans 2,08 500 3,880,500
sse= Creditors o863 1753812
S Overdrenft 15,711,267 25,774,344
15,392,630 30,908,656
7 =21 Borrowings 21,412,755 41,759,281

© Toe oroperty loan taken from HNB hos been tescheduled on 08th October 2018, when i was wtal capital owtstanding
st of Be. 4.2 Million, As per thi ressheduled terms and conditions, the loan tenmer has been sxtendedd [ of 42
“esements ram the date of rescheduledyand aecordigly nienthly capital répayimiinl is browgli whoywn to Rs, 100,000,00)

B Deoeed benefit abligations
st of Aynneial pesition gbilsalion for
Loataity 4,053,190 6,543,537

S ot el e sioe oo e

Coutiaity 329,353 985, 144

S ement i the defined benefit obligation over the viear isas follows:
. = 6,543,897 £,134,693
e vice Qo 427,689 468,895
e T ﬂg,m 5_59_.]15
s Deban) from retiving benafit abligation for the yeor (528,064) (72,806}
L (2,520,000 {576,000}
- by 4,053,190 £,543,637

S s recegnized inthe statement of comprebonsive incomoe are §s fallows:

e TS 427,089 468,595
T 429,728 589,115
Semes D) fromt reliring bonelir abitigolion for the yeay (528, 064) (72.806]
329,353 985,144

Weem—cma sesmmphions used in the caléulintion wede as follows:

B — 12% L2554
B e o7 fiatre saliry incresey 10% 0%
i = &5 venrs 65 yedars
Semese e e above. demographic asdum ptions suck as tirmover of employvees and retiverant age wer considered for
W

W v et benwfit Obligatons s hot estermally funded,
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S CONSULTANTS (FRIVATE) LIMITED
SHSAITICNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2018 207
Rs. Rs.
= Trade and other payables

“rade pavables 32514199 34,398 585
Cere Payibles 2,820,000 -
foorued expenses 4,515,503 +.175.804
Fesect Mobillzation Advarees Received 7,226,566 10,702,809
* AT Pavable 3,634,625 2571514
“ET Payvably 695,198 297,591
£5C Fayable 528,338 404,543

51,034,820 52,551,246

serisd Expenses mainly consist of Salary payable Re. 1,.436,963/- (2017 - Rs. 1,596,913/ y MD Commission, payable Rs.
CLTIAL (207 - Re. 540,718f) and Labout case ERFIETF Rs. 6815407 (2017 - Hs, 708,902/,

% eseent Due to Related Party

ot dae o Relared contpany 24 (i) 269,707 1,519,000
s s due o Directors and Sharcholders 2wy 2,059,250 2,055,250
4,128,951 3,578,250

W ememeent labilities

Sl e b legal actions agalnst the company as 3t (he Balance shest date,
T e s materidl contingent Habilifies exis{ing s at the statement of financial position date;
amesrmants

Eamesl commitments

Ty wore po material eapitad eommitments oulstanding g5 at the statemenl of financial position date.

s eses the end of reporting date

s e have orisen sinée the balano sheet datewhich would require adfustments o, or disclosure in, the
. sEoTents

e

S tmars - ssezursl gt antoptized clst

e s e recevables (excluding prepaymonte} (Nt 9) 25,575,761 45,275,687
Wl e euiy alente (Nabe {4), 26,435,992 13,368,359

55,215,753 58,644,040

s - mmeastired 0t mineritzed eus!
PR es = equrvalents (Nole 14) 15,711,267 25274344
M s = avibles (Note 18) 51,934,829 52,551,246
07,646,096 77,825,550

- Caasastons

compensation

o mudes members Of the Buard of Directors of the Company. The compensation paid or pavable 1o key
o ==pioryee services Brshown belowe:
412,500 375.000
412,500 375,000
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ML CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CNIFIONT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“hesctors”interest in contracts and related party transactions

2018

Rs.

Page 17

207
Rso

During the period, Mr. KAK Joyathilake has ceased the board and Mr. DL Kumatadasa his newely been appointed to the
scans and presently the board eonsist of Mr, HN) Chand rasekara, Thilak Hewawasam snd 2], Kumaradasa as director of

== Jom pany.

" followring transactions were carried out with prurties controlled liy the company:

testinding balances srising frony $ales and others:

Sewuits Due o Related Prrties:
Dellugistios turmatiomal [Pyt Lid,,
oo Tech Management (Pvt) Lid..
Traling Bookshop

“remativnal Institute of Bevelopment Training (Private) Lid,

Zemath BIPO Pyt Ltd.,
s==ruinabile Engimeering Concept (Pvt) Lid
LLHT Lanka Jang (vl Lid
TETIHA

wlopment Concipls (Pvt) L.,
semm=rable Agenids (Pyvt) Ltd

wats D from Divectors & Shaveholders
S rrom Shorisholders
Tulsi Waloopillal
= Wipgmanne

= e s Thue to Relafed Pavtfes:

s===abie Engineering Convept (Pyvt) Lid

=TT Lanis jang (Fwt) el
- = e .{J_Hrﬂnrs
— . lavatilake

11,063,400 10,923,712
4412615 4412,615
18419 8,195
2344 934 2251544
829234 795,740
- 4,042,188
8331097 x
a89.045 737,727
118,075 212,775
19,259,042 23,984,496
492,882 4492 88D
74910 74,910
567,792 567,792
550,701
1,519,000 L519,000
2,069,701 1,519,000
2,059,250 2,088 250
2,059,250 2,059,250
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“uiL CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

TETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

“0% THE YEAR ENDED 31T DECEMBER 018 2017
Hs, Rs.
e lacome 158,671,737 B6 528 306
o Service Casts (115,592,607)  (53.967,615)
s Prafil Statement 1 44,079 130 32,560,691
Cme i Statement 2 10.214 449 5,481,732
54,293,579 38,042,325
Semred Expunses Statement 3 122,584,552} (23,255,50%)
summsration Expenisos Statement 4 [19.624,069) (11.885.327)
= Iwioll Statement § (3.836,166) {4,367,171)

(46,060,787 {41,508,001)

S ess| Befare Taxation B,232,792 (3,465,578)
e Tie Expenso {798,354 {109,797
S sss) for the Year 7434438 (3,575,375)
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Sl CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE LIMITED

SETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
©oo THEYEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER

L= Frafit

Seeom=tion of Project/Pragrimme

s & r'.".'l.\ =

Sersies Infrastrciure
iy s Fichery Harbour
o Metwrnipwels

T3 mestem Power

e Rathmale - Foes
Yewmmiens - Cooridination
et - Diher

* h==navaie

A =

r e Cliy
sumveving & Cons
Ws = Far Asia Bank
== avura Place

5= Sescanthagama

M i A

B Frrnies - LK
Bt Fahpries - frovision
e S Waler

e oyl Emt'rpi.-'E._U
Wy ome Prujedt
e S i e Shudy

B s v Energy
—

M Asuimgs

L nnp

5
-

Page 02

Statement |
Gross Profit!
Service Service {Loss)
Income Cosfs 2018
s, Rs, Rs.
8,437,386 {i5,041,739) 2,375,647
43,760 (7,367} 5,343
L 076,453 (676,447) 400,006
- [2E1,168) {261,16%)
- 37,700 37700
1,333,000 (747,555 585,445
= (LU0 (10,000
- (120) (120)
244,594 [RIRREEA] 144,858
228410 (359,941 (134,531}
L165477 (522,173 343,004
0,617,774 18,649,149} O, 630
B2 {530 L) 323,524
300,510 I8 HIT 360,327
861,469 (413,9006) 457,503
2,175220 {366,123) 1,604 0o7
34,157,310 {22, 104,45965) 12,053,014
37 T0LTIS (37.793.977) (89.262)
#,574,285 (2,573,603) 6,000,685
2,154,930 (1.852,898) 302,158
488,796 (A32,5015) 157,291
2,683,269 (1,981,993) 701,276
. (128.343), (128,343)
a0, BIR (481,730} 513,148
2904434 (2402,035) 502,399
- (292,525) (292,525)
116,047 811 (89,082.356) 26,965,435
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SW CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
SO0 THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER

Seertion of Project Prognomme

BT Sslange .
s Staster Man
“sweall Fishery Har
—ma Change
SLA WA wi
B Deeset Property Development
v Wz Zone - Ampara/ Uhann
M D Uil Loétion
a0 jsEl, Bkala
= Sac Wotker Stage [l
== Tobber
T OWVAMP
s Mzt of PCBY
S ot - ks
S Frowc-Tlikkowita LUSD
e Gt lfancy
e Moo= Projoct

=g 1t ??-.h!&.“l Roads

e =cTTmg

= o ST

e ety

== wTitist back
Seossge L=nvioss

Wermema. o Sad debil provison

Page 03
Gross Profit!
Service Siryice {Loss)
Income Cosls 2018
s, s Rs.
Hg 47511 {KY82.356) 26,965,455
15034773 {,201,070) 6,833,703
290,388 B 495,388
1,593,619 {104,212 1489407
377,837 1380,456) (2,619)
153,061 (10,675) 142 366
LA VAT74 550,879 1161895
£, 317,250 14.304.847) 1772403
- (2,145) (2.145),
(TS (BE,000) 119,604
7133 {56,850 14,374
3501535 (3,225,600) 275,935
1811478 (1,725,671} B7.807
a2 (356,4975) 743067
560413 (s4,153,735) 1412658
1,538,119 2,500,433) (S92, 174
THLAH0 {420.853) 30517
425319 (210,000] 213,318
158,671,737 (115,592,607 44,079,130
2018 2017
K. Rs.
Statement 2
Statement 2.1 2166719 1,806,523
- 4415,000
591,557 651,84
7,456,143 1.964,583
- 650,342
10,214,449 5.481,732

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction

112



VT RAL Rupasinghe & Co,
Crartsred Accountants

SWL CONSULTANTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FOF THE YEAR ENDED 3187 DECEMBER

ecrres? IncoHiy

Py

Tnterest Tngomie from Suvmigs Accowits b Local Cuimerer)
SR - Spvings Acopunt

HMB - Bavings Adicoiumit

B0 Saving Accolint
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ANNEXURE 3

RESEARCH REPORT OF THE MANAGERS TO THE ISSUE
JUSTIFYING THE REFERENCE PRICE
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Research Report

eaciTIL

Consultants

E M L Consultants Limited

We, Atarah Capital Partners (Pvt) Limited (“ACP”) hereby declare that we possess the requisite expertise to
perform reports of this nature involving a company that would be likely to be classified under the Commercial
and Professional Services Sector of the Colombo Stock Exchange

We also declare that the Research Report has been prepared in accordance with the disclosures specified in
the ‘Valuation/ Research Report - Guidance Note’ issued by the CSE.

I Atarah Capital Partners (Private) Limited

ATARAH  Financial Advisor & Manager to the Introduction and Sponsor
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1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Executive Summary

We, Atarah Capital Partners (Pvt) Limited has conducted a research and carried out the valuation of shares
using the methods of Discounted Cash Flows valuation and Adjusted/ Historical Net Assets Value techniques to
arrive at an appropriate equity value for the Company. The results are summarized as below.

Valuation Technique Price Per Share (LKR)
Discounted Cash flow Basis 2.03-2.24
Net Asset Value 1.16
Adjusted Net Asset Value 1.76

We have adopted the DCF method as the primary valuation technique that most appropriately reflect the fair
value of the shares due to the following reasons:

e Given the nature of business operations of the Company and expected business growth backed by
internal strategies and general macro-economic developments, DCF will be the most suitable method
to capture the growth potential of the company.

e Reported Net Asset Value to have undervalued assets hence Adjusted Net Asset Value approach
adopted by revaluing the properties. However, Adjusted Net Asset value approach would also not
reflect the true growth potential of the business. Assets based approach has been used to indicate the
lowest value point of the range whilst the Adjusted Net Asset Value provides an indication of value of
a share considering the fair value of Company’s assets and liabilities.

e At present, there are no listed companies that mimic the operations of the company, none with the
same operating structure, thus resulting the market-based approach for valuation purposes to be less
effective and the said approach was not considered in determining the fair value of the shares.

Based on our analysis, we recommend a value of LKR 2.00 per share as the “Reference Price” of a share for
listing by way of an Introduction.

The “Reference Price” recommended by ACP is with a discount of 6.1% to the value per share derived using
the DCF method i.e LKR 2.13 per share. Aforesaid discount is recommended to maintain the fair value of a
share within the equity value range arrived as explained above, and it would be an attractive staring price for
secondary market trading upon listing. The DCF value per share setout herein, is subject to the viability of the
assumptions / forecasts made in section 6 and 7 of this Research Report.

1.2 Objectives of the Report

ACP has been engaged by the management of E M L Consultants Limited (EML), to determine the fair value of
a share and advise the Company on the appropriate “Reference Price” for shares to be listed via the proposed
introductory listing. Accordingly, this Research Report has been prepared by ACP in order to provide the said
basis in determining the fair value of Ordinary Voting Shares of EML in connection with the proposed
Introductory listing, as required under Rule 3.4.8 (b) (iii) of the CSE Listing Rules.

Accordingly, this report provides information pertaining to the industry in which EML is operating and the
basis adopted in determining the fair value of the company’s Ordinary Voting Shares.
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2.0 OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY
2.1 The Company

EML was incorporated in year 1993 to provide technical and management consultancy services to the private
and public sector in Sri Lanka and across the globe. The Registered office of the Company is situated at No:
6/10 Rajamahavihara Road, Pitakotte, Sri Lanka.

The initial scope of services focused on environmental and natural resources management. Within a brief
period of time, EML emerged as a leading consultancy service provider in many diverse industries and fields,
and successfully expanded to cover a broad spectrum of areas such as community and livelihood
development, SMEs, feasibility and environmental assessments, climate change, biodiversity and eco systems,
socioeconomic surveys, institutional development, conceptual and detailed designs, heritage and culture,
infrastructure projects related to renewable energy, water supply, waste disposal, roads, transport and coastal
management.

EML has successfully implemented over 300 projects, covering a multitude of sectors funded by the State
institutions and major international donor agencies including the ADB, World Bank, UNDP, UNFCC, UNICEF, UN
HABITAT, USAID, JICA, CIDA and GIZ. EML is a member of National Chamber of Commerce and is also a
registered specialized technical service provider to the Central Environmental Authority (CEA), Board of
Investment (BOI) and several other Government agencies.

The main revenue streams of the Company are derived from consultancy fees based on projects secured by
the company in multiple verticals.

The shareholding structure of the Company is as follows;

MR_KALUACHC MR. DINAL MR. TULSIDAS MR.THILAK MR.
HIGAMAGE GITANJAN MAHENDRAN HEWAWASAM PALAMANDADI
AVANTHI WIJEMANNE WALQOPILLAI1 GE CHANNA
KUMARA FERNANDO
JAYATILAKE
74.0% 16.2% 8.1% 1.0% 0.6%

EML

Consultants
Limited

2.2 Main Business Activities

2.2.1 Environment and Natural Resources Management (ENR)

Consultancies in the ENR projects segment ranges from conservations to environmental studies, to
biotechnology and climate change. In house expertise allows EML to provide services such as Environmental
Impact Assessments (EIA’s) and Initial Environmental Examinations (IEE’s) for Development Projects.
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Conducting comprehensive environmental impact assessments is one of the leading business verticals. The
company’s project managers and officers have experience in fields such as environmental science studies and
management as well as agriculture, conservation and geographic information systems. Experienced both in
house and in the field environment, these officers spend much of their time visiting project sites and working
outdoors, conducting field based research and assessments. Categories serviced under this segment include;

e Agriculture, Irrigation & Natural Resources Management

e Environmental Reviews and Monitoring Reports

e Forestry and Wildlife Management

e CDM Project Development under C-trading

e GIS and Remote Sensing

e Environmental Action Plans and Strategic Environmental Studies

2.2.2 Capacity Building and Human Resources Development (CBH) Programs

The CBH experts at EML offer a host of services aimed for economic growth and institutional development.
The CBH division develops specific, measurable and accountable strategies for the clients to meet the aims
and objectives of the project.

EML offers many programs in training and human capacity building, facilitating the transfer of knowledge and
dissemination of information. The training programs and workshops include social sector development,
productivity improvements, organizational restructuring and policy making and planning. Categories serviced
under this segment include;

e Governance & Community Development
e Monitoring, Evaluation & Surveys and planning
e Micro-Finance & Enterprise Development

2.2.3 Urban and Industrial Engineering (UIE) Services

The Urban and Industrial Engineering expertise in EML offers consultancy services in ElAs, IEEs, Engineering
Assessments (EAs), project feasibility studies, waste minimization and waste/wastewater treatment. With the
assistance of internal and external expertise, EML execute the services whilst adhering to the client’s aims and
objectives. Categories serviced under this segment include;

e Planning and Preparation
o Project identification/proposal preparation
o Feasibility studies/Master plans
o ElAs, IEEs, EAs
o Technical investigation, sampling, analyzing Waste audits (including Cleaner Production Audit)

e Conceptual & Detail Designs
o Engineering related conceptual & detail designs
o Preparation of tender documents
o Review of designs
o Evaluation of tenders [as a service for third parties]

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction 130



e Implementation (including technical supervision)
o Technical support for the implementation
o Project management
o Construction supervision
o Necessary technical training (human resource development)
o Workshops/seminars

e Monitoring & Evaluation
o Performance Evaluation and Management
o Follow-up and Coaching
o Documentation and Dissemination
o Impact Monitoring and Analysis

2.2.4 Special Projects Management

The special project management capacity of EML brings together teams that represent the ENR, CBH and UIE
divisions, as well as experts from other areas to implement projects that require different subject areas and
expertise. Categories serviced under this segment include;

e Water and Sanitation Projects
e Integrated Waste Management
e Institutional Development and Governance

Projects of this vertical include Greater Colombo Wastewater Management Project- Design Supervision and
Management Consultant (DSC), feasibility and detailed designs - In association with SMEC of Australia.

Environment Assessment for the Proposed Septage Treatment Facilities at Mullaitivu and Kilinochchci Districts
under Water Supply and Sanitation Improvement Project (WSSIP), Greater Colombo Wastewater Management
Project — Institutional Development Consultancy.

2.3 Summary of historical financial information

Revenue

In terms of services listed in the preceding Section 2.2, the company is either directly approached by the
respective parties who wish to engage EML’s professional services, or the company will engage in a bidding
process with other peer competitors.

Success Rates of Expression of Interests

Submitted Proposals Shortlisted Proposals Success Rate (%)
2016 32 16 50
2017 26 12 50
2018 32 20 60
2019 30 12 40
2020 30 20 66

Success Rates of Technical Proposals
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Submitted Proposals Shortlisted Proposals Success Rate (%)

2016 60 08 13
2017 29 06 13
2018 40 10 25
2019 50 10 20
2020 55 12 22

Note: Technical Proposal submissions include those short listed plus direct submission without short listing. Ex’ All UNDP
projects are without short listing

Source: Management Information provided by the Company

The services requested in each project can be unique and the quoted charge (Revenue for EML) will depend
on number of factors including the external expertise to be secured (i.e.: Third party Consultants), duration of
the project, location of the project etc. Duration of projects can vary from 3 Months to 4 Years. At the request
of the project owner, EML will provide additional services with an additional charge on top of the quoted fee.

Revenue and Revenue Growth

» 180 100%
& 160 80%
= 140
(o)
5 120 60%
X 100 40%
80 20%
60
0%
40 o
20 -20%
- -40%
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Revenue [L.H.S] Revenue Growth --------- Linear (Revenue [L.H.S])

Source: Management Information and Audited Financial Statements

Given the fact that the Revenues depends on the secured number of projects and different project
specifications [including time, value, intended stakeholders, character etc.] high volatility can be expected and
such volatility has been observed when historical revenues are considered. However, with the skill and
expertise of the management, EML has managed to secure a long term upward trend in revenues.

During the period from 2016 to 2020, overall revenue has increased from LKR 97 Million to LKR 134 Million,
indicating a 4 Year compound annual growth rate of c.8% and an increase of 6% compared to that of 2019.
Given the nature of the business, impact of COVID - 19 has been comparatively low on the services provided
by the company.

Management has been able to secure twelve new projects during the first half of 2021 and expects the
momentum to continue to the rest of the year; hence we forecasted a revenue of LKR 139 Million for the year
2021 together with the revenues that will accrue from projects continuing from past years.
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Revenue will be charged by the company based on Installment Method in line with pre-agree project
milestones.

Revenue forecasts have been made considering the current businesses in hand, expected changes in macro-
economic conditions supporting future business growth of current business verticals of the Company, and
with a reasonable growth expectation as described under ‘Forecasted financial statements’ and ‘Assumptions’
sections of this report.

Direct Cost

As discussed in the preceding sections of this report, the business operations of EML is mainly focused on
providing consultancy services in a wide range of verticals. In this regard, the management has identified the
inefficiencies of maintaining a fixed permanent cadre of consultants. Therefore, at the availability of a project
[during the proposal / bidding stage], the management will identify the required specialized expertise for the
project and retain relevant consultants/ specialists on contract basis. In addition, the company has two
consultants on retainer basis. Hence, under the applied operational model, the consultancy fees dominate a
major portion [over 80%] of the direct costs.

Apart from the above mentioned costs, transportation charges, accommodation charges [on projects carried
out in outstation areas] are amongst the other cost components. These costs are directly dependent on the
number of projects handled and the specifications of such projects. The table below sets out the major cost
categories and their approximate contribution to the total direct cost.

Contribution to Direct Cost (%)

Consultancy fees 80-90
Other Operational Costs 10-20
Total cost 100

Source: Management Information and Audited Financial Statements

Other Income

Other income includes one-off events such as gains/loss of fixed asset disposals and other recurring non-
operational income such as rent income, exchange rate gains etc. Such income categories vary in each year as
the majority of these income components are not under the Company’s control.

Breakdown of Other Income

LKR 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Rent Income 1,620,000 405,000 - - 25,000
Gain on Disposal of Motor Vehicle 2,396,627 - 9,015,000
Creditor written back 2,610,910 651,084 591,587 658,299 -
Exchange (Loss) / Gain 1,565,287 1,968,583 7,456,146 (364,181) 2,810,412
Reversal of Bad debt Provision 650,542

Interest Income 1,542,141 1,806,523 2,166,719 2,273,585 2,234,952

Source: Management Information and Audited Financial Statements
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The premises [i.e: land and building] that is currently owned by EML is utilized by certain other related party
companies. In this regard, it is observed that the rent charged from such companies is significantly lower than
prevailing market rates. Further, there are vacant areas in the building where no rent income is derived at
present, hence the property is under-utilized. Based on the management’s assessment, a monthly rent of LKR
250,000 — LKR 300,000 can be earned for a similar rentable property at current market rates.

In addition, EML conducts merely non-operational activities [administration activities] in the captioned
premises and occupies less than 25% of the total square footage of the building. Therefore, the company has
the ability to shift the functions currently operated within the building premises to another location without
any business impact. Reason being, the functions carried out by the company within the building being ‘non
location specific’.

Due to above-mentioned factors, best use value of the property is not reflected in the business due to under-
charged rent.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses mainly include overhead items such as staff salaries, other staff costs, utility expenses
and maintenance costs etc. relating to daily back-office activities.

During the financial year 2020, EML has closely managed the overhead costs with the impact of COVID-19
pandemic. However, costs are expected to rise in FY 2021 and future financial years due to the increase in
staff related costs, execution of Company’s future strategic plans and also due to expected increases in price
levels and resulting impact on cost items. Administration expenses [including depreciation and amortization]
has reduced from LKR 45 million [2016] to LKR 38 Million in 2019. This has further reduced in 2020 to LKR 33
Million.

Finance Costs

At present, the company incurs interest costs on term loans, leases and bank overdrafts obtained to facilitate
fund requirements for the purpose of working capital and developing the business. With the gradual
improvement of cash flows and reduction in loans and leases due to future repayments, interest costs of the
Company is expected to reduce gradually in the future. In addition, no major borrowings are anticipated in the
years to come.

Profitability

The profitability of the company has been varying with the revenues and costs relating to number of secured
projects as well as the overhead cost levels. It is also observed that the volatility of gross margins results in
volatile returns at each financial year in the past. Given the current operational model which maintains
consultants on retainer basis and recruitments on contract basis has resulted in a better financial efficacy in
the Company. During the considered period from 2016 to 2020, the highest loss was recorded in 2017 which
amounts to LKR 3.5 Million due to a relatively low gross profit and operating profit that further impacted by
the interest costs.
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However, the management’s continuing efforts on reducing the running cost of the operations will support in
the future profitability due to the low breakeven levels.
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20%
15%
10%
5%
0%
-5%
-10%

2016 2018 2019 2020

e FEB|ITDA Margin Net Profit Margin ===Return on Equity
Source: Audited Financial Statements

Detailed description of assumptions made in the financial forecast is set out under Section 5.3 of this
Research Report.

Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 31 May 2021

During the five-months period the company has been able to record a revenue of LKR 36.7 million with a gross
profit of LKR 12.9 million. Derived gross profit margin for the period was 35%, which tends higher compared to
last two years, however somewhat similar to trends of financial years prior to 2018. Pricing strategies and
effective cost controls have been key in achieving the mentioned yield. Net profit of the company for the five-
month period is LKR 3.1 million yielding a net profit margin of 2.3%.

Total asset position of the company is LKR 204.6 million as at 31° May 2021 whilst the total equity value is LKR
105.1 Million as at the same date.
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3.0 OVERVIEW OF THE COUNTRY AND INDUSTRY
3.1 Sri Lanka Outlook — Challenging but achievable

Favorable GDP Outlook

As in the case for the rest of the world, Sri Lanka too witnessed the adverse impacts of COVID-19 pandemic,
whilst the country was progressing towards a recovery from the Easter Sunday attacks that occurred in April
2019. In 2020, the GDP was severely crippled, especially the second quarter economic activity due to complete
lockdown of the country. The economy showed signs of resilience towards COVID-19 second wave which
started in the beginning of October, which in fact led to a marginal recovery in economic activity for 2020.
Such momentum gained continued into the 1% quarter of 2021 however the 3™ wave of COVID — 19 that hit
the country during the month of April is bound to slow down economic activity yet again.

GDP Growth

2016 2017 2018 2019 202 2021F 2022F 2026F

Percent (%)
o
o

e ADB e | MF World Bank

Growth is expected to rebound during the latter part of 2021, as both global and local economic activities are
expected to show some recovery and vaccination drives would allow further relaxation of border controls.
International agencies maintain positive outlook towards the real GDP growth during the year 2021. ADB, IMF
and World Bank has forecasted a minimum 3% growth for the year 2021. However, Sri Lanka’s challenging
macroeconomic situation is likely to moderate growth in 2022.

Monetary and Fiscal Policies to support Economic Recovery

During the initial stages of the pandemic, the Government provided a six month debt moratorium for sectors
which are adversely affected as well as on the lease rentals of vehicles. Tourism moratoriums were extended
to March 2021 due to the airport closure and also zero tourism earnings. In addition, certain other facilities
were provided to revive the economy.

In addition, due to the gloomy global economic outlook, the CBSL slashed policy rates in January 2020,
followed by additional cuts during the year, lowering the short-term interest rates to unprecedented levels
which resulted excess liquidity in the market, leading to a sharp decline in the government bonds and bills
market. High liquidity levels caused overnight rates to move towards the lower bound of the policy corridor
throughout 3Q and 4Q of 2020.

Going forward, Central Bank outlined the intention of maintaining a low single digit interest rate to boost the
economic activity and to maintain a sustainable growth trajectory. This can be challenging with the increasing
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private sector credit growth and reliance on domestic sources to provide a significant portion of net deficit
financing.

Credit Rating Downgrades

Due to existing challenges on the debt repayment plans coupled with high budget deficits, rating agencies
downgraded Sri Lanka. In September 2020, Moody’s Investor Services downgraded Sri Lanka’s long-term
foreign currency issuer and senior unsecured ratings to Caal from B2 and changed the Outlook to Stable.

Measures to curtail non-essential imports together with significantly lower global petroleum prices, assisted to
reduce import expenditure in 2020, resulting in a notable improvement in the trade deficit. Recovery of
demand in the export markets, increase in worker remittances coupled up with current import restrictions,
the ADB’s current account deficit forecast is expected to edge lower to 1.1% of GDP in 2021. [Source: Asian
Development Bank’s flagship annual economic publication, the Asian Development Outlook (ADO) 2021]

3.2 Investments in Infrastructure despite the pandemic

Despite the pandemic, Government entities and agencies maintained the course of infrastructure
development in the country.

In 2020, the Road development authority incurred LKR 226.1 billion [Source: CBSL annual report 2020] for the
maintenance and development of expressways and highways, widening and improvement of roads,
construction of bridges and flyovers and also rehabilitation of roads affected by natural disasters, which was
49% higher compared to 2019. In addition, the development towards an efficient highway network is
continuing. Investments in other transport related sectors have increased during the year as well.

Irrigation and drinking water related investments have continued in 2020, with a focus on providing clean
water and to increase the productivity of the agricultural sector.

The government plans to increase public investment to 5.4% of GDP as part of its push for recovery in
2021.[Source: Economic Research Department of CBSL] This increase will come from allocations for
Government priorities in health and education, a 100,000 kilometer road program, water for all, rural
development and primary production in agriculture, plantations, fisheries, and energy. [Source: CBSL annual
report 2020] The government projects a budget deficit at 8.8% of GDP in 2021. High recurrent expenditure of
the country can pose a threat towards the achievement of the said public investments.

3.3 Developments in sectors related to EML’s operating space

Construction Sector

Despite the spread of COVID-19, there is a high certainty for construction projects to gradually pick up pace
and reach the required level of momentum by the 4™ quarter of 2021. Foreign funded construction projects
are expected to resume and continue since funding would be available for such projects. However, the
projects Funded by the Government of Sri Lanka could be paused until the COVID spread is curtailed to a
manageable level. Further, there is a like hood that payments falling due on Government funded projects may
encounter delays, as in the case observed in the past.

There is a growing need in the country for affordable middle income housing projects, another segment where
EML would find its business potential in terms of provisioning its services.
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Developments in the Port City can be viewed as a turnkey project opportunity for the country with heavy
reliance on the construction segment.

Agriculture Sector

Pandemic highlighted the fragilities and the vulnerabilities on the imported food market. With the increasing
pressure on the exchange rate coupled with identified vulnerabilities, increasing food self-sufficiency whilst
boosting economic growth through increased agricultural production has become a key priority.

With the drive towards increasing food self-sufficiency, the Government has committed to providing free
fertilizer for paddy production and fertilizer subsidies for several other major crops, while safeguarding local
agricultural producers by discouraging imports of certain agricultural products. In line with the government
decision to ban chemical fertilizer and consumers’ tendency toward organically grown vegetables and fruits
will create avenues for research, use of technology and implement new projects where EML also have a
chance to provide its services in specific segments.

Key Focus on Tourism

Global tourism sector came to a grinding halt with the regional lockdowns and border restrictions caused due
to the pandemic. Sri Lanka, with a higher reliance on the tourism sector, faces the same adverse effects on top
of the Easter Sunday attack bombings occurred in 2019.

Vaccination procedure is likely to provide a breathing space towards the sector during 4" quarter 2021.
Innovative strategies such as bio bubbles have also been utilized by the Government to revive tourism. Sri
Lanka opened its borders for international tourists in January 2021, after being closed for 10 months which
showcased a positive momentum. However, the recent setbacks surrounding the ongoing COVID -19 3™ wave
has forced closure of Airports yet again, which will hamper tourism related income, perhaps until the 1%
quarter of 2022.

In addition, new projects related to hospitality and leisure sector are expected to initiate with the expected
boost in tourism sector resulting from the Port City Project. (Related Projects include South Asia’s first
Disneyland to come up in Bopita Leisure Park | Daily News — April 8, 2021).

Given the country’s high reliance on income derived from tourism, high Government priority and a recovery
plan can be expected in the near future, which is bound to benefit the business focus and provision of services
by EML in the captioned sector. Further, many countries have started to implement or are considering the use
of COVID-19 “vaccine passports” — paper or digital forms certifying that a person has been vaccinated against
COVID-19, for purposes of international travel. In addition, some countries are using them for domestic travel
and/or access to certain establishments, activities, and events. Such certifications are separate from but
related to the issue of vaccine mandates. Where COVID-19 vaccines are mandated, there will be a need to
certify vaccine status, and a vaccine passport is a potential tool for that purpose hence Government of Sri
Lanka is bound to use this tool to revive the tourism sector.

3.4 New developments and drivers for increasing demand for EML’s Consultancy Space

Change in Consumer Behavior

Community awareness towards environmental impact has heightened during the past decade and also
growing technological infrastructure [smart mobile penetration and wider internet access] has acted as a
catalyst. In addition to the regulatory requirements, the increase in the number of environmental groups and
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their activeness will result in new construction projects to be more scrutinized based on the environmental
impact on the project surrounding.

Donor related projects to increase with increasing global political ties

During past few years leading up to 2019, a slowdown in donor based projects was witnessed. However, with
stronger strategic alliances especially with the Asian block will lead to an increase in donor based projects in
the future where EML has the opportunity to benefit well from these projects as seen in the past.

FDI Inflow to the country

The Government of Sri Lanka is targeting to attract more than USS 2.5 billion worth of Foreign Direct
Investments (FDIs) this year, aftermath of numbers dwindle over the last two years as investor sentiment
withered following the Easter Sunday attack and the adverse impacts of COVID-19 on the global economy.
During the first nine months of 2020, Sri Lanka managed to attract foreign investments worth only US$ 548
million, down 31 per cent compared to USS 793 million attracted during the same period of 2019. [Sri Lanka
targets USS$2.5bn FDI in 2021: Minister | EconomyNext Dec 16 2020]

Private Sector Demand for Specialized Consultation Services

Whilst businesses face challenging economic and market conditions, private sector institutions always exploit
opportunities in every corner of the organization to improve performance, increase efficiency of the
workforce through capacity building and at times restructuring organizations. These activities are generally
outsourced to third party service providers that specialized in these areas. EML as a provider of human
resource development and capacity building programs certainly could benefit from the increase in demand for
such services from the private sector.
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4.0 VALUATION RESU

LTS

4.1 Discounted Cash flow Methodology

Equity Value per Share

Amounts in LKR

Deductions:
Borrowings
Equity Value

Number of Shares

Equity Value per Share

(38,296,469)

193,177,257

90,900,000
2.13

2021 Terminal
(7 Months) 2022 2023 pop 23 2025 Value
EBIT 5,405,291 7,711,487 | 10,333,873 | 12,730,376 | 16,095,212
Tax (378,370) | (1,079,608) | (1,446,742) | (1,782,253) | (2,253,330)
Depreciation 3,568,895 5,641,853 5,771,279 5,654,578 3,656,828
Capital Investment* (843,442) - (501,003) (854,229) | (1,965,783)
WC Investment (3,028,486) (4,089,242) (5,788,306) (1,055,969) (1,218,118)
FCFF 4,723,887 8,184,490 8,369,101 14,692,503 14,314,809 117,268,858
DF 0.9600 0.8347 0.7258 0.6310 0.5487 0.5487
PV of FCFF 4,535,057 6,831,746 6,074,013 9,271,491 7,854,096 64,341,817
Enterprise Value 98,908,220
Additions:
Cash and Cash Equivalent 30,265,506
Investment Property? 102,300,000

1 In order to obtain the best use value of the property, a market rent for the premise used by EML has been
charged and the property has been considered as a freehold investment property. Market value of the property
to be LKR 102 Million based on the survey conducted by a Chartered Valuation surveyor in February 2021.

*Capital Investment refers to the expected investments in property plant and equipment during the forecasted

period.

Sensitivity Analysis and Price Range

Terminal
Growth

2.00%
2.25%
2.50%
2.75%
3.00%

WACC

13.01% 14.01% 15.01%
2.30 2.19 2.10
2.32 221 2.11
2.34 222
237 2.24 2.14
2.39 2.27 2.16

16.01% 17.01%
2.02 1.95
2.03 1.96
2.04 1.97
2.06 1.98
2.07 1.99

Based on the different volatilities on WACC and terminal growth rate, value range based on discounted cash
flow basis to be LKR 2.03 — LKR 2.24 per share

E M L Consultants Limited - Introduction

140



Key Assumptions

Key Assumptions

5-year T- Bond secondary market avg. yield as of 17.05.2021 7.97%
Market Risk premium? 8.00%
Cost of equity (Ke) 15.97%
Value of Equity? 80.00%
Weighted Avg. Cost of debt 13.00%
Cost of debt (1-T) 11.18%
Value of debt 20.00%
Discount factor (WACC) 15.012%
Long term growth rate3 2.50%

I Market risk premium of 8% is considered as appropriate to capture Consultancy services industry related risks.
The business model of the Company permits them to reasonably manage the impact of adverse economic and
market risks, hence we believe the risk premium applied herein is adequate.

2 Considering the fact that the borrowings position is reducing gradually, we assumed a debt and equity
composition of 20% : 80% in the long run, giving due consideration to future strategies of the Company.

3 Long term growth rate of 2.5% is applied in the valuation, considering the earnings growth and assuming
increasing demand for Consultancy and related services in the long run.

4.2 Adjusted Net Asset Value Methodology

Net Asset Value 3157

May 2021 Adjustments Adjusted Net Asset Value

LKR LKR LKR

Total Non-current assets 67,404,168 54,450,341 121,854,509
Total current assets 137,210,920 - 137,210,920
Total assets 204,615,088 54,450,341 259,065,429
Total Non-current liabilities 11,665,293 - 11,665,293
Total Current liabilities 87,809,706 - 87,809,706
Total Shareholder's funds 105,140,089 54,450,341 159,590,430
Number of Shares 90,900,000 90,900,000 90,900,000
Value per Share 1.16 0.60 1.76

1 Increase in market value as per the market valuation conducted on the property in February 2021 by Mr.
Sampath P. Dayaratne MRICS, an independent valuer and the current book value of the property.
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5.0 VALUATION METHODOLOGY
5.1 Discounted cash flow Methodology

Discounted cash flow is a valuation method used to estimate the value of an investment based on its future
cash flows. Based on the future cash flow projection, this methodology will identify the value of the
investment as at the considered valuation date. Given the current operation of the business and the expected
growth backed by internal strategies and macro-economic developments, DCF will be able to capture the
growth potential of the operations of EML. Hence, DCF is considered as the primary valuation technique.

Free Cash Flow to Firm (FCFF) was calculated using the following formula:

FCFF = Earnings before Interest and Tax * (1-tax rate) + Depreciation& Amortization - Capital Expenditure +
Working Capital Investment (net)

In order to arrive at an intrinsic value for the company, the future FCFF’s were discounted using the following

formula:
n

FCFF, TV
(1+WACC): '~ (1+WACO)"

i=0

FCFFi= Free Cash Flow to Firm in yeart
WACC = Weighted Average Cost of Capital
TV = Terminal Value at year n

Where the Terminal Value is calculated through,
FCFF,x(1+ g)

(WACC - g)

g = Long term Growth rate
And WACC is calculated through,
WyxKyx(1-T)+W,xK,
K. = Cost of Equity
Kq4= Cost of Debt
T = Company’s tax rate

Fair value of equity was computed by deducting net debt and adjusting the Non-operational assets and
liabilities to the total present value of FCFFs.

5.2 Net asset Value and Adjusted Net Asset Value Methodology

Net Asset value is based on reported shareholders’ funds in the Balance sheet, whilst the adjusted net asset
value is based on the market value of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. Given the strong balance sheet
of the company, this can be a strong parameter in realizing the low end of the valuation range.

Net Asset Value per Share
_ Market | Reporeted Value of Total Assets — Market | Reporeted Value of Total Liabilities

Number of Shares
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6.0 ASSUMPTIONS USED IN FINANCIAL FORECASTS

Financial forecasts are based upon assumptions made by the management that would reasonably reflect the
future business potential, and such assumptions are based on best estimates. Management has taken into
consideration the current business levels, possible impact of the macro-economic environment on its business
verticals, business development plans and future capital requirements of the company etc.

6.1 Revenue

During the past 4 operational periods, the company has maintained a compound annual growth of ¢.8% in
revenues. In addition, the management has communicated the plan of recruiting an experienced Business
Development professional. With the new recruitment, the Management expects to maintain a 8% year on
year growth of revenue during the explicit forecasted period; to be in line with the past revenue growth rates.

As per IMF forecasts, the GDP growth of the country will be volatile around ¢.4%. A similar increase in the
infrastructure projects plus an addition due to the new Government’s policies can be expected during the
forecasted period.

For the 5 months period ended 31" May 2021, EML has been able to record a topline of LKR 36 million.
Management is confident in securing a total revenue of LKR 139 Million for the year, given the prevailing
projects at hand and opportunities available.

Considering the interim results of 2021, management’s estimates and expected GDP growth, we assumed
below mentioned Revenue growth rates as reasonable for the company, and accordingly used in the financial
forecast.

2021E 2022F 2023F 2024F 2025F
Revenue Growth 4.5% 6.2% 6.2% 6.2% 6.2%

Providing a timewise breakdown of Project revenues is challenging given the demanding requirements and
variability in the timelines where EML has minimum control.

6.2 Direct Costs

The reported gross profit margin of the company for past 5 financial years has varied from 23% — 45%. The
maintained profit margins have been volatile given the specifications of each project undertaken. During the
current financial year [as per unaudited interim financial statements] direct costs have declined to 65%.

The management reasonably expect that the same pricing strategies could be maintained going forward. In
this regard, a direct cost margin of 70% has been applied for the year 2021, considering the businesses in hand
and thereafter the direct cost margin assumed to reduce to 68% in 2023 and maintain the same during the
forecasted period.

6.3 Other Income

Total other income for the company for the FY 2020, excluding interest income, a one off event [disposal of
Motor Vehicle - LKR 9.0 Million] and rent from related party company [LKR 25,000], reaches to LKR 2.8 Million,
hence such a level has been assumed to remain constant over the explicit forecasted period. During the first 5
months period of 2021, there has been a gain of c. LKR 4.4 Mn from disposal of a vehicle that results in a
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significant other income for FY 2021E. Other income also consists of interest income that is estimated to
generate from short tern vestments in the range of 6% to 8% p.a.

As discussed earlier in the report, the charged rent from related party companies are significantly below the
market rates hence does not reflect the best use of property value. Hence, rent [which is earned from the
property] will be discarded from the forecasted financial statements and the property will be treated as an
investment property.

6.4 Administrative Expenses

Staff related expenses have been forecasted to grow at 5% YoY over the explicit forecasted period. In addition,
there will be a new recruitment towards the business development division that will lead to additional salary
cost. An annual growth rate of 6% has been used in order to arrive at the other administrative related
expenses over the explicit forecasted period.

As mentioned above, in order to capture the best use value of the property, it will be required to consider it as
a free hold investment property. Hence, a monthly rent of LKR 150,000 has been included into the costs
[Paying a rent for the square footage used by the EML] enabling the fair value of the property being taken as a
part of the equity value.

6.5 Depreciation

Depreciation of assets are charged so as to allocate the cost of assets and less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight line method, commencing from the month in which the asset is
available for use. Rates used for depreciation are as follows;

Buildings 5%
Computer Equipment 33%
Furniture and Fittings 33%
Office Equipment’s 25%
Motor Vehicles 20%

It is assumed that 20% of the increase in cash at the financial year end will be channeled for new additions to
the highly depreciated assets categories of the portfolio.

6.6 Finance Income

Finance income, assuming that the surplus cash generated from operations would be invested at a rate of 6% -
8% p.a., in a suitable investment opportunity as decided by the Company. It is assumed that 60% of the
increase in cash at the financial year end will be channeled to such investments at the beginning of the
following financial year.

6.7 Finance Costs
Effective interest rates of the loan balances range from 9% -13%. [Except for the COVID-19 related loan

granted with an interest rate of 4%, which has been acquired in the month of March 2020].

Effective interest rate of 7.1% has been applied in FY 2021 for the Bank overdraft facility driven by the working
capital requirements of the company, and it is maintained at 8.5% during the remaining forecasted period.
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6.8 Taxation

The Company is liable for income tax at the rate of 14% on taxable profits, which is the corporate income tax
rate applicable for SMEs. There are no tax concessions enjoyed by the Company at present, however, in the
event a listing is obtained in the CSE prior to 31st December 2021, EML will avail for a 50% reduction in the
income tax payable for the year of assessment commencing from 1%t April 2021 in accordance with the
provisions of Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act, No.10 of 2021.

6.9 Working capital

During the end of the explicit forecasted period, the management targets to maintain a 90 days trade
receivable period and a 90 days creditor settlement period.

6.10 Investments in property, plant and equipment

It is assumed that 20% of the net increase in yearly cash flows to be used for purchase of PPE in the
subsequent financial year.

6.11 Borrowings

It is assumed that the loans and leases to be settled as scheduled and Bank overdraft to be maintained in the
range of LKR 13.6 Mn each year.
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7.0 FORECASTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7.1 Statement of Comprehensive Income

Amounts in LKR

2020A 2021E 2022F 2023F 2024F 2025F
Revenue 133,740,943 139,759,285 148,424,361 157,626,672 167,399,525 177,778,296
Direct Cost (102,776,025)  (97,831,500)  (102,412,809)  (107,186,137)  (113,831,677)  (120,889,241)
Gross profit 30,964,918 41,927,786 46,011,552 50,440,535 53,567,848 56,889,055
Other income 14,085,364 10,160,618 5,635,225 5,635,225 6,697,069 6,902,084
Administrative
expenses (29,039,311) (36,466,401) (38,293,436) (39,970,607) (41,879,964) (44,039,099)
EBITDA 16,801,858 15,622,003 13,353,340 16,105,152 18,384,954 19,752,040
Depreciation (4,579,936) (6,187,449) (5,641,853) (5,771,279) (5,654,578) (3,656,828)
EBIT 11,431,035 9,434,554 7,711,487 10,333,873 12,730,376 16,095,212
Finance costs (1,892,402) (2,745,383) (2,136,162) (1,829,573) (1,542,534) (1,274,574)
Finance costs — net (1,892,402) (2,745,383) (2,136,162) (1,829,573) (1,542,534) (1,274,574)
(Loss) / profit before
tax 9,538,633 6,689,170 5,575,325 8,504,300 11,187,842 14,820,638
Income tax -(712,697) (468,242) (780,546) (1,190,602) (1,566,298) (2,074,889)
(Loss) / profit for the
year 8,825,936 6,220,929 4,794,780 7,313,698 9,621,544 12,745,749
Earnings/ (Loss) per
share 0.10 0.07 0.05 0.08 0.11 0.14
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7.2 Statement of Financial Position

Amounts in LKR

2020A 2021E 2022F 2023F 2024F 2025F

Assets
Non-current assets
PPE — Freehold 51,192,283 50,520,165 49,010,809 47,779,949 47,045,246 46,956,281
PPE -Leasehold 10,726,682 14,657,253 10,587,824 6,518,394 2,448,965 848,965
Total Non-current assets 61,918,965 65,177,418 59,598,632 54,298,344 49,494,211 47,805,246
Current assets
Trade and Other Receivables 36,283,319 38,290,215 36,597,788 38,866,851 41,276,595 43,835,744
Income Tax Refund 1,698,330 1,698,330 1,698,330 1,698,330 1,698,330 1,698,330
Short - Term Investments 42,742,507 47,080,209 47,471,663 48,989,623 51,555,408 57,467,459
Amount due from Related Party 20,184,591 20,184,591 20,184,591 20,184,591 20,184,591 20,184,591
Cash and cash equivalents 31,225,244 25,192,704 27,855,481 32,131,789 41,985,208 49,050,151
Total current assets 132,133,991 132,446,050 133,807,853 141,871,183 156,700,132 172,236,275
Total assets 194,052,956 197,623,467 193,406,485 196,169,527 206,194,343 220,041,521
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Stated capital 90,900,000 90,900,000 90,900,000 90,900,000 90,900,000 90,900,000
Retained earnings 11,101,481 17,322,410 22,077,050 29,380,851 39,026,213 51,797,710
Total Shareholder's funds 102,001,481 108,222,410 112,977,050 120,280,851 129,926,213 142,697,710
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 7,100,000 2,930,106 154,191 - - -
Defined benefit obligations 3,736,872 4,592,986 5,491,906 6,435,772 7,426,832 8,467,444
Deferred income tax liabilities 2,238,783 2,238,783 2,238,783 2,238,783 2,238,783 2,238,783
Total Non-current liabilities 13,075,655 9,761,876 7,884,881 8,674,555 9,665,615 10,706,227
Current labilities
Borrowings 19,504,410 24,004,990 22,039,607 20,228,417 18,263,035 16,957,074
Trade and other payables 47,067,320 40,204,726 33,669,965 29,366,065 29,627,423 29,808,306
Amounts due to Related Party 12,404,090 16,081,890 16,834,982 17,619,639 18,712,057 19,872,204
Total Current liabilities 78,975,820 80,291,606 72,544,554 67,214,121 66,602,515 66,637,584

92,051,475 90,053,481 80,429,435 75,888,676 76,268,129 77,343,811
Total Equity and liabilities 194,052,956 198,275,891 193,406,485 196,169,527 206,194,343 220,041,521
Net Assets value per share 1.12 1.19 1.24 1.32 1.43 1.57
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7.3 Statement of Cash Flow

Cash generated from / (used in)
operations

(Loss) / profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Interest expense

Gratuity Provision

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Operating Profit Before Working Capital
Changes

Changes in working capital:

- (Increase) / Decrease in Trade and
Other Receivable

- (Increase) / Decrease in Amounts Due
From Related Party

- Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and
Other Payables

- Increase / (Decrease) in Amounts Due
To Related Party

Cash (used in) / generated from
operations

Interest paid

Income Tax/WHT Paid
Net (used in) / generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Investment / uplift in short term
investment

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Movement in borrowing

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the
Beginning of the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of
the Year

Amounts in LKR

2020A 2021E 2022F 2023F 2024F 2025F
9,538,633 6,655,462 5,565,104 8,492,791 11,215,538 14,850,578
4,579,936 6,221,158 5,675,562 5,806,275 5,659,394 3,659,649
448,451 2,745,383 2,136,162 1,829,573 1,542,534 1,274,574
1,606,234 856,114 898,920 943,866 991,059 1,040,612
(9,015,000) - - - . .
7,158,254 16,478,117 14,275,748 17,072,506 19,408,526 20,825,413
(8,154,915)  (2,006,896) 1,692,428  (2,269,063)  (2,409,745)  (2,559,149)
6,353 - - - - -
7,430,041  (6,862,594)  (6,534,761)  (4,303,900) 261,358 180,883
(309,900) 3,677,800 753,092 784,657 1,092,418 1,160,148
6,129,833 11,286,427 10,186,506 11,284,199 18,352,556 19,607,294
(345,467)  (2,745,383)  (2,136,162)  (1,829,573)  (1,542,534) (1,274,574)
(465,882) (779,115)  (1,188,991)  (1,570,175)  (2,079,081)

5,784,366 8,075,162 7,271,229 8,265,635 15,239,847 16,253,640
(134,001)  (9,576,385) - (505,986) (855,262)  (1,970,684)
(3,962,893)  (4,729,156) - (1,517,959)  (2,565,785)  (5,912,051)
(4,096,894)  (14,305,542) - (2,023,946) (3,421,046) (7,882,735)
6,194,455 330,686  (4,741,297)  (1,965,382)  (1,965,382)  (1,305,962)
6,194,455 330,686  (4,741,297) (1,965,382)  (1,965,382)  (1,305,962)
7,881,927  (5,899,695) 2,529,932 4,276,308 9,853,419 7,064,943
9,706,011 17,587,938 11,688,244 14,218,176 18,494,484 28,347,903
17,587,938 11,688,244 14,218,176 18,494,484 28,347,903 35,412,846
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7.4 Financial Ratios

Ratio 2020 2021E 2022F 2023F 2024F 2025F
Revenue Growth 6.1% 4.5% 6.2% 6.2% 6.2% 6.2%
Gross Profit (GP) Margin 23% 30% 31% 32% 32% 32%
EBITDA 12% 11% 9% 10% 11% 11%
Net Profit (NP) Margin 7% 4% 3% 5% 6% 7%
Return on Equity (ROE) 8.7% 5.7 4.2% 6.1% 7.4% 8.9%
Net Asset Value per share (LKR) 1.12 1.19 1.24 1.32 1.42 1.57
Earnings/ (loss) per share (LKR) 0.10 0.07 0.05 0.08 0.11 0.14
Debt/ Equity 26% 25% 20% 17% 14% 12%
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8.0 THE TEAM

Rohan Senewiratne — Founder | Managing Director

A veteran in the Sri Lankan capital markets industry with three decades of experience across Regulatory
Organizations (Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka and the Colombo Stock Exchange) and market
intermediary institutions (Securities Brokerage Firms and Unit Trusts) in his career. Rohan is a Director /
Shareholder of ACP, with corporate experience across multiple industries and institutions.

Rohan joined the capital markets industry in 1992 as a Management Trainee of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
In 1994, he joined Lanka Securities (Pvt) Limited (a joint venture stockbroking firm between Bank of Ceylon
and Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka) as an Investment Advisor and rose to the level of Director Sales in 2001. In
2003, he joined Lanka ORIX Securities (Pvt) Limited (former subsidiary of Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC) as
an Executive Director. During his career in stockbroking, he has successfully structured many strategic
transactions (listed and unlisted) and has offered investment advice to clients ranging from local retail
investors to global foreign funds functioning in Frontier Markets sphere.

In 2008 Rohan joined the Global Service Delivery Centre of HSBC in Colombo, its Hedge Funds and Traditional
Funds Administration division as Vice President Operations and subsequently rose to the level of VP / Country
Head, HSBC Securities Services COE Colombo in 2011.

Rohan joined the capital markets regulator, Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka as Consultant -
Special Projects in 2013. He was instrumental in development and implementation of the first ever USD
denominated investment product in the Sri Lankan capital market (Dollar Bond Fund Unit Trusts) during his
tenure at SEC.

Rohan is a Graduate / Passed Finalist of Association of Business Executives UK and also graduated with a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Wales in 2008.

Chandana Wijesundara — Vice President — Investment Banking

After completing a successful career spanning over 9 years at the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE), Chandana
joined Atarah Capital Partners in February 2020. His experience encompasses Corporate Finance / Investment
Banking, complemented with vast experience on end-to-end process of public listing of securities gained
whilst holding key responsibilities at the Listings Division of the CSE. He was a member of the regulatory teams
that launched the Multi Currency Board and the Empower Board (for SME’s) as listing platforms and has been
involved in many other regulatory process implementations and revisions with ample exposure to capital
market related practices, laws and regulations. He has been a key resource person representing CSE at various
forums conducted to promote listing of securities amongst prospective issuers.

Chandana also possesses hands on experience in Financial Reporting and Auditing where he carried out
numerous tasks during statutory audits at Ernst & Young for over 3 years. Formally qualified with a Bachelor of
Business Management (Finance) Special Degree (2nd Lower) from University of Kelaniya Sri Lanka, Chandana is
also an Affiliate of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) UK.
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9.0 DISCLAIMER

Valuation model of this report has been prepared by ACP based on the analysis of historical financial
statements, both audited and unaudited of E M L Consultants Limited and the future plans provided by the
management of the Company. The financial forecasts are based on several assumptions and judgements of
significance subjectivity. Therefore, such information should not be considered as a guarantee or
representation, expressed or implied of the future achievements of the Company and are subject to change
according to the Company’s ability to execute its business plans and may vary depending on the macro-
economic conditions prevailing time-to-time.

ACP’s independent verifications were limited to analysis of historical financial statements of the Company,
present operational structure and use of professional judgement as regard to the assumptions disclosed under
section of ‘Discounted cash flows’. Forecasted results and assumptions have been discussed with the
management of EML and assumptions used has been compared with the past trends and macro-economic
factors to the extent of availability of such information. ACP has made inquiries with the management on
future plans in place to achieve the expected results.

ACP assumes no responsibility over the omission of information furnished by the Company. The industry
information included in this report is based on external information sources mentioned therein and ACP has
not independently verified such information.

Accordingly, the information and results should not be considered as a representation made by ACP and does
not by any mean is a guarantee of future achievements of the Company. ACP does not accept any liability of a
loss incurred by any person by acting or not acting based on the information presented in this Report. The
recipients of this report are expected to make their own analysis and judgments considering the historical
financial information and macro-economic factors that could affect the present and future operations of the
Company.

The value recommendation provided in this report is valid for a period of 3 months from the date of the
Introductory Document, provided no material changes are taking place in the Company’s operating
environment during the aforesaid period.

We also confirm that we are neither a related party of EML as defined in Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, nor

has a significant interest or financial connection with the Company.

Valuation Date: 31°* May 2021
Report Date: 31° July 2021
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